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SIDBI continuesits commitmentto mainstream energy efficiencyand environmental
protection measures in its promotional, financing and development initiatives
for the MSME sector. SIDBI’s responsible financing initiative is dedicated
towards furthering long-term sustainable and inclusive growth of the sector and
contributing towards Nation-building.
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Small Industries Development Bank of India

Head Office
SIDBI Tower,
15, Ashok Marg,
Lucknow.

July 07, 2010

The Secretary,

Department of Financial Services,
Ministry of Finance

Government of India,

New Delhi,

Dear Sir,

In accordance with the Provisions of Section 30 (5) of
the Small Industries Development Bank of India Act,
1989, | forward herewith the following documents:

(1) Copy of Annual Accounts of Small Industries
Development Bank of India for the year Ended
March 31, 2010; and

) Acopy of the Report of the Board on the working
of Small Industries Development Bank of India

During the year ended March 31, 2010.
Yours Faithfully,
(R M Malla)
Chairman & Managing Director
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"To empower the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(MSME) sector with a view to contributing to the process
of economic growth, employment generation and
balanced regional development".

&g YA / Vision

"3, oY U9 AR SeM &3 Bl 9ge, Holad aol
aIRad TR R UfCRUG] a1 & S5 J IF@I fa<ig
AR e |ae smawdanRi 3 qfd B Thd da
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"To emerge as a single window for meeting the financial
and developmental needs of the MSME sector to make
it strong, vibrant and globally competitive, to position
SIDBI Brand as the preferred and customer friendly
institution and for enhancement of shareholders wealth
and highest corporate values through modern
technology platform'".

WA B Th FAAD / Progress at a Glance

9u-aR dIferal / Table for the year

(@S F9A /Rs. Crore)

1990-91 2006-07 2007-08 2008-2009 2009-10
HfRAT/Sanctions 2,410.1 11,102.3 16,164.4 29,188.0 35,521.3
Hf3aRv1/Disbursements 1,838.8 10,225.3 15,087.2 28,297.8 31,917.9
J2I1 31 A/ B / As on March 31
1991 2007 2008 2009 2010
ST/ Capital — W&/ Authorised 500.00 1,000.0 1,000.0 1,000.0 1,000.0
— Y /Paid-up 450.0 450.0 450.0 450.0 450.00
CINGIRRIICREIERI]
Reserves and Funds 449 4,691.0 4,809.8 5,149.4 5,457.2
FHIT AU
Outstanding Portfolio 5,176.8 16,031.0 20,226.5 30,885.9 37,969.0
Gl 3 /Total Income 4251 1,187.3 1,638.2 2,082.3 2,539.8
fae @™ /Net Profit 35.6 298.2 198.4 299.2 4213
IRIRURD] D AH
Dividend to Shareholders 5.0 67.5 67.5 67.5 112.5
3T IHRN A W ufde™ (%)
Return on Avg. Outstanding Portfolio (%) 0.7 3.1 21 3.7 26
RESIEEZRINSICRIN IR
AT SRl 1 e
Standard Assets as percentage 100 99.86 99.75 99.92 99.82
of net outstanding portfolio
i TRl & wf o s (%)
Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (%) 13.9 37.5 41.7 34.2 30.1
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Deputy Managing Director’s Statement

The Financial Year 2009-10 has a very historical significance for SIDBI as it marked the completion
of 20-years of its operations in the service of the MSME sector. These two decades have been
characterized by opportunities and challenges, emanating from opening up of the financial sector,
regulatory oversight and the global economic crisis. The Bank was able to adapt to these changes
effectively. At the same time, SIDBI addressed the emergent credit and non-credit needs of MSMESs
at various stages. The business strategy of SIDBI during FY 2010 encompassed continued support
to MSMEs in the post-crisis phase, sustainable financing and inclusive growth.

Support during crisis

SIDBI, being the principal financial institution for MSMES, has provided timely financial
support to the MSME sector during the period of the global financial crisis and economic
slowdown to overcome their liquidity problem. During the FY 2009-10, SIDBI provided
additional support to MSMESs, such as, need-based restructuring of debt, coverage of loans
upto Rs.100 lakh under credit guarantee, providing customized risk capital to MSMEs and
setting up an e-platform called NSE Trade Receivables Engine for E-discounting (NTREES)
for discounting of MSMESs receivables on real time basis. Further, the Bank accorded greater
thrust to the sustainable development of the MSME sector by way of, inter alia, promoting
energy efficiency, clean production credit lines, Green Rating, etc.

Promoting Sustainable Development

SIDBI is committed to promote sustainability in the MSME sector by recognizing the fact that
sustainable development is a key to the sector’s survival and growth in future. Accordingly,
the Bank focuses on responsible financing by integrating environment, energy efficiency
and social standards with its financial support to MSMES in an increasing manner. In order
to improve productivity and competitiveness of MSMEs through energy efficiency (EE)
measures in their production process, the Bank upscaled its EE financing by contracting
bilateral Lines of Credit (LoC) from Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA),
Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (KfW) and French Development Agency (AFD). Similarly,
the Bank availed a World Bank LoC to promote clean technologies, environmental safety
and social standards in the MSME sector.
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Some of the notable EE initiatives of SIDBI include providing collateral free credit to Mumbai
taxi owners to replace their existing petrol taxis with CNG fitted taxis, special refinancing
to Delhi Financial Corporation for assisting more than 600 LPG fitted auto rickshaws at
Chandigarh, financial support to Bhartiya Micro Credit for providing 500 rickshaws to
disadvantaged persons in and around Lucknow and financial assistance to Friends of
Women’s World Banking for providing 50,000 solar lanterns to micro entrepreneurs in
Manipur and other states of North Eastern Region.

To promote investment in clean technologies, CETPs, waste recycling and management in
MSME units/clusters, the Bank availed a World Bank Line of Credit based on Environmentand
Social (E&S) standards. The utilization of the World Bank loan has been highly satisfactory.
Further, the Bank has introduced a Scheme to provide “Assistance for Clean Production
Options”, under which, apart from financial assistance on concessional terms, technical
support is also provided to MSMEs for investing in environmentally friendly technologies.

SIDBI, in partnership with Bureau of Energy Efficiency and World Bank under its Global
Environment Facility project, has decided to implement EE measures in 30 clusters. As a
part of its commitment to sustainable development, the Bank supported Small and Medium
Enterprises Rating Agency (SMERA) to develop ‘Green Rating’, for the MSMEs for the
first time in the country. To encourage MSMEs to go in for ‘Green Rating’, SIDBI gives
concession in interest rate upto 50 bps to its MSME clients who obtain Green Rating of
‘SMERA Green3’ and above. All these measures address the issues and concern of climate
change by reducing Green House Gases and would ultimately, improve the productivity /
profitability of MSMEs.

Inclusive Growth

The recent years have witnessed Micro Finance emerging as a potent tool of inclusive growth
and attainment of Millennium Development Goals. SIDBI, on its part, is committed to contribute
towards the national goal of attaining Inclusive Growth by reaching out to those at the bottom-
of-the-pyramid. The Bank has, so far, provided micro finance assistance through more than 150
Micro Finance Institutions (MFIs) partners, thereby benefiting more than 340 lakh disadvantaged
persons, mostly women in the rural sector.

As a part of its responsible financing initiative, SIDBI has been addressing various issues and
concerns of the micro finance sector like transparency in dealing with poor clients, reducing
interest rates, improving transaction efficiency, etc. through its policy instruments by sensitizing
the concerned stakeholders at various fora. The Bank has created a Lenders’ Forum to harmonize
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the legal covenants of the lending banks, with a view to ensuring transparency in lending rates
and adherence to the Code of Conduct by MFIs. The Bank has also initiated discussions for
development of a Code of Conduct Assessment Tool for MFIs to assess their degree of adherence
to the Voluntary Microfinance Code of Conduct. These continuous efforts of SIDBI have since
started yielding some positive results.

Operational & Financial Performance

The Bank has for the first time crossed the landmark of sanctions of Rs. 35,000 crore and
disbursements of Rs. 30,000 crore during FY 2009-10 and recorded the highest ever sanctions
and disbursements of Rs. 35,521 crore and Rs 31,918 crore, respectively. The cumulative
disbursements of SIDBI as on March 31, 2010 stood at Rs 1,64,331 crore, reaching out to
around 360 lakh beneficiaries. Micro finance assistance increased by 53% to Rs. 2,670 crore
and micro finance outstanding crossed the Rs. 3000 crore mark for the first time to reach to Rs.
3,812 crore as on March 31, 2010, reflecting an increase of 78%. The aggregate outstanding
portfolio of the Bank grew by 23% to Rs. 37,969 crore as on March 31, 2010. The total assets
of the Bank recorded sizable increase of 21% to Rs. 41,885 crore as on March 31, 2010. Net
NPA as a percentage of net outstanding stood at 0.18% as on March 31, 2010, reflecting strong
monitoring, persistent follow-up and timely action by the Bank, as also adequate provisioning.
The total income of the Bank for FY 2009-10 has shown an impressive growth of 22% and stood
at Rs. 2,540 crore, net of provisions. Consequently, the profits have also increased by over 41%
to Rs. 421 crore. The Earnings Per Share (EPS) have improved to Rs.9.36. The Bank has
declared a higher equity dividend of 25% for FY 2009-10.

A Step towards Corporate Social Responsibility

SIDBI is implementing a multi-partner, multi-activity MSME Financing and Development Project,
which has the primary objective of meeting both the demand and supply side concerns of MSMEs
through a judicious blend of financial and non —financial services. The international partners of the
Project are World Bank; DFID, UK; KfW and GTZ, Germany. The progress of the Project has been
quite remarkable and it has so far reached out to about 28,000 beneficiaries, comprising 26,000
MSMEs and 2,000 bank officials and other stakeholders. The Project has bagged international
ADFIAP Merit Award in 2010. In addition, SIDBI is engaged in enterprise promotion through its
Rural Industries Programmes and Entrepreneurship Development Programmes and enterprise
strengthening through its Skill-cum-Technology Upgradation Programme and Small Industries
Management Programmes. One important achievement was that the Bank, in association with
Union Bank of India, set up a “Management & Skill Development Institute [MSDI]” in Murshidabad
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District, West Bengal. The Bank has created more than 2 lakh employment opportunities in the
MSME sector through these programmes. The Bank has also taken special initiatives in the
North Eastern Region (NER), by way of Rural Industries Programme in 22 districts, Cluster
Development Programme in 34 clusters, various vocational training programmes, marketing
activities, seminars, etc. These programmes have, so far, helped in promoting more than1,800
units in NER.

Capacity Building of Financial Institutions

SIDBI is constantly engaged in building and strengthening the capacity of State Financial
Corporation (SFCs) and Technical Consultancy Organisations (TCOs) in efficiently delivering
various credit and non-credit facilities to MSMEs. In order to improve the operational and financial
performance of SFCs, the Bank has MOUs with 12 SFCs, which have started yielding improved
results in terms attaining positive networth, reduction in NPAs, etc. Technical Consultancy
Organisations (TCOs) have been playing an important intermedition role in the development of
the MSME sector. An agreement for transfer of shareholding of TCOs in favour of SIDBI was
executed between SIDBI and IDBI during the year.

SIDBI as Nodal Agency for Government Schemes

SIDBI continues to extend the Nodal Agency services to the Govt of India for schemes sponsored
by various Central Ministries for encouraging implementation of modernisation and technology
upgradation by manufacturing units in the MSME sector. These schemes are Credit Linked
Capital Subsidy Scheme (CLCSS), Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme for Textile Industry
(TUES), Integrated Development of Leather Sector Scheme (IDLSS) and Scheme of Technology
Upgradation/Setting up /Modernisation/Expansion of Food Processing Industries.

Venture Capital

SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL) is an asset management company, established in 1999
for managing venture capital funds. At present, it manages two SEBI registered venture capital
funds, viz. the National Venture Fund for Software and Information Technology Industry (NFSIT)
and the SME Growth Fund (SGF). After the investment phase, NFSIT is now nurturing the
investments made (Rs. 84.40 crore) and has, so far, made partial / full exits from 23 companies
including 3 full exits during FY 2009-10. Under SGF, the total commitments amounted to
Rs.465.92 crore and cumulative disbursements stood at Rs.442.56 crore. The Fund has ,so far,

made exits from 4 companies including 2 partial exits in FY 2009-10.
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Credit Guarantee

In order to encourage banks to lend more to the MSME sector, Government of India (Gol) and
SIDBI have set up the Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE)
in July 2000 to provide credit guarantee support for collateral free / third-party guarantee free
loans up to Rs. 100 lakh extended by banks and lending institutions for micro and small enterprise
(MSEs) under its Credit Guarantee Scheme (CGS). CGTMSE crossed two significant milestones
during the FY 2009-10, viz., over 1.50 lakh guarantee approvals in any single financial year so
far and 3 lakh guarantee approvals cumulatively as on March 31, 2010. The number of credit
approvals during FY 2009-10 had registered a growth of 182% and the amount guaranteed
increased by 213% over the previous financial year. As at March 31, 2010, cumulatively,
3,00,105 accounts have been accorded guarantee approval for Rs.11,559.61 crore. The amount
of guarantee approvals of Rs.6,875.11 crore in FY 2009-10 alone exceeded the cumulative
coverage of Rs.4,684.50 crore during the first nine years of CGTMSE'’s operations. The sharp
growth in coverage under the Scheme is indicative of the fact that the CGS is now finding greater
acceptance with both the Banks/FIs and the MSEs in the country.

Transfer of Technology

India SME Technology Services Limited (ISTSL) was established in November 2005 to carry
out various technological development activities like technology matchmaking, technology
transfer and clean development mechanism for MSMEs in India. ISTSL organized awareness
campaigns in various industrial clusters during the year and also took up the project for
implementing Energy Efficient technologies in Stainless Steel Re-rolling Cluster of Jodhpur,
in association with KfW, Germany. The project is now being taken up for implementing Clean
Development Mechanism (CDM) project by implementing Energy Efficiency measures, which
are expected to generate CDM revenues, besides reducing the cost of fuel being consumed
by the units.

Credit Rating

SIDBI, along with leading public, foreign and private sector banks and Dun & Bradstreet
Information Services India Private Limited (D&B), set up the SME Rating Agency of India Ltd.
(SMERA) in September 2005, as an MSME dedicated third-party rating agency to provide
comprehensive, transparent and reliable ratings and risk profiling. The cumulative number of
ratings since inception till March 31, 2010 stood at 6,599. During the financial year 2009-10,
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SMERA embarked on diversification of its service offerings to the market. Accordingly, newer
services, such as, Green Field and Brown Field Ratings, Micro Finance Institutions’ Ratings,
Risk Model Mapping/Validation and Green Ratings were introduced.

Asset Reconstruction

India SME Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd. (ISARC) was set up in April 2008 as an Asset
Reconstruction Company (ARC) to acquire non-performing assets (NPAs) and to resolve them
through its innovative mechanisms with a special focus on the NPAs of MSME sector. During
FY 2009-10, the Company successfully completed raising of its entire share capital of Rs.100
crore from 19 public sector shareholders, i.e. SIDBI, SIDBI Venture, Bank of Baroda, United
Bank of India (the sponsors), 10 other public sector banks, LIC and 4 State-level institutions.
In a very short span of 1 year, ISARC has established its presence as an active player. During
FY 2009-10, ISARC evaluated 1,117 non-performing accounts of 20 banks/Fls and carried out
detailed due-diligence in respect of 663 NPAs. It acquired 202 accounts from 4 banks / FIs with
an aggregate principal outstanding amount of Rs. 249 crore. The income of the Company during
FY 2009-10 stood at Rs. 699.61 lakh and the net profit at Rs. 278.39 lakh. The networth of the
company as on March 31, 2010 was Rs. 102.07 crore.

With the Indian economy recovering fast and registering a higher growth rate of 7.4% during FY
2009-10 and estimated 9% during first quarter of FY 2010-11, the prospects of an accelerated
economic growth on sustainable basis appear bright. The FY 2010-11 is expected to achieve
a growth rate in the range of 8.5%-9.4%. The same growth optimism is being witnessed in the
MSME sector also. The inherent strength and resilience of the MSME sector, further bolstered
by prompt and prudent policy measures by the Government of India, Reserve Bank of India
and banks / Fls, have enabled the sector to largely overcome the economic crisis. The sector
is poised on a higher growth trajectory, facilitated largely by the large domestic market and by
diversifying its exports to new markets.

SIDBI, as the principal financial institution for the MSME sector, continues to remain committed
to responsible financing and would continue to align its activities to the national priorities of
employment generation, income growth and attainment of Millennium Development Goals.
SIDBI would also endeavour to ensure that adequate and timely credit and appropriate non-
credit capacity building support are provided to the MSME sector, so that the sector remains
strong, vibrant and achieves international competitiveness.
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SIDBI celebrates 20th Foundation Day - The function was inaugurated by Hon'ble Finance Minister Padma Vibhushan
Shri Pranab Mukherjee.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in managing e-waste at Bangalore, Karnataka.

he global economy has started exhibiting recovery which is gaining momentum, especially

from the fourth quarter of 2009. The US economy showed a 5.6% GDP growth in Q4,

2009. The consolidation of recovery and growth momentum has been contributed by,
among others, improvement in global business confidence and strong monetary and fiscal stimuli.
Considering these positive trends, IMF upgraded its global economic growth forecast for 2010 from
3.9% made in January 2010 to 4.2% in its April 2010 World Economic Outlook.

The Indian economy, backed by the prudent monetary and fiscal measures, made a quick recovery
from the global economic slowdown and recorded a sustained and firm recovery during FY 2009-
10.The real GDP registered an accelerated growth of 7.4% during FY 2009-10 as compared to that
of 6.7% during FY 2008-09.This recovery could be achieved due to uptrend in industrial activities
with Index of Industrial Production (IIP) recording a broad-based growth of 16.7 per cent in January
2010, 15.1 per cent in February 2010 and 13.5 per cent in March 2010.The overall industrial growth
was 9.3% for FY 2009-10 as against 3.9% growth in FY 2008-09 with remarkable growth in mining
and quarrying (10.6%), manufacturing (10.8%), Electricity (6.5%) and construction sector (6.5%).
Among the other sectors, agriculture and allied sector recorded a lower growth of 0.2% (1.6%) due
to deficient monsoon and floods in some parts of the country. Services sector continued to show a
high growth, though the growth in FY 2009-10 was lower at 8.5% as against 9.8% during last FY
mainly due to lower external demand. India’s exports and imports registered a negative growth of
4.7% and 8.2%, respectively, in dollar terms, during FY 2009-10. However, there was a surge in trade
during the last quarter and the months of January, February and March 2010 witnessed sustained
higher exports growth of 11.5%, 34.8% and 54.1% and imports growth of 35.5%, 66.4% and 67.1%,

respectively.
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise (MSME) Sector

Subsequent to the announcement of Package for Promotion of Micro and Small Enterprises on

February 27, 2007, the Ministry of MSME conducted the 4th census of MSMEs with base year
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Hon'ble Finance Minister Padma Vibhushan Shri Pranab Mukherjee releasing the Corporate Social Responsibility Report,
2010, of SIDBI.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Faridabad, Haryana.

of 2006-07. As per the Census, the total number of MSMEs was estimated at 261 lakh providing
employment to about 600 lakh persons. A comparison of salient features of the 4" census data vis-

a-vis the 3" Census data for the year 2006-07 is given in Table 1.1.

Table 1.1: SSI/MSE salient features for FY 2006-07

Parameters 3rd SSI Census 4th MSME Census
Total No. of enterprises (Lakh) 134 261
Percentage of MSE Exports to India’s total 31.2 31.9
Exports (%)
Employment (Lakh person) 31255 594.61

Sources: (a) Third All India Census of Small Scale Industries, 2001-02
(b) Fourth All India Census of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises, 2006-07

Note: The base year for 3* SSI Census and 4* MSME Census are FY 2001-02 and FY 2006-07, respectively.

Over the years, the MSME sector has undergone structural transformation in terms of economic
activities per unit of employment, investment and output, locational changes, ownership pattern, etc.
(Table 1.2). It is observed that the share of manufacturing MSMEs has came down from 42% in the
3rd Census to 29% in the 4th Census and correspondingly, the share of services sector has increased.
The proprietorship MSMEs constituted 94.5% as against 95.8% in 2001-02. The employment per
enterprise for registered MSME sector, which had gone down to 4.48 persons in 2001-02, showed

improvement to 5.93 persons in 2006-07.
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Hon'ble Minister for State for Finance, Shri Namo Narain Meena, releasing the MSME dedlcated magazine OPTIMiSM.
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PECEARRCRE] 0.68% 0.52%
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing injection and blow moulds at Balanagar, Hyderabad.

Table 1.2: Structural Transformation of MSMEs

S. No. Item 3 Census 4" Census
(FY 2001-02) (FY 2006-07)
1. Total Number of Enterprises (Crore) 1.05 2.61
2. Number of Manufacturing Enterprises (Lakh) 44.46(42%) 74.53(29%)
3. Number of Service Enterprises (Lakh) 60.75(58%) 186.47(71%)
4. Total Employment (Lakh Persons) 249.33 594.61
5. % Number of enterprises managed by
SCs 10 7.88
STs 4.97 3.18
Women 10.11 7.36
6. Type of organizations
Proprietary 95.8% 94.5%
Partnership 1.9% 0.68%
Pvt. Ltd. Company 0.68% 0.52%
Public limited Co. - 0.28%
Cooperatives 0.14% 0.51%
Others 1.41% 3.51%
Registered MSMEs
7. Per Unit Gross output (Rs. Lakh) 14.78 45.69
8. Per unit Employment 4.48 5.93
9. Employment per Rs 1 lakh investment in fixed 0.67 0.19
assets
10. Fixed investment per enterprise in Rs lakh 6.68 32.26
11. % age Sickness 13.98 14.47

Policy Environment

Considering the importance of holistic development of the MSME sector to the overall economic
development of the country, Hon’ble Finance Minister announced a number of measures in the Union
Budgets of 2009-10 and 2010-11 having positive impact on the sector, in addition to fiscal stimulus
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Mrs. Rajni Bector of Mrs. Bector's Food Specialties Ltd., Ludhiana, SIDBI Award for Outstanding Entrepreneur assisted under the Scheme
was felicitated with the award for Outstanding Woman Entrepreneur.  for marketing of MSE products was presented to Nalli Trust.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of auto components at Chennai, Tamil Nadu.

packages by Government of India and a number of monetary easing and liquidity enhancing measures by

Reserve Bank of India to counter the negative fallout of the global slowdown on the Indian economy.

Union Budget 2009-10

The major steps taken by Gol are listed below:

Interest subvention of 2 percent on pre-shipment credit for seven employment oriented export sectors
was extended beyond the current deadline of September 30, 2009 to March 31, 2010.

To facilitate flow of credit at reasonable rates, Rs.4, 000 crore was provided out of Rural Infrastructure
Development Fund (RIDF) to Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI). This has incentivised
Banks and State Finance Corporations (SFCs) to lend to Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) by refinancing
50 per cent of incremental lending to MSEs during the financial year 2009-10.

A sub-committee of State Level Bankers’ Committee (SLBC) was set up to identify and formulate an action
plan for providing banking facilities in under-banked / unbanked areas in the next three years. A sum of

Rs.100 crore set aside as one-time grant-in-aid to ensure provision of at least one centre/Point of Sales
(POS) for banking services in each of the unbanked blocks.

Scope of presumptive taxation was extended to all small businesses with a turnover upto Rs. 40 lakh. All
such taxpayers to have option to declare their income from business at the rate of 8 percent of their turnover
and simultaneously enjoy exemption from the compliance burden of maintaining books of accounts. As a
procedural simplification, they were also to be exempted from advance tax and allowed to pay their entire
tax liability from business at the time of filing their return. This new scheme came into eftect from the
financial year 2010-11.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) was increased to 15 per cent of book profits from 10 per cent. The period

allowed carrying forward the tax credit under MAT to be extended from seven years to ten years.
Commodity Transaction Tax (CTT) was abolished.

Reduction in custom duty on LCD panel, specified life saving drugs, parts for manufacture of mobile
phones and accessories, unworked corals, bio-diesel, specified heart devices, mechanical harvester for coffee

plantation, cotton waste, wool waste, rock phosphate, etc.
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SIDBI Award for MSME Unit with Unlque Project/Concept was  SIDBI Award for Best Venture Capital Beneficiary was
presented to E-parisara Pvt. Ltd. presented to Indialdeas.com
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of Ceramics at Rajkot, Gujarat.

* Reduction in excise duty on petrol driven trucks/lorries, special boiling spirits, naphtha, high speed diesel,
branded artificial jewellery, etc.

¢ Benefit of SSI exemption scheme was extended to printed laminated rolls bearing the brand name of others
by excluding this item from the purview of the brand name restriction.

* Service Tax to be imposed on services provided in relation to transport of goods by rail and coastal cargo,
advice, consultancy or technical assistance provided in the field of law, cosmetic and plastic surgery service.

Union Budget 2010-11

The major steps initiated by Gol are listed below:

+ Extension of existing interest subvention of 2 per cent for one more year for exports covering handicrafts,
carpets, handlooms and small and medium enterprises.

* High Level Council on Micro and Small Enterprises to be set up to monitor the implementation of the
recommendations of High-Level Task Force constituted by the Hon’blePrime Minister.

¢ The corpus for Micro Finance Development and Equity Fund doubled to Rs.400 crore in FY 2010-11.

* Appropriate Banking facilities to be provided to habitations having population in excess of 2000 by
March, 2012.

* Insurance and other services to be provided using the Business Correspondent model. By this arrangement,
it 1s proposed to cover 60,000 habitations.

* Augmentation of Rs.100 crore each for the Financial Inclusion Fund (FIF) and the Financial Inclusion
Technology Fund, which shall be contributed by Government of India, RBI and NABARD.

o Limits for turnover over which accounts need to be audited enhanced to Rs. 60 lakh for businesses and
to Rs. 15 lakh for professionals.

* Limit of turnover for the purpose of presumptive taxation of small businesses enhanced to Rs. 60 lakh.

* Reduction in basic custom duty on rhodium (metal used for jewellery polishing), gold ore, key components
used in production of microwave ovens, long pepper, asafoetida, replaceable kits used for household type

water filter other than RO, corrugated box or cartons, latex rubber, etc.
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Issue of sanction letter to one of the beneficiaries from Satincare, a  Issue of sanction letter to one of the beneficiaries from Bandhan, a
partner Micro Finance Institution of SIDBI. partner Micro Finance Institution of SIDBI.
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Prime Minister’s Task Force on MSMEs

The Hon’ble Prime Minister had constituted a Task Force on Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises under
the Chairmanship of Shri T. K. A. Nair, Principal Secretary, Prime Minister’s Office to review the problems
of the MSME Sector. SIDBI was also represented in the Task Force. The Task Force had set up seven sub-
groups in the areas of Credit, Marketing, Infrastructure / Technology / Skill Development, Exit Policy, Labour,
Taxation, Matters relating to Special Package for North East and Jammu & Kashmir. The Task Force submitted
its report to Government of India on January 30, 2010 with a number of recommendations on the above issues
concerning MSMEs.

RBI Monetary Policy Measures

RBI has taken a number of accommodative monetary easing and liquidity enhancing measures in the wake of the
global economic crisis, which have helped to instill the confidence in the market participants and mitigated the
adverse impact of the crisis on Indian economy. Some of these measures have since been reversed by Reserve Bank
of India in a calibrated manner in line with new macro economic development. The salient measures by RBI were:

* Restoring the Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) to pre-crisis period of 25% in October 2009.
¢ Increase in Cash Reserve Ratio from 5% to 6% w.e.f. April 24, 2010.
* Increase in Repo Rate and Reverse Repo Rate to 5.50% and 4%, respectively, w.e.f. July 02, 2010.

* Decided to mandate banks to switch over to the system of Base Rate from July 01, 2010 as suggested by the
Working Group on Benchmark Prime Lending Rate (PLR) system.

* Proposed to mandate banks not to insist on collateral security in case of loans up to Rs.10 lakh as against the
present limit of Rs.5 lakh extended to all units of the micro and small enterprises (MSEs) sector as recommended
by the RBI Working Group on Credit Guarantee Scheme of the Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and
Small Enterprises (CGTMSE).

* Banks have been urged to keep in view the recommendations made by the Prime Minister’s Task Force and take
eftective steps to increase the flow of credit to the MSE sector, particularly to micro enterprises. The Reserve
Bank will monitor the performance of banks in this regard. The Task Force recommended several measures
having a bearing on the functioning of MSMEs, credit, marketing, labour, exit policy, infrastructure/technology/
skill development and taxation

13
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SIDBI Award for Best MFI / Project in the North Eastern The award for Outstanding Successful long standing
Region was presented to Rastriya Gramin Vikas Nidhi. customer was presented to Obeetee Pvt. Ltd.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing Corrugated boxes and printing at Silvassa, Daman

+  With a view to increasing banking penetration and promoting financial inclusion, domestic commercial banks, both
in the public and private sectors, were advised to put in place a Board-approved Financial Inclusion Plan (FIP) in
order to roll them out over the next three years and submit the same to the Reserve Bank by March 2010.

* To put in place an appropriate monitoring mechanism of the working of the SLBC/ District Consultative
Committees (DCC).

* To expand the terms of reference of the Working Group on introduction of Priority Sector Lending
Certificates (PSLC) to also include review of the pros and cons of inclusion of bank lending to micro-
finance institutions (MFIs) under priority sector lending.

Foreign Trade Policy 2009-14

Foreign Trade Policy, 2009-14 has been designed with the short term objective to arrest and reverse the
declining trend of exports and to provide additional support, especially to those sectors which have been hit

badly by recession in the developed world. The new targets set under the Policy are as under:
* An annual export growth of 15% with an annual export target of US$ 200 billion by March 2011.
* By 2014, India’s exports of goods and services would be doubled.

* The long term policy objective for the Government of India is to double India’s share in global trade by
2020.

In order to meet these objectives, the Government of India announced the following important measures:
* Continue with the DEPB Scheme upto December 2010 .

* Income Tax benefits under Section 10(A) for IT industry and under Section 10(B) for 100% export
oriented units for one additional year till 31st March 2011.

+ Enhanced insurance coverage and exposure for exports through Exports Credit Guarantee Corporation
of India Ltd. (ECGC) Schemes has been ensured till 31st March 2010.

* To encourage value added manufacture export, a minimum 15% value addition on imported inputs
under Advance Authorisation Scheme has been stipulated.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of textiles at Tirupur, Tamil Nadu

Technological upgradation of exports is sought to be achieved by promoting imports of capital goods
for certain sectors,such as, select engineering products, electronic products, basic chemicals and
pharmaceuticals, apparel and textiles, plastics, handicrafts, chemicals and allied products and leather and
leather products.

The Government recognized that ‘Status Holders’ contribute approx. 60% of India’s goods exports.
To incentivise and encourage the ‘Status Holders’, as well as to encourage technological upgradation
of export production, additional duty credit scrip @ 1% of the FOB of past exports shall be granted
for specified product groups including leather, specific sub-sectors in engineering, textiles, plastics,
handicrafts and jute. This duty credit scrip can be used for import of capital goods by these Status

Holders. The imported capital goods shall be subject to actual user condition.

To encourage production and export of ‘green products’ through measures,such as, phased
manufacturing programme for green vehicles, zero duty Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG)

scheme and incentives for exports.

To enable support to Indian industry and exporters, especially the MSMEs, in availing their rights
through trade remedy instruments under the WTO framework, Gol proposes to set up a Directorate
of Trade Remedy Measures.

For SSI units, import of capital goods at 3 % Customs duty shall be allowed, subject to fulfillment of export
obligation equivalent to 6 times of duty saved on capital goods, in 8 years from Authorization issue-date,
provided the landed c.i.f. value of such imported capital goods under the scheme does not exceed Rs. 50

lakh and total investment in plant and machinery after such imports does not exceed SSI limit.

Economic Outlook

With economic recovery, continued policy support and financial stability getting restored, the global

economy is expected to register accelerated growth at 4.3% during 2011, as per the IMF estimate.

The growth prospects of Indian Economy are considered positive. While RBI has forecast a higher
GDP growth of 8.0% for FY 2010-11, IMF’s advance estimate places the GDP growth at 9.4% for
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of tools at Gurgaon, Haryana.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing plastic furnitures at Erode, Tamil Nadu.

2010. The higher sustained growth would be supported by all the three major sectors of Indian

economy: Agriculture, assuming a normal monsoon, Industry and Services sector.

With positive growth expectations, the investment demand has picked up momentum and is expected
to be strong in the coming years. The exports from the MSME sector are expected to record strong
growth with rising global demand. As per the latest data available, some of the MSME-dominated
exports like food products, textiles, wool products, leather and chemicals have registered higher growth
during the second half of the FY 2009-10.

The importance of holistic development of the MSME sector i1s significant due to its contribution
in employment generation, balanced regional development and overall poverty reduction. This sector
would continue to act as catalyst to enable Indian economy to overcome challenges and encourage
forward and backward integration. The Indian MSMEs, with their inherent strength and strong resilience,
have weathered the global economic crisis as a result of timely and adequate policy support from
Government of India and Reserve Bank of India. The MSME sector is on a higher growth trajectory
by tapping the large domestic market and diversifying their exports to new markets. In order to remain
competitive, the MSMEs continue to widen their information base and invest in energy efticiency and

technological upgradation.

SIDBI, as the principal financial institution for the MSME sector, would continue to play the active role
of change agent and engage in activities aligned to the national priorities and Millennium Development
Goals. SIDBI would also endeavour to ensure that adequate and timely credit and appropriate non-credit
support is provided to the MSME sector directly and through banks, Micro Finance Institutions, state level

institutions and national and international agencies.
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Chairman and Managing Director, SIDBI, addressing the gathering at BEE Foundation Day.
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BEE Foundation Day during which SIDBI signed an MoU with BEE for implementing Energy Efficiency measures among
MSMEs in 25 clusters.

he business strategy of SIDBI is oriented to provide financial support to MSMEs through different

phases of economic cycles, while continuing its thrust on sustainable financing of the MSMEs. SIDBI,
being the principal financial institution for MSMEs, has provided timely financial support to the MSME
sector during the period of global financial crisis and economic slowdown to overcome the liquidity
problems faced by them. At the same time, with its commitment to responsible banking and addressing the
issues of climate change, SIDBI has integrated environment, energy efficiency and social standards with its
lending activities in an increasing manner. The Bank recognizes that sustainable development is the key to
MSMEs survival and growth in the long run and accordingly, has taken a number of focused initiatives, some
of which are mentioned below:

Responsible Financing

v' Promoting Energy Efficiency: The MSMEs in India have good potential for improving productivity
and competitiveness through Energy Efficiency (EE) measures in production process. In order to upscale
EE financing for the MSME sector, SIDBI contracted bilateral Lines of Credit from Japan International
Cooperation Agency (JICA), Japan; KfW, Germany and French Development Agency (AFD), France.
During the year under review, the Bank introduced a Scheme for “Promoting Investment in Energy
Efficiency projects in MSME sector” to provide loan assistance at concessional terms to MSMEs to
invest in energy saving technologies. To have wider coverage, the Bank has provided resource support
to banks, SFCs and NBFCs for onlending to MSME;s for energy saving projects. Simultaneously, the
Bank has launched awareness campaigns on EE measures in the energy intensive MSME clusters and has
also provided technical support services to MSMEs for identifying EE technology / equipments. The
initiative received good response and as on March 31, 2010, the Bank has covered 18 MSME clusters
across India through awareness campaigns and provided loan assistance to more than 3,300 units with an

aggregate assistance of Rs.1,565 crore.

v’ Promoting Clean Production Measurers: To promote investment in clean technologies, CETPs,
waste recycling and management in MSME units / clusters, the Bank availed a World Bank Line of
Credit based on Environmental and Social (E&S) standards. The utilization of the World Bank loan has

been satisfactory. Further, the Bank introduced a scheme to provide “Assistance for Clean Production
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Inauguration of Solar lantern project under SIDBI micro credit assistance.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in Textile processing at World's longest Coir Mat made at Alappuzha, Kerala, under
Tirupur, Tamil Nadu. MSME Financing and Development Project of SIDBI.

Options” from April 2010, under which, apart from financial assistance at concessional terms, technical

support is also provided to MSMEs for investing in environmentally friendly technologies.

v’ Partnership with BEE: SIDBI has signed an MoU with Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE) for
implementing Energy Efficiency (EE) measures among MSMEs in 25 clusters.

v’ Energy Efficiency handbooks and Posters:

a. Do’s and Don'ts booklet has been released in collaboration with The Energy Research Institute (TERI)

on energy efficiency measures for MSMEs.

b. 3 handbooks and 6 posters have been prepared on house keeping measures for improving Energy
Efficiency of MSME:s.

v' World Bank Global Environment Facility Project (WB-GEF):SIDBI,along with BEE, isimplementing
a new Iinitiative on financing EE measures under WB-GEF in 5 MSME clusters, viz. Kolhapur, Pune,
Tirunelveli, Ankaleshwar and Faridabad to improve EE and reduce Green House Gas (GHG) emissions
from MSME:s utilizing increased commercial financing for EE.

v’ Assistance to Mumbai Taximen: The Hon’ble High Court of Maharashtra had passed an order for
phasing out taxis plying in Mumbai which are more than 25 years old. SIDBI devised a special scheme for
providing assistance to these taxi owners for replacing the old taxis with latest energy efficient versions,
using a simplified credit delivery arrangement with active involvement of the two local taxi associations.
Under the arrangement, assistance at concessional rate is oftered with credit guarantee coverage by Credit
Guarantee fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE). So far, over 800 taxi owners have been

provided collateral free loans for buying new CNG taxis in place of older polluting ones.

v Auto Rickshaw Financing: 600 LPG fitted Auto Rickshaws were provided assistance in Chandigarh by
Delhi Finance Corporation (DFC). SIDBI provided refinance to DEC for this clean energy initiative.

v’ Solar lanterns: Friends of Women’s World Banking (FWWB), a Micro Finance Institution (MFI), was
sanctioned assistance of Rs.10 crore for providing assistance to micro entrepreneurs in Manipur and
other North Eastern States for purchasing Solar Lanterns of 2 watts each. 50,000 micro entrepreneurs are

proposed to be covered under the assistance.
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Launch of Rickshaw Sangh Programme.
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Chairman and Managing Director, SIDBI flagging off 500 rickshaws.

v Rickshaw Sangh Programme: SIDBI signed an MoU with American India Foundation (AIF) to
provide livelihood support to the low-income groups through a joint initiative called the “Rickshaw
Sangh Programme”, under which the Bank sanctioned financial assistance of Rs. 50 lakh to Bhartiya
Micro Credit (BMC) under its Micro Credit Scheme for microfinance as well as for financing livelihood
programmes. BMC, under the Programme, has provided 500 Rickshaws to disadvantaged persons
residing in and around Lucknow with the credit support from the Bank and technical support from AIE
As a part of the Bank’s Corporate Social Responsibility, these clients are also being provided various
non-credit support, such as, getting the license and Municipal permits, uniforms, life insurance covers
for client and spouse, accident insurance for the rickshaw clients, opening of savings bank account, etc.

The initiative is proposed to be scaled up in other backward states through more MFIs.

v Green Rating: As part of its commitment to sustainable development, the Bank supported SME Rating
Agency of India Ltd. (SMERA) to develop Green Rating model for MSMEs. Green rating assesses
the compatibility of an industrial unit to adhere to manufacturing processes, alongwith efficient use of
resources with minimum environmental damage. It also takes into account compliance of environmental
regulatory norms by MSMEs. To encourage MSME:s to go for green rating, SIDBI gives concession in
interest rate upto 50 bps in its loan assistance to MSMEs obtaining green rating of ‘SMERA Green 3’

and above.

v MSME Receivable Finance Scheme: SIDBI operates the MSME Receivable Finance Scheme
(RFS) for MSME sellers / eligible service providers in respect of sales & services rendered to purchaser
companies. Under the Scheme, SIDBI fixes limits to well-performing purchaser companies and
discounts usance bills of MSMEs / eligible service sector units supplying components, parts, sub-
assemblies, services, etc. so that the MSME / service sector units realise their sale proceeds quickly.

SIDBI also offers invoice discounting facilities to the MSME suppliers of purchaser companies.

v NTREES: SIDB], along with National Stock Exchange (NSE), took an initiative for setting up an
electronic platform for discounting of MSME receivables. The e-platform is named as NTREES (NSE

Trade Receivables Engine for E-discounting in association with SIDBI). Operations on the platform
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Finance Secretary, Government of India, inaugurating the launch of NTREES — an electronic platform for discounting of

MSME receivables.
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Officials of SIDBI during the launching function of NTREES.

are on RTGS basis and all the participants are being provided with system generated passwords for
accessing the site. At present, trade receivables under MSME Receivable Finance Scheme limits
sanctioned by SIDBI have been shifted on NTREES.

v' CART: SIDBI had been using Credit Appraisal and Rating Tool (CART), an I'T- based mechanism
for appraising and rating loan exposure up to Rs. 100 lakh for existing profit making MSMEs. With
the experience gained, it is now being used for loan exposure upto Rs.200 lakh. So far, more than
4,000 loan applications have been processed in CART, sanctioning more than Rs.800 crore. The
Tool has been used as an effective mechanism for quantification of credit risk of small loans, thereby
enabling faster credit delivery processes, portfolio analysis, migration studies, etc. With user-friendly
features and auto-workflow, it has helped in reduction of Turn-around-Time (TAT) resulting in faster
credit appraisal and sanctions. SIDBI has shared the Tool with banks and MoU SFCs free of cost and
has also been giving training to the ofticials of banks / FIs to facilitate its smooth implementation.

Customized Financing

SIDBI’s business initiatives are strategized to develop tailor made, customized financial products to
meet the diverse credit needs of the MSMEs. The financial support is based on project viability and
entrepreneurs’ capabilities. To enable the MSMEs to weather economic crisis, the Bank had, inter alia,

taken certain specific measures, the important ones being:

v The Bank allowed need-based restructuring of repayment schedules to affected MSMEs as a support
during the difficult times.

v’ In order to augment greater credit flow to MSE sector, the Bank decided to provide all loans upto
Rs. 100 lakh without collateral and/or third party guarantee under the Credit Guarantee Scheme of
CGTMSE. More and more loans upto Rs. 100 lakh are being provided to MSEs without collateral.
These collateral - free loans of SIDBI under Credit Guarantee Scheme of CGTMSE were provided
to Rs. 490.63 crore to 2,933 MSEs as on March 31, 2010.

v Risk Capital Fund: Pursuant to the announcement made in the Union Budget 2008-09, the Risk
Capital Fund was created by SIDBI to provide Risk Capital assistance to MSME:s in the form of Equity,
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Seminar on Energy Conservation in Tanneries at Chennai Leather Cluster.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of Auto Components at Faridabad, Haryana.

Preference capital, Optionally Convertible Debenture, Optionally Convertible Debt, etc. During FY 2009-
10, the Bank expanded the product range by introducing a new financial instrument, viz. Sub-ordinated
Debt (SD) which could be used across wider spectrum of MSMEs. Sub-debt is quasi-equity type debt-
based product, which is subordinated in repayment and security to senior loans. The introduction of this
quasi-equity type product is helping the MSME:s to leverage the same to raise additional debt to meet
their growth requirements. The Bank has also started operations under its Start-up Assistance initiative on
pilot basis, where early stage ventures operating in innovative/ technology space, including those being
incubated at technology incubators are oftered financial assistance on flexible terms. Operations under
the MSME Risk Capital Fund, which commenced in FY 2008-09, picked up further momentum in FY
2009-10. A total sum of Rs. 142 crore out of the Risk Capital Fund has been committed to 72 MSMEs
till the end of FY 2009-10. Further, assistance to Venture Capital Funds was extended under Risk capital.
An aggregate sum of Rs. 310 crore has been committed out of the Fund toVC funds during the financial
year under review. The cumulative commitments to VC Funds as at the end of FY 2009-10 went up to
Rs. 640 crore in respect of 16 such funds. The Bank proposes to further expand its risk capital operations
by reaching out to a larger group of MSMEs through banks and other institutions.

Credit Risk Management

SIDBI has put in place a comprehensive Credit Risk Management system which is sensitive and responsive
to various risks emanating from its business dealings. As a move towards compliance with BASEL II norms,
SIDBI has also initiated necessary steps for implementation of the Integrated Risk Management System
covering setting up of systems and software for Credit Risk Management, Market Risk Management
and Operational Risk Management. Such financial risks associated with the Bank’s lending and treasury
operations, including off- balance sheet items are constantly monitored, measured and managed by a
Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC), under the overall supervision and guidance of the Risk
Management Committee of the Board of SIDBI.

The Bank has put in place the Operational Risk Management (ORM) Policy which lays down guidelines
and strategies on operational risk management of the Bank. The Business Continuity Plan (BCP) has also

been formulated which would be an integral part of the ORM. Framework for risk management encompasses

policies, organization structure, system and practices for identification, assessment/ measurement, mitigation and
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in fabrication of Control
hydraulic components at Peenya, Bangalore. panels at Peenya, Bangalore.
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Training of artisans under Hunter Artisans Project at Kanpur Leather Cluster supported under MSME Financing and
Development Project of SIDBI.

monitoring of the various risks of the Bank. The Bank has already put in place the Asset-Liability Management
Policy in terms of RBI Guidelines. In compliance with the Policy Guidelines on KYC Norms and Anti-Money
Laundering (AML) Standards, a Scoring Matrix based on ten broad parameters and 3 risk categories for risk
categorization of Direct Finance Schemes (DFS) borrowers has been developed and put in place.

Interest Rate Structure

Keeping in line with the easing of market liquidity and making credit affordable to MSMEs, SIDBI reduced its
Prime Lending Rate (PLR) to 11% w.e.f. May 04, 2009.

MSME Financing and Development Project (MSMEFDP)

SIDBI is implementing a multi-agency / multi-activity MSME Financing and Development Project (MSMEFDP).
The Department of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance, Government of India 1s the Nodal Agency for the
Project. The World Bank; Department for International Development (DFID) UK; KfW and GTZ, Germany are
the international partners in the Project. The primary objective of the Project is to meet both the demand and
supply side concerns of MSMEs through a judicious blend of financial and non — financial services.

The progress of the Project has been quite noticeable as it has so far reached out to about 28,000 beneficiaries
comprising 26,000 MSMEs and 2,000 bankers and other stakeholders. The Project has received Merit Award
from Association of Development Financing Institutions in Asia and the Pacific (ADFIAP) in 2010.

The Project has two major components: Credit Facility by World Bank and KfW and Technical Assistance by
DFID, UK; KfW and GTZ, Germany.

A. Credit Facility (CF)

Long term financing is a critical input for supporting capital formation and technological upgradation. Looking
beyond traditional approaches, the Project helps facilitate MSME growth for survival and sustainability by providing
Credit Facility. Under this component, the Bank has earlier utilized one Line of Credit (LoC) from World Bank (USD
120 million) and KfW, Germany (Euro 43.5 million) well ahead of schedule and benefited 1,294 MSMEs. Encouraged
by the success, the World Bank and SIDBI contracted additional LoC of USD 400 million on June 05,2009. The

progress of the loan utilisation is satisfactory.
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F2-10-2000

= T kv

Awarness Programme on SA 8000 at Chennai Leather Workshop on making Zero Liquid Discharge Systems in
Cluster under MSMEFDP of SIDBI. CETPs Operationally viable through Wind Energy Option.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of electrical stamping press at Faridabad, Haryana.

B. Technical Assistance (TA)

* Business Development Services (BDS)- The BDS programme under MSMEFDP is being
implemented in 26 clusters. The BDS activities have benefitted 17,500 MSME:s in these clusters mainly
to strengthen MSMEs’ access to marketing, skill upgradation, technological changes and various other
services in these clusters. Under one such initiative, the Project supported activities which have helped
more than 3,500 rural youth to get trained in various skills and then becoming gainfully employed. Most

of these people belonged to disadvantaged sections of our society.

* Credit Information and Credit Rating - The Project has supported capacity building of Credit
Information Bureau of India Ltd. (CIBIL) for strengthening credit information on MSMEs. CIBIL has
been able to increase its MSME database of more than 42 lakh as at end March 2010 — almost 80%
of its total credit history related enterprise database. The total number of Credit Information Reports
generated has gone up to 1,59,516 till March 31, 2010 which indicates its increasing efficacy in credit

dispensation.

The Project has also supported capacity building of SME Rating of Agency Ltd. (SMERA) to increase
credit rating awareness among MSMEs and achieve higher number of credit ratings of MSMEs. SMER A
has completed 6,599 ratings till March 2010 and organized 550 events for awareness and information
dissemination. With the help of the Project, SMERA has recently launched a model for ‘Green Rating’
for MSME:s for the first time in the country.

* Technical Assistance to Banks/FIs - This component of the Project aims at capacity building of
banks in innovating the delivery mechanisms, modifying processes, launching new products, training of
officials in MSME lending, etc. The Project has so far supported capacity building of about 2,000 ofticials
of different Banks / Fls in various areas like Environment Management Framework, Credit Scoring,

Downscaling techniques, Risk Capital Financing and Procurement Guidelines.

* Policy Advocacy - In order to strengthen the policy/legal/regulatory framework, the Project provides
technical assistance in promoting informed and evidence based dialogue in the public domain on key policy

measures that are critical to establishing a more efficient policy framework for MSME development.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of auto components at Chennai, Tamil Nadu.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of injection and blow moulds at Balanagar, Andhra Pradesh

C. Other Promotional Initiatives

(¢}

Micro Enterprises Business Information Counselors (MEBIC) - In order to foster
entrepreneurship and remove information asymmetry within micro enterprises of underserved
regions, the Project took an initiative for developing a cadre of BDS providers for counselling, initial
handholding and development of micro enterprises in North-Eastern region as Micro Enterprise
Business Information Counselors (MEBIC). Around 745 prospective entrepreneurs have been

provided counseling services as on March 31, 2010.

National Level Mentoring to MSMEs - Capacity building assistance has been sanctioned to
PRIME Database for development of a portal wiww.msmementor.in This web-based platform would
host the database of different categories of service providers and search tool for the MSMEs to
avail such services. Through this e-platform, MSME:s are expected to get various benefits from the

concerned BDS professionals.

Support to Faridabad Small Industries Associations (FSIA) - A grant has been sanctioned to
build the capacity of FSIA to channelise larger credit flow to its MSME members for meeting their
unplanned credit needs. As on March 31,2010, 24 MSMEs have been provided financial support.

Modified Rural Industries Programme: The project has started the modified version of Rural

Industries Programme (RIP) in 2 pilot locations with a focus on sustainability of the activities.

Support to METALAB, a common testing facility Centre at Jamnagar - The support from
the Project has helped the Jamnagar Factory Owners Association to set up a common facility centre
in a record time. The centre has provided its services to about 900 MSMEs. The Centre has also

leveraged additional Government funds and already started generating cash surplus.

Scheme on Energy Efficiency in MSME Clusters - SIDBI has launched a programme on
Energy Efticiency, initially in 19 MSME clusters with focus to train about 5,000 MSME units and
complete energy audit of 500 enterprises. Besides capacity building, the MSMEs will also be linked
to credit assistance by banks / Fls.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of electrical stamping press at Faridabad, Haryana.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of steel plates at Ernakulam, Kerala.

Initiatives relating to SFCs

* Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with SFCs - In order to improve the operational and
financial performance of SFCs, the Bank has MoU with 12 SFCs. The financial position of 10 MoU
SECs registered improvement in the post-MoU period. The overall NPA level of MoU SFCs declined
from 56% during FY 2002-03 to 21% during FY 2008-09. MoU SECs could also contain NPAs out
of fresh sanctions at less than 5%. With the visible improvement in results and business performance
post-MoU, the financial position of these SFCs is expected to improve further in the coming years.
The first 5- year phase of the MoU period had expired during FY 2009-10. Looking at the need for
continued mentoring and hand-holding support and with a view to further consolidating the gains
made so far and also to address the emerging challenges, it was decided to renew the MoU with SFCs
concerned for a further period of five years. Accordingly 7 SFCs, viz. APSFC, HFC, KFC, KSFC,
MPFC, RFC and WBFC have entered into fresh MoU with the Bank, along with their respective
State Governments. The other three SFCs, viz. DFC, HPFC and TIIC are following up with their State

Governments for obtaining early concurrence for re-execution of the MoU.

* Regulatory Directives - SIDBI has taken various initiatives as part of compliance to RBI regulatory
requirements. Up-to-date Income Recognition and Asset Classifications (IRAC) norms have been
issued to SFCs and their compliance thereto is being monitored. The MoU SFCs have switched over
to accrual system of accounting. SIDBI has circulated draft valuation policy for SFCs for their loans
and advances and also other assets for implementation. The Bank is also in the process of preparing a

draft “Loan Policy” and “Risk Management Policy” for adoption and use by SFCs.

* Refinance Scheme under JICA-LoC - In view of the growing need for energy saving and
importance of energy conservation for sustainable development and improvement in profitability as
an outcome of implementing energy saving measures, a new Refinance Scheme for Energy Saving Projects
(RSES) for MSMEs was launched under Japan International Co-operation Agency - Line of Credit (JICA-
LoC).The overall objective of the RSES is to promote energy saving in the MSME sector, thereby contributing

to environmental improvement and economic development in the country.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing injection and blow moulds at Balanagar, Andhra Pradesh.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of auto components at Chennai, Tamil Nadu.

* Joint Financing with SFCs: In order to provide adequate and timely assistance to MSMEs on a risk
sharing basis and also help SFCs to retain existing good MSME clients and broaden their operating
canvass, the Bank on a pilot basis, had launched joint financing with Andhra Pradesh State Financial
Corporation (APSFC) and Rajasthan Financial Corporation (RFC).The arrangement was subsequently
extended to Kerala Financial Corporation (KFC) and Tamilnadu Industrial Investment Corporation
(TIIC).With a view to bringing about further flexibility in the arrangement, refinance was also extended

to SFCs for the term loan sanctioned by them under such joint financing arrangement.

* Enhancement in Limit of Accommodation and ceiling on refinance for SFCs : In order to
encourage MSMEs to corporatise their establishments and to ensure faster credit delivery to MSMEs
from SFCs, the Bank has, in terms of proviso to Section 26 of the SECs Act, decided to permit SFCs
to provide assistance to individual units up to Rs.10 crore in case of a corporation or a company or a
co-operative society under Section 26(i) of the Act,. Consequently, refinance ceiling per unit at 100%
of the loan amount was enhanced from Rs. 5 crore to Rs.10 crore in case of a corporation/company/
cooperative society in the sector. However, refinance to medium enterprises stood reduced to 80% of
the term loan amount subject to a ceiling of Rs 10 crore. The refinance ceiling in case of proprietorship

concerns / partnership / trusts, etc. has, however, been retained at Rs.2 crore per enterprise.
International Co-operation

In order to foster greater interaction with MSMEs worldover and their policy makers for mutual experience
sharing and benefiting, the Bank continues to hold parleys and interaction with MSME professionals and
representatives of industry associations of foreign countries. These initiatives of the Bank are expected to not

only build the international brand image of SIDBI, but also strengthen bilateral ties.

During the year 2009-10, International Co-operation Division had held interactive meetings with
government officials from UK, Germany, Italy, France, Japan, Republic of Congo, Oman, Rwanda, South
Africa, Botswana, etc. Some of these countries evinced interest in forging alliance with SIDBI for the mutual

development of MSMEs in their countries.
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Strategic dialogue with delegates from Germany.
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Strategic dialogue with delegates from UK.

The brief highlights of some of the meetings are:

Shri R M Malla, CMD participated in the Annual Meeting of International Monetary Fund (IMF)-
World Bank held at Istanbul, Turkey during October 02-07, 2009. The central themes of discussions at

the meeting were on topics, such as, Global Crisis and Policy responses, Crisis and the Poor, etc.

On behalf of CGTMSE, Shri Malla attended the meeting of Asian Credit Supplementation Institution
Confederation during November 09-13, 2009 at Taipei, Taiwan.

Shri Malla attended the KfW sponsored 2009 Financial Sector Development Symposium for “Preserving
Access to Finance during Global Crisis” during December 03-04, 2009 at Berlin, Germany.

Shri Rakesh Rewari, DMD attended ADFIAPs 6th International Forum for Chief Executives of
Development Finance Institutions in Manila, Philippines during October 28-29, 2009. The theme of
this meeting was “Leading the Recovery: Environmental, Social and Governance Imperatives for DFIs”
which attracted about 100 CEOs and senior officers from ADFIAP’s member institutions.

A four-member delegation from Oman Development Bank (ODB), Muscat, visited SIDBI on November
03,2009 for interactions on credit ratings, risk capital, venture capital,asset reconstruction, credit guarantee,

microfinance, etc.

A 10-member Italian business delegation comprising various MSME representatives visited SIDBI on
November 11, 2009 for an overview of the MSME sector in India and to explore the possibilities for

collaborations.

A KfW team headed by Mr. Haje Schuette, Division Chief, Financial & Pvt. Sector, Asia visited SIDBI
during November 16-18, 2009. The delegation reviewed the status of KfW’s ongoing three Lines of

Credit to SIDBI and discussed issues relating to innovative financing in various areas.

A 10-member delegation from Industrial Development Corporation (IDC) Women’s Group of South
Africa visited India during December 05-15, 2009 and interacted with senior officials of SIDBI,
SVCL, SMERA and ISARC in Mumbai on December 08, 2009.They also visited some of the assisted
units of SIDBI.
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Signing of Line of Credit with KfW, Germany.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of Auto A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacuring heavy
Components at Panchkula, Chandigarh. forged components at Pithampur, Madhya Pradesh.

IDBI achieved accelerated growth in its total credit sanctions and disbursements to the MSME sector

during FY 2009-10.The credit sanctions increased to Rs. 35,521 crore and the disbursements increased
to Rs. 31,918 crore. Direct credit grew by 34.5 percent to reach Rs. 9,160 crore during the FY. The
Cumulative disbursements stood at Rs.1,64,331 crore as on March 31, 2010.

Table 3.1: Overall Operations
(Rs. crore)

Schemes FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10

Sanc. Disb. Sanc. Disb.

A. Indirect Credit

Refinance 19,260.98 18,534.24 19,926.09 18,584.82
Equity assistance (Indirect) 8.80 9.18 - -
Micro Finance (including P&D Assistance) 1,920.73 1,746.19 2,972.35 2,671.61
Resource support to institutions/agencies 1,224.33 1,197.08 2,003.94 1,501.60
Sub-total 22,414.84 21,486.69 24,902.38 22,758.03

B. Direct Credit

Term Loan under Direct Credit Schemes 2,323.58 2,498.95 4,153.20 2,849.13
MSME R eceivable Finance 4,177.90 4,050.21 6,332.19 6,154.24
Other Credit Facility 271.69 261.99 133.57 156.57
(Including Bulk Credit and Venture Capital)

Sub-total 6,773.17 6,811.15 10,618.96 9,159.94
Total Credit (A + B) 29,188.01 28,297.84 35,521.34 31,917.97
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(TS W)
T Tareit= a¥ 2008-09 o a9 2009-10
EED 18,162.75 17,438.36 18,465.49 17,325.29
T feeii e 1,098.00 1,095.65 1,460.60 1,259.53
T 3 foarg frm 0.23 0.23 0.00 0.00
T 19,260.98 18,534.24 19,926.09 18,584.82
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of Plastic Packaging Materials (Pet Bottles) at Goregaon West and
Goregaon East, Mumbai, Maharashtra.

1. Indirect Credit
1.A. Refinance Assistance

SIDBI, being primarily a Refinancing Institution, has been according greater thrust on augmenting the
resource base of Primary Lending Institutions (PLIs) like banks, SFCs, MFls, etc, so that higher credit flows
to the MSME sector. In this endeavour, SIDBI has received substantial support from Government of India
and Reserve Bank of India.

In order to enhance credit delivery to MSE sector, SIDBI had received a Special Refinance Facility of
Rs. 7,000 crore from RBI during FY 2008-09, which was available till March 2010. This refinance amount
was fully allocated to public sector banks (Rs. 6,390 crore) and SFCs (Rs. 610 crore). The refinance facility
was fully repaid to RBI on March 31, 2010.

Further,as announced in the Union Budget 2009-10,1n order to facilitate flow of credit to MSEs at reasonable
rates, Rs. 4,000 crore were provided to SIDBI as a special fund out of Rural Infrastructure Development
Fund (RIDF).The purpose was to incentivise banks and SFCs to lend to MSEs by refinancing 50 per cent
of their incremental lending to MSEs.The entire Rs 4,000 crore fund was drawn by SIDBI and an amount
of Rs. 3,800 crore was sanctioned and disbursed to 16 Public Sector Banks and about Rs. 200 crore to select
SECs. SIDBI’s sanctions and disbursements under refinance support to PLIs stood at Rs. 19,926 crore and
Rs. 18,585 crore, respectively (Table 3.2).

Table 3.2 : Refinance Assistance to Primary Lending Institutions (PLIs)
(Rs. crore)

FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10
Institutions
Sanc. Disb. Sanc. Disb.
Banks 18,162.75 17,438.36 18,465.49 17,325.29
SECs 1,098.00 1,095.65 1,460.60 1,259.53
SIDCs 0.23 0.23 0.00 0.00
Total 19,260.98 18,534.24 19,926.09 18,584.82
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Seminar on Benefits and Usage of Information and Communication Technology in Small and Medium Enterprises at Jodhpur,
Rajasthan.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Gurgaon, Haryana.

1. B. Resource Support to Institutions

In order to facilitate channelising credit to a large number of MSMEs and infrastructure projects having
linkages to MSMEs, SIDBI provides resource support to various financial intermediaries like NBFCs,
State Electricity Boards (SEBs), factoring companies and other institutions having linkages with this sector.
Sanctions and disbursements under resource support to such institutions during the FY 2009-10 increased
to Rs. 2,004 crore and Rs. 1,502 crore, registering growth of 63.7 percent and 25.4 percent, respectively
(Table 3.3).

Table 3.3 : Resource Support to Institutions

(Rs. crore)

Institutions FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10

Sanc. Disb. Sanc. Disb.
NBECs 239.00 186.75 7.50 7.50
STL-SEBs/Power Corporations 0.00 25.00 - -
Others 985.33 985.33 1,996.44 1,494.10
Total 1,224.33 1,197.08 2,003.94 1,501.60

2. Direct Retail Credit

SIDBI provides direct credit to complement the efforts of banks/Fls in augmenting the flow of credit
to MSME sector. This also enables the Bank to provide tailor-made products and services for MSMEs,
leveraging on unique expertise and exposure gained over the past two decades. Direct credit assistance is
classified into four broad segments, i.e. (a) Term Loan, (b) Working Capital through arrangement with IDBI
Bank, (c) MSME Receivable Finance and (d) Non - Fund based facility. SIDBI has constantly endeavoured
to expand its product range in line with the growing needs of India’s MSMEs.
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A Seminar on Currency Futures at Varanasi, Uttar Pradesh.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in textile processing at Faridabad, Haryana.

s

2.A. Term Loan / Working Capital Assistance / MSME Receivable Financing

Term Loans are provided to MSME: for capital investment, modernisation / technology upgradation, etc. Working
capital assistance is provided through IDBI Bank Ltd to meet the regular working capital needs of MSMEs. During
FY 2009-10, the term loans and working capital loans disbursements stood at Rs. 2,849 crore (Table 3.4).

Financing of receivables is an important tool for augmenting liquidity for MSME units by providing them
with financial assistance against the goods sold and / or services rendered by them to big purchaser companies.
SIDBI has two offerings in this domain, namely, a Receivable Finance Scheme (RES) and a Seller — wise
Receivable Finance Scheme (SRFS). During the year under review, the Bank provided receivable financing

amounting to Rs. 6,154 crore, which reflected a growth of 52% over the preceding year (Table 3.4).

Table 3.4 : Term Loan /Working Capital / Receivable Financing
under Direct Credit Schemes

(Rs. crore)

Schemes FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10
Sanc. Disb. Sanc. Disb.
Term Loan 2,094.08 2,300.86 3,860.95  2,685.09
Working Capital / Working Capital Term Loan 229.50 198.09 292.25 164.04
MSME Receivable Financing 4,177.90 4,050.21 6,332.19  6,154.24
Total 6,501.48 6,549.16 10,485.39  9,003.37

2. B. Non-Fund based Facility

Non-fund based services like Letters of Credit (both foreign and inland), services for appraisal, management,
loan syndication, Guarantees, etc. arise out of niche requirements of MSMEs which need such support in
addition to services provided within the traditional banking framework. SIDBI’s schemes under non-fund
based facilities have shown good performance in FY 2009-10. Summary of business under non-fund based
facility during FY 2009-10 is provided in Table 3.5.
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A Seminar on Currency Futures at Jaipur, Rajasthan.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of auto components at Chennai, Tamil Nadu.

Table 3.5: Non - Fund based Facility
(Rs. crore)

Schemes FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10
No. Amount No. Amount
Foreign Letter of Credit 103 304.42 190 101.12
Inland Letter of Credit 54 20.08 73 11.36
Guarantees 148 28.78 163 23.90
Total 305 353.28 426  136.38

Others

In addition to retail credit, the Bank assistance to MSME sector also includes risk capital/ assignment of
MSE loans/ infrastructure financing / venture capital / securitization to help augment the flow of credit to
the sector.

Micro Finance

Micro finance has emerged as an important conduit of financial inclusion to reach out to the bottom-of-
the-pyramid section of the population. SIDBI has sought to boost development of micro finance sector by
need-based financial assistance to MFIs.

Reflecting the Bank’s focus on developing its micro finance services, sanctions, disbursements and credit
outstanding of SIDBI's micro finance registered a strong growth during the FY 2009-10.The total sanctions
under micro finance surged by 55.0 percent to Rs. 2,970 crore, while disbursements increased by 53.3
percent to Rs. 2,670 crore. The outstanding amount under micro finance crossed the Rs. 3,000 crore mark
for the first time and stood at Rs.3,812 crore as on March 31, 2010, recording a growth of 78.4 percent over

the preceding year. The details of the micro finance operations of the Bank are given in Chapter 4.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of precision components and moulds at Balanagar, Andhra Pradesh.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Faridabad, Haryana.

Promotional and Developmental Assistance

The Bank extends loans and grants to agencies giving Promotional & Developmental (P & D)
support to the MSME sector. The Bank’s P&D assistance puts emphasis on entrepreneurship
development and enterprise promotion. The sanctions and disbursements under various P&D
schemes and activities aggregated about Rs. 2 crore each during FY 2009-10. Details of the Bank’s
P&D activities are furnished in Chapter 4.

SIDBI as Nodal Agency for Government Schemes

Inaddition toits direct and indirect credit operations, SIDBI also plays a pivotal role in implementation
of various schemes for MSME sector undertaken by the Government of India. There are a number
of focused schemes under implementation for the sector and SIDBI has played an important role
in the implementation of these schemes over the years. Presently, SIDBI is acting as a nodal agency

for the following schemes:

* Credit Linked Capital Subsidy Scheme (CLCSS) [Ministry of MSME]
* Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme for Textile Industry (TUES) [Ministry of Textiles]

* Integrated Development of Leather Sector Scheme (IDLSS) [Ministry of Commerce &
Industry]

* Scheme of Technology Upgradation/Setting up /Modernisation/Expansion of Food Processing
Industries (FPTUES) [Ministry of Food Processing Industries|

During the year, capital subsidy claims of 1,103 eligible MSEs were settled under CLCSS, amounting
to Rs.67 crore. Since the launch of the Scheme in October 2000, capital subsidy claims of 6,073
units aggregating Rs.263 crore (cumulative) have been settled. Similarly, TUFS; subsidy claims
(both interest incentive subsidy & capital / margin money subsidy) of 235 eligible textile units

for SIDBI’s directly assisted cases amounting to Rs.11 crore and subsidy claims aggregating Rs.35
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in printing at Erode, Tamil Nadu.
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crore have been disbursed to co-opted PLIs in respect of their assistance to MSMEs. Since the
launch of the Scheme in April 1999, Capital Subsidy and interest incentive claims for an amount of
Rs.526 crore (cumulative) have been settled. Under the IDLSS, which was launched in November
2005, cumulative claims of 810 units aggregating Rs.132 crore were settled including 141 units
amounting to Rs.31 crore during FY 2009-10. Under FPTUES, 40 cases have been recommended
for grant-in-aid amounting to Rs.8 crore to the Ministry of Food Processing Industries against

which subsidy amounting to Rs.3.43 crore has been released to 15 units.
NPA Management

Management of NPAs is an important part of operations of SIDBI. As at March 31, 2010, NPAs
under Indirect Assistance portfolio after Prudential Write-Off (PWO) continue to remain nil as
it was as on March 31, 2009. Under Direct Assistance portfolio, the stock of NPAs (after PWO),
increased to Rs. 77 crore in respect of 189 accounts as at March 31, 2010 from Rs. 32 crore
in respect of 34 accounts as on March 31,2009. The defaulting accounts are being monitored
intensively and appropriate recovery strategy is being adopted by the Bank on a case-to-case basis.
As a result of persistent follow-up and timely action, the Bank could recover sizable amount from
its Refinance and Direct Finance portfolio. Gross NPAs of the Bank to total portfolio outstanding
stood at 0.20 percent as on March 31,2010.The net NPAs of the Bank stood at 0.18 percent of net
outstanding as on March 31, 2010.

Resources Management

Resources aggregating Rs.25,689 crore were raised by SIDBI during FY 2009-10 as against
Rs.15,820 crore raised during FY 2008-09 (Table 3.6). The particulars of resources raised during
FY 2009-10 are detailed in the next page.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Faridabad, Haryana.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of corrugated boxes and carton at Village Jafferpur, Tehsil Gadarpur,
District Udham Singh Nagar, Uttrakhand.

Table 3.6: Resources raised by SIDBI
(Rs. crore)

Sources FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10

A. Domestic Borrowings

Special Refinance Facility from RBI 6,269.00 0.00
MSME (Refinance) Fund 3,325.57 4,000.00
MSME (Risk Capital) Fund 250.00 250.00
Deposits from Foreign Banks - -
Fixed Deposits 1,047.21 1,603.07
Certificate of Deposits 294.47 481.51
Commercial Paper = 10,668.03
Short Term Loan from Banks 2,050.00 300.00
Term Money Borrowing 1,200.00 0.00
Term Loan - 5,600.00
Unsecured Bonds = 1,800.00
Sub-total 14,436.25 24,702.61
B. Foreign Currency Borrowings

JICAVII # 1,279.21 47.44
KfW III (Portion II) @ 51.72 -
KW VII - 249.01
World Bank 25.36 682.36
IFAD, Rome * 4.56 -
Grant from DFID, UK ** 22.47 7.85
Grant under KfW IV @ 0.35 -
Sub-total 1,383.67 986.66
Total (A+B) 15,819.92 25,689.27

# Japan International Cooperation Agency, Japan.
@ Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau, Germany.
* International Fund for Agriculture Development, Rome.

** Department for International Development, UK
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Faridabad, Haryana.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of precision components and moulds at Balanagar, Andhra Pradesh.

I. Domestic Resources
a) MSME (Refinance) Fund

The deposits placed with the Bank by domestic scheduled commercial banks, including foreign banks,
having shortfall in achievement of priority sector lending targets against MSME (Refinance) Fund
aggregated Rs.4,000 crore during FY 2009-10.

b) MSME (Risk Capital) Fund

The deposits placed with the Bank by domestic scheduled commercial banks, having shortfall in achievement
of priority sector lending targets against MSME (Risk Capital) Fund aggregated Rs.250 crore during FY
2009-10.

c) Fixed Deposits

An aggregate amount of Rs.1,603.07 crore was mobilised by way of Fixed Deposits during FY 2009-10
as against Rs.1,047.21 crore during the previous year.

d) Unsecured Loans from Banks

An aggregate amount of Rs.5,900 crore was mobilised by way of unsecured loans from commercial banks
during FY 2009-10.

e) Unsecured Bonds
An aggregate amount of Rs.1,800 crore was mobilised by way of Unsecured Bonds during FY 2009-10.
f) Commercial Paper

An aggregate amount of Rs.10,668.03 crore was mobilised by way of Commercial Papers during FY
2009-10.

g) Certificate of Deposits
An aggregate amount of Rs.481.51 crore was mobilised by way of Certificate of Deposits during FY 2009-10.
II. Foreign Currency Resources

Resources in foreign currency aggregating Rs.986.66 crore were mobilised during the FY 2009-10.The
details are given in the next page :

63




arftter fae 2009-10

. —— TOPRAND 1525

a-

A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of corrugated boxes and carton at Village Jafferpur, Tehsil Gadarpur,
District Udham Singh Nagar, Uttrakhand.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Faridabad, Haryana.

a) World Bank Loan

USD 151.99 million (Rs.682.36 crore) was received from World Bank under World Bank additional
financing for MSME Financing and Development Project.

b) JICA Line of Credit

An amount of JPY 927.43 million (Rs.47.44 crore) was drawn during FY 2009-10 under JICA Line of
Credit for Energy Saving project. The total amount drawn is JPY 24.927 bn as on March 31, 2010 against
the total sanctioned loan amount of JPY 30 bn.

c) KfW Line of Credit for Microfinance
The Bank had contracted a Line of Credit for Euro 85 million from KfW, Germany in FY 2009-10 for

upscaling microfinance. An amount of Euro 41.19 million (Rs.249.01 crore) was drawn under the loan
in FY 2009-10.

d) DFID, UK

A grant amount of USD 1.68 million (Rs.7.85 crore) was received from Department for International
Development (DFID), UK.

III. Rating of SIDBI Bonds

During FY 2009-10, Credit Analysis and Research Ltd. (CARE) retained ‘CARE AAA’ (Triple A)
rating in respect of outstanding debt issues of SIDBI‘CARE AAA (FD)’ (Triple A (Fixed Deposit) rating
for the Fixed Deposit Programme of Rs.2,000 crore. CARE also assigned ‘CARE AAA’ (Triple A) rating
for SIDBI borrowing programme of Rs.2,000 crore through unsecured bonds against which Rs.300
crore was raised during FY 2009-10. CRISIL also assigned rating of AAA/Stable, the highest rating
for SIDBI bonds, aggregating to Rs.1,500 crore for bond issuance during FY 2009-10. Instruments

carrying the above ratings are considered to be of the best quality, carrying negligible investment risk.
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Release of Book at the hands of Hon’ble Finance Minister Padma Vibhushan Shri Pranab Mukherjee on the completion of 10

years of Micro Finance by SIDBI.
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Micro Finance Beneficiaries of SIDBI

he micro finance sector has experienced exponential growth in the last ten years. It has benefited

from widespread international recognition as a development tool, prompting multilateral lending
agencies, bilateral donor agencies, developing and developed country governments, and non-government
organizations to extend active support for the development of the sector. Donors and socially oriented
investors, having recognized the potential for social and financial returns have directed increased funding
towards micro finance. The performance of the sector has been characterized by good asset quality and
stable return on assets. An increase in commercial funding to the sector has enabled it to grow well
beyond what could have been possible with just donor and government support - the primary source of
funding a decade ago. As a result, micro finance has grown rapidly during the last decade and has emerged

as a potent tool of inclusive growth and attainment of Millennium Development Goals.

Alongside the growth witnessed by the sector, certain critical issues, such as, transparency in disclosing the
eftfective interest rate and other such charges to the borrowers, non-sensitisation towards gender issues,
lack of proper systems, absence of adequate internal controls, multiple lending, over indebtedness, etc. have
emerged which have created new pressures of competition and the pressing need for adoption of best

practices so as to ensure that the growth of the sector continues in an orderly and sustainable manner.

SIDBI has been impressing upon its partner MFIs to adopt and practise fair means of managing the MF
operations, besides sensitizing them on other emerging issues. SIDBI has been addressing the concerns like
transaction cost of MFIs, transparency in dealing with poor clients, effective cost of credit to clients, etc.
through its policy instruments at various fora and has also been laying due emphasis on self-governance

and self-regulation by individual MFIs.

Transparency in lending rates and client education has been on top of the agenda of the Bank. SIDBI’s
partner MFIs are regularly urged to declare all inclusive interest rates to the clients as well as educate them
about its applicability. SIDBI has been consistently pursuing with its partner MFIs to bring down the
interest rates by increasing efficiency and leveraging technology. SIDBI’s equity and quasi-equity products
in the form of long term patient capital has also helped the partner MFIs to rationalise the costs. Equity
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Launch of National Micro Finance Conference — 2010 at New Delhi.
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Deputy Managing Director, SIDBI addressing the gathering Executive Director, SIDBI addressing the gathering during
during National Micro Finance Conference, 2010. National Micro Finance Conference, 2010.

investment and subordinated debt in MFIs continued to be a focal point of the Bank and investments
amounting to Rs.450 crore were committed in 9 Microfinance Institutions through equity/ quasi-equity

products.

Strong micro finance growth in the Southern States and low penetration levels elsewhere, have also
been catching the attention of the stakeholders. SIDBI continues to lay stress on its lending operations
with special emphasis on the underserved regions, especially the North Eastern Region. Partner MFIs

continued to be prompted to expand outreach in the underserved regions.
Policy Modifications

The Bank has been undertaking periodic review of its credit and operational guidelines under the micro
finance programme with a view to redefining its strategy and operational procedures for increasing the
outreach and volume under MCS operations. In line with the above, the policy norms under micro credit
dispensation were updated/ modified during FY 2010, so as to align them with the developments in the

business environment, market conditions, feedback received from operating offices, partner MFIs, etc.

U Looking to the steady increase in the equity investments in the MF sector, likelihood of many of the
leading NBFC-MFIs/ transforming MFIs approaching investors including SIDBI for equity assistance,
enhanced requirement of capital for compliance of capital adequacy norms being stipulated by the
regulatory authorities, etc. the fund size of the “SIDBI Growth Fund for Micro Finance Institutions”
(SGE-MFI) was increased from Rs.50 crore to Rs.500 crore.

U In order to emphasize the importance of best practices to be followed by the Bank’s partner MFIs
and with a view to encouraging and monitoring the same, the Project Advisory Committee (PAC)
Nominees and the Nominee Directors of the Bank on the Boards of the various MFIs were advised
to sensitize the partner MFIs on the best practices being followed by select MFIs in regard to risk

mitigation, resource management, cash handling, transparency in interest rate, etc.

71




arftter fae 2009-10

o - =
\L ‘g g Qx _
‘f
i 5 N ""1 - ax '.i
y 1."- i -y f

Micro Finance Beneficiaries of SIDBI.
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Micro Finance Beneficiaries of SIDBI.

U With a view to expediting the rating process, two more rating agencies, viz. [CRA Ltd. and SMERA
were empanelled by the Bank as Rating Service Providers for carrying out Capacity Assessment Rating
of the Bank’s partner MFIs.

U In order to ensure timely and adequate financial support to the MFIs in tune with their requirement
and also to enable them to expand their outreach, the Privileged Partner Scheme (PPS) was introduced
for existing good customers of SIDBI with micro credit operations and proven repayment track record

of more than five years with SIDBI.

U Keeping in view the demands of the “Micro Enterprise Loan Scheme (MEL) — Direct Lending” and
based on the feedback received from the operating offices, it was decided to have a cluster centric

approach under the Scheme.

U In line with RBI directives towards transparency on the part of the borrower with regard to the credit
facility extended to them by other lenders in the sector, it was decided to share details of assistance with

other lenders in respect of lending under consortium arrangement/ multiple banking arrangements.

U In view of the changing requirements under Microfinance dispensation and to maintain uniformity in
respect of Microfinance proposals being submitted to various sanctioning authorities / committees for
consideration, the existing formats of the Appraisal Memorandum were structured and standardized to

capture all the required information.
Operations of SFMC

The cumulative assistance (including loans, grants, equity and quasi-equity) sanctioned under SIDBI’s micro
finance initiatives upto March 31, 2010 aggregated Rs.6, 832.90 crore, while cumulative disbursements
aggregated Rs. 6,068.07 crore. The outstanding micro credit portfolio of the Bank grew by over 78% to
Rs.3,811.86 crore, as on March 31,2010 vis-a-vis, Rs.2, 136.89 crore as on March 31, 2009.The number
of partner MFIs having loan outstanding with the Bank as on March 31, 2010 stood at 146. SIDBI’s MF
assistance through partner MFIs has benefited more than 340 lakh disadvantaged people, most of them

being women. The comparative operational highlights are given in the following table:
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Micro Finance Beneficiaries of SIDBI.
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Micro Finance Beneficiaries of SIDBI.

Table 4.1: Assistance under Micro Credit

(Rs. crore)
Sr. Particulars FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10 Cumulative
Sanc. Disb. Sanc. Disb. Sanc. Disb.
1 Term Loans 1,872.15  1,686.75 2,518.64 2,512.87 6,211.42  5,764.89
2 Liquidity Management Support (LMS) 0 0 0 0 6.60 6.47
3 Transformation Loan (TL) / Corpus 8 8 0 0 23.05 19.05*
Support for Transformation
4 Subordinate Debt 0 0 395 100 395 100
5  Equity Support 24.18 24.05 56.66 56.79 96.55 87.55
6 Capacity Building grant to MFIs 3.28 12.15 0 0 67.04 58.78
7 Risk Fund for smaller MFIs 4.30 4.30 0 0 7.28 7.28
8  Risk Fund for Two-Tier MFIs 3.00 3.00 0 0 3.00 3.00
9 Other capacity building grants 0.87 3.36 0 0 22.96 21.05
Total 1,915.78 1,741.61 2,970.30 2,669.66 6,832.90 6,068.07
10 Loan outstanding 2,136.89 3,811.86
11 No. of beneficiaries assisted through 340 lakh

partner MFIs

* Transformation Loan of Rs.3 crore has since been converted into Equity of the MFIs concerned.
Initiatives in the underserved States including North-Eastern Region

Taking cognizance of the regional growth asymmetry and with a view to upscaling and widening the

outreach ofits micro finance operations, the Bank has been constantly taking several proactive steps to increase
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the flow of assistance to hitherto underserved areas, viz. North Eastern Region (NER) and in States like
Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Uttarakhand, Bihar, West Bengal, Jharkhand, Orissa, Chattisgarh,
etc. These include development of local MFIs, inducing larger MFIs from the Southern states to expand
outreach in underserved areas, incubation of new start-up MFIs promoted by microfinance professionals,
intensifying its effort in identifying suitable MFIs who have the potential of becoming long term partners and

providing stand-alone Capacity Building (CB) support. Some of the major initiatives are:

% During the FY 2009-10, the Bank was able to add 15 new MFI partners in the underserved States,
taking the total number of partners in these States to 81.The aggregate assistance sanctioned by way
of term loans to MFIs in the underserved States, during the year, stood at Rs. 793 crore vis-a-vis Rs
445.24 crore during the previous year, registering an impressive growth of over 78%. The increased
thrust on development of underserved States resulted in the share of these States being 28% in the total

outstanding portfolio under micro finance in FY 2009-10.

% During the year under review, the Bank was able to bring 2 new partners and 50 Micro Enterprise
Loans from the NER under its fold. The total number of partners from the NER currently stands at 10,
besides 55 loans under MEL.

% Besides, Bandhan, an MFI operating from West Bengal, was allocated Rs.25 crore towards its operations
in the NER.

Portfolio Risk Fund

The Government of India has committed support of Rs. 150 crore under Portfolio Risk Fund (PRF) Scheme,
which is being utilized by the Bank for meeting 7.5% of the term loan towards security cover (against the
normal requirement of 10%) of the MFIs requirements under Micro Credit Scheme for providing loan
assistance to MFIs in the underserved states and underserved pockets/ districts in other states (with emphasis
on SCs, STs, Minority, OBCs and women). The PRF corpus is available for a period of 5 years with eftect
from FY 2006-07 and aims to cover 50 lakh beneficiaries throughout the country. As on March 31, 2010,

about 60 lakh beneficiaries have been covered under PRE
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Under PRE the loan disbursement to eligible MFIs, during the year, stood at Rs.510.31 crore, with
utilization of Rs.38.27 crore being 7.5% of eligible disbursement. Cumulatively, as on March 31, 2010, the
disbursement to eligible MFIs under PRF stood at Rs.1,299.68 crore, thereby utilizing Rs.97.48 crore,
being 7.5% of eligible loan disbursements.

Human Resources Development for micro finance sector

Ofticers of the Bank were nominated for training cum exposure visit on micro finance to Bangladesh

and for a study tour programme on micro finance and SME Financing in Manila.

Two officials of the Bank were nominated for a training programme on “Micro and SME Finance in

Theory and Practice” at Harvard Kennedy School, Cambridge.

The Bank nominated 2 officers for participating at the annual training event of MicroSave Pvt, Ltd.
branded as “Applied Microfinance Institute” (AMI) at Jaipur.

In view of the increased focus of SEMC on equity investments in MFIs and the growing number of
offers of investment from various agencies, officials of the Bank were nominated for a programme on
“MFI Valuation and Investments” conducted by M2i in New Delhi. Four officials were nominated for
a two-day training programme titled —“Foundation Course for Investment Professionals” conducted by
Indian Venture Capital Association (IVCA) in New Delhi.

Keeping in view the importance of effective board governance and risk management in MFIs, officials
of the Bank were nominated for a two-day training program on “Risk Management and Governance
in MFIs” conducted by Sa- Dhan in New Delhi.

With a view to improving the knowledge base of the newly inducted SEMC officials, a “Familiarization
programme on Micro Credit” was conducted in Chennai. The three-day programme was attended by
22 ofticials of the Bank.

International Collaborations

The collaboration with IFAD, Rome, has been underway since April 01, 2002. The Bank has fully drawn
the committed amount of SDR 16.35 million from IFAD. As part of the project completion exercise of the

79




arftter fae 2009-10

Micro Finance Beneficiaries of SIDBI.

SN 1 %, T e eheiian & TT-T1Y &5 & T SHRGHUR! I fofel | e 8 S = wieern
T G U YehTeT ST, foT8 Tt it = Teienm foham | afasrr & Seaifie 3 [ & srioa Ty
B TR I o foha |

o e 8 T, e el & e 1oy fo Searal A UEd § GUR & 7T hSeiees W dietitals:
(FUHESR] ), ST o6 T 8.5 218 T2 b 0 FaTTell T 0,169 F21S 72 b Fercivy AT oh for e e wymetier
T TR 7T €| 59 arIar & 07 aT) o & SEamTer 31ed fomt el 1 %0 &4 % fore fpar o @
©, I o o fomt & T 31T U 2 9 | & i 52 o SEHTet Rags W 99T 377 9T 31eq
T et ) gfereqor 37, 399- S Wik & Gor, SHfaH Jeais Aisga & fawm, Siefie ares &
STTT o & H AT ST U &7e7el] fF7wor Hefelt o, Her-UIed 37eq ford Searstt # Hara Tafcal qor
feroi T e U o ® T S TEraR 37 fov Seareil i 07 e oiar-Tdte/ Jorel! orar-aae
% o {3 ST | el & 3favia Femss 3 31 HIE 2010 TF 4.1 FS T &l AR TG G R |

S T 5 T AR SToR Hi F 0T FerdT F e T g S F g -qusitr ke, S s @
<HITC TR X R i, ik 9% O faferse foia Srisn! & Hrem § ofcid o, Jad 3am! &
R S T Heh, 51l A o 37cq ot & &l e fomiiar ArSTrell & Qe ©f | 9 %07 o 919 30 T
SR SR e &1 Tl Ferrd off el | &ed e o "@rgar g7 AT 50,000 T ¥ 10 TG €9 T
% FU WHA ¢ |

e 7 TS 3R e arey fom & gfs oines ufRaEstr & Sfaid f9 5% @ 30 s SMRE! sfek &1
07 ol % | Teferey RS T 329 AT forei Searl 3 FRPeT B SEHIe FEd 5T eIy 37
% e i & fITs: oy fom Faneht 7% e ¥ gfes FIAT €, 1 R 3 oreq fom weneht % i v
fofPrreTR. fereit Toter @t g foa ST o |

far-uearsoT

FISTaT T51d & S S 7 37eq for weeeit & gRwiRa fafeme g, uree 3R Ueeh-orggd Taid &
o DR, Trier, FeErenasit o R -faf e o Fristt & Hrem § e o7 2 et o Semd
T S T | 0 T F9 e I8 R R T g |

80




Annual Report 2009-10

" t\ \..

s w - ﬂm ’ i /: ‘

Micro Finance Beneficiaries of SIDBI.

programme, a project completion workshop was organized which was attended by the collaborators and also
major stakeholders of the sector. The success of the project was showcased by the Bank and acknowledged by
all those who attended the workshop.The collaborators’ perspective on the project reflected their satisfaction

in having SIDBI as a partner and implementing agency.

The Bank has signed an agreement with Kreditanstalt fur Wiederautbau (KfW), Germany for loan support
of Euro 85 million and financial contribution of Euro 1.69 million for improving access to microfinance
products in India among the poor, particularly women. The loan component of the support is being used to
provide loans to MFIs for on-lending to micro finance sector. The capacity building component would be
used to provide training to SIDBI staff and partner MFls, creation of a web based platform, development of a
risk assessment module, select capacity building interventions in the area of transfer of industry benchmarks,
best practices to assisted MFIs and for carrying out of loan portfolio audits / system audits of our partner MFIs,
as a prudent risk management measure. Till March 31,2010, KfW had released an amount of Euro 41 million

under the collaboration.

The Bank has entered into collaboration with Asian Development Bank (ADB) for loan support of USD 50
million which would provide SIDBI with long tenor funding to support to tiny, micro enterprises through
specific financing programmes which complement the various financing schemes in the Indian Micro finance
sector. The loan would be accompanied by technical assistance of upto USD 3 million. The target group covers
the ‘missing middle’- 1.e. loans between Rs.50,000 to Rs.10 Lakh

The Bank has obtained loan of USD 300 million from the World Bank under the project“Scaling Up Sustainable
and Responsible Microfinance”. The objective of the proposed project is to scale up access to sustainable
microfinance services, particularly in the underserved areas of the country, including through innovative

financial products and leveraging support to foster a responsible finance agenda amongst Indian MFIs.
Policy Advocacy

In line with its existing practice, the Bank continued to support initiatives for a well-defined regulatory structure,
transparent and customer-friendly practices among the MFIs through seminars, conferences, workshops and

other interactive events, some of which are given on next page.
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*  The Annual Policy Conference titled “Financial Inclusion and Responsible Microfinance” was co-
sponsored which was organized by Sa-dhan during March 2010 at New Delhi.

* A national level Micro Finance Conference titled “Walking the Tight Rope- Doing Good and Doing it
Well” organized by ACCESS Development Services (ADS) from October 26-28, 2009 at New Delhi was

supported and attended by major domestic and international players in the sector.

e The Bank co-sponsored two training programmes for unemployed youth intending to join MFIs,
conducted by ADS in the State of West Bengal.

* The Bank sponsored a workshop organized by Bandhan on “The expansion of innovative pro-poor
products initiated by MFIs in the underserved areas”. Representatives from 22 MFIs from the eastern

zone participated in the workshop.

* To commemorate the successful completion of a decade of the Bank’s service to the micro finance
sector, a documentary film and a report titled “A Decade of Empowerment of Women” were released
by the Hon’ble Union Finance Minister, Shri Pranab Mukherjee on January 31, 2010.

Energy Efficiency Promotion

Keeping in line with SIDBI’s overall intervention strategy for energy efticiency and with a view to taking
energy efficiency to the doorsteps of the poor, the Bank, under its micro finance dispensation, sanctioned a
term loan assistance of Rs.10 crore to a partner MFI for on-lending to its partner organizations for extending

loans to the ultimate beneficiaries in Manipur and other North Eastern states for purchasing solar lamps.
Rickshaw Sangh Programme

SIDBI entered into collaboration with American India Foundation (AIF) for launch of Rickshaw Sangh
Programme in Lucknow. The Rickshaw Sangh Programme at Lucknow marked the launch of 500
rickshaws.

The Rickshaw Programme, implemented through the Bank’s partner micro finance institutions, organizes
cycle rickshaw pullers to form their “Collectives” and offers an opportunity to mainstream them into the

formal banking system. The programme extends an integrated package which will not only ofter rickshaws
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but also an array of other add-on facilities like a no-frills bank account, a comprehensive insurance support
for the client and his spouse, besides mediclaim insurance and accidental insurance for the rickshaw puller,
insurance of the rickshaw, uniform, ID cards, municipal permits, mobile phones, etc.

The programme re-emphasizes the Bank’s mandate as an apex institution for development of micro
enterprises in the country, as it also offers “credit plus services” to the borrowers.

Future outlook

Micro finance holds tremendous promise for lifting the underprivileged out of poverty and for bringing
about a qualitative and sustainable socio-economic growth in the country. The vigour and viability of the
sector, therefore, needs to be sustained to serve the national goal of poverty alleviation and in line with the
Millenium Development Goal of reducing poverty by half, across the world by 2015. With the success of
micro finance programme and the high level of interest that the sector has generated in recent times, the
challenge now lies in leveraging the Foundation to ensure focused growth through responsible lending.
Promoting responsible finance and adherence to alaid down Code of Conduct would be a major intervention
by SIDBI, with support from the World Bank. Responsible lending initiative of the Bank would help in
improving management, governance and operational practices, besides adequate disclosures in the sector. As
part of its responsible finance initiative, SIDBI has created a Lenders” Forum comprising key MFI funders
with a view to promoting cooperation among MFI lenders for leveraging support to MFIs across the
sector to promote more responsible lending practices. The forum would seek to work towards voluntary
adoption of measures on governance, transparency, competitive practices and condition support to MFIs
on their adherence and adoption of these industry standards by building them into their covenants. It is
also envisaged that there would be adequate information sharing among the lenders and efforts would be
initiated towards common reporting systems to all its lenders by the MFIs concerned.

With a view to promoting transparency, SIDBI proposes to develop, in collaboration with the World Bank,
a common information platform for MFIs — The India Microfinance Platform (IMFP)- to provide and
disseminate valuable information on the Indian MFIs. Other initiatives proposed to be undertaken include
development of a Code of Conduct Assessment Tool for MFIs to assess their degree of adherence to the
voluntary microfinance Code of Conduct formulated by Sa-dhan and MFIN (Box No.4.1).
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Box 4.1: Code of Conduct (COC)

The Core Values and Voluntary Mutual Code of Conduct for MFIs were formulated by Sa-Dhan, the leading network of MFIs

in the country.

MEFIN, a self-regulatory organization formed by leading NBFC-MFIs in the country, has also formulated a Code of Conduct

(CoC) for its member institutions.

The core values talk of principles of integrity, quality of service, transparency, privacy, fair practices, feedback mechanism and

social values. The CoC defines the kinds of actions that are expected with respect to each principle.

Further, the Bank would continue to bring about refinements in its existing products and services to
meet the needs of the sector, while at the same time designing new and innovative products to meet the
emerging requirements. Since energy efficiency lending is emerging as one of the thrust areas, the Bank
would extend support to partner MFIs towards designing, developing and testing of new products and
services in this area. The Bank is exploring tie-ups with Insurance Companies having pan-India presence
for using the micro finance network to provide insurance products to the ultimate clients which would
help in bringing down the inherent risk and cost of lending. The Bank is also contemplating providing
technical support to MFIs in the field of housing microfinance, which would be mainly towards market

research and product design, capacity building of MFI staff, etc.

For greater inclusion, support to MFIs for onlending would continue to be the focus of SIDBI. Expansion
in the underserved States is now the thrust area for the Bank and would continue to remain so till these
States reach at par with their Southern counterparts. Besides, investment in equity and quasi- equity of
MFIs with potential and development of the micro enterprise sector would continue to remain the focus
area of the Bank.

The Bank is confident that its micro credit initiatives would contribute significantly towards building a
platform for responsible lending, leading to the development of a more formal, extensive, effective and

sustainable micro finance sector serving the poor in India.
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PROMOTIONAL & DEVELOPMENTAL INITIATIVES

The Promotional and Developmental (P&D) activities of the Bank are designed to achieve the twin objectives of
national importance, viz;

(a) Promotional - enterprise promotion resulting in creation of self-employment/ wage employment through
its select programmes, such as, Rural Industries Programme (RIP), Entrepreneurship Development Programme
(EDP),Vocational Training Programmes, etc. and

(b) Developmental - strengthening the MSME sector to face the emerging challenges of globalisation and growing
competition through select interventions, such as, Skill-cum-Technology Upgradation Programme (STUP), Small
Industries Management Programme (SIMAP), Cluster Development Programme (CDP), Marketing Assistance, etc.

Brief details about the programmes and the performance during the year are given below:
Rural Industries Programme (RIP)

*  RIP the flagship programme of the Bank, is a comprehensive enterprise support service programme for the benefit
of rural entrepreneurs. It aims at promoting viable rural enterprises leading to employment generation in rural
areas and use of local resources. The package of Business Development Services oftered under the programme
includes identifying and motivating rural entrepreneurs, identification of viable ventures based on local skills and
resources, training, appropriate technology and establishing linkages with the formal banking sector. Thus, RIP
addresses problems of rural unemployment, urban migration, under-utilisation of know-how; latent rural resources
and marketing of rural products. The incentive for RIP implementing agencies is dependent on their linking of
financing of the units from Banks/SFCs. During the year under review, the Bank extended the programme to a
new district, viz. Simdega district of Jharkhand. Cumulatively, upto March 31,2010, the RIP has been implemented
in more than 120 districts in 24 States. Around 35,000 enterprises have been promoted, including about 2,214 units
during the year. These enterprises have generated employment opportunities for over one lakh persons.

*  During this year, RIP has been suitably modified to include the business related aspects of livelihood and was re-
christened as Modified Rural Industries Programme [MRIP].The MRIP aims at promoting viable rural enterprises
leading to employment generation in rural India by facilitating availability of business services. It would create a
mechanism to provide help in identifying, motivating and guiding rural entrepreneurs in setting up industrial
ventures. It also aims at gainful utilisation of local resources. The target group of the programme is potential as well
as existing entrepreneurs in the rural /underserved areas/artisan clusters.
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Cluster Development Programme at Handicraft Cluster.

Entrepreneurship Development

The Bank’s Entrepreneurship Development Programmes (EDPs) aim at promotion of self-employed ventures
capable of generating employment opportunities, especially in rural areas targeting less privileged sections of the
society like women and SCs/STs. Established EDP institutions, such as, RUDSETI, Ujire are provided annual
support for conducting variety of entrepreneurship related programmes, such as, General EDPs, Product /Process
specific EDPs, Trainers’ Training Programmes, Courses for Development Consultants, etc. The stand-alone EDPs
conducted by upcoming NGOs /other agencies are also supported by the Bank. The incentive structure under
EDP is linked to promotion of units. During the year, 71 EDPs were supported by the Bank, including 43 by
RUDSETI, Ujire in which 1,248 beneficiaries were trained. As on March 31, 2010, the total number of EDPs
supported by the Bank since inception for various target groups was 2,732 covering about 67,839 participants.

SIDBI, in association with Union Bank of India, has set up a “Management & Skill Development Institute
[MSDI] at Jangipur in Murshidabad District, West Bengal. The objective for setting up this Institute is to give a
thrust to promotion of entrepreneurship and grounding of MSEs in the region. MSDI will cater to the needs of
beneficiaries under the RIP as well as other unemployed youth of the area.

Strengthening MSME Sector

o With a view to strengthen the existing MSME sector, the Bank supports reputed management / technology
institutions to offer management development programmes, viz. "Skill-cum-Technology Upgradation
Programme" [STUP] and "Small Industries Management Programme" [SIMAP]. The STUP aims at enhancing
technology profile of MSME units and the SIMAP targets qualified unemployed as well as industry-sponsored
candidates with the overall objective of providing competent managers to the MSME sector.

o Besides extending assistance in the form of corpus fund, the Bank also encourages new institutions which can
take up such specialised programmes and has been extending support for stand-alone STUPs, SIMAPs and
other awareness programmes. During the year, 15 STUPs and 4 SIMAPs were supported covering about 550
beneficiaries. As on March 31, 2010, the total number of STUPs and SIMAPs supported by the Bank since
inception were 1,475 and 288, respectively.

o During FY 2010, the Corpus support provided by SIDBI for conducting SIMAP and STUP was renewed to
four Institutions viz. II'T, Delhi; MIM, Bangalore; XIM, Bhubasneswar and CIMAP, Lucknow.

Cluster Development

The paradigm shift in the cluster development programme during the last few years is basically from technology
centric to a more comprehensive cluster development approach which include management practices, establishment
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Beneficiaries under Rural Industries Programme of SIDBI.

of marketing linkages, product/design development, skill upgradation, etc. During the year, 6 cluster development
programmes have been sanctioned in the North-Eastern region. These clusters are basically handicraft, handloom
and traditional industries dependent on local skills/ resources. The objective of these programmes is to strengthen
and improve the technical, designing and marketing skills of the participants/ artisans.

Support to Minorities

The Bank has extended assistance for programmes in minority dominated districts exclusively for the benefit of about

800 participants from minority communities. Over 3,300 participants from the minority communities would benefit

from the various P&D programmes.

Marketing Activities

*  Under the marketing activities, some of the important events supported by the Bank during the year include
INTEC-2009, organized by CODISSIA, Northern India International Trade Fair at Deharadun, WEP EXPO
2009 and TANSTIA at Chennai.

*  Many other programmes organised by various Institutes in different States for the benefit of more than 2700
entrepreneurs were assisted by SIDBI, with a view to encouraging and supporting the marketing efforts of micro
entrepreneurs.

*  The Bank also supported seminars/workshops during the year, such as, a two-day workshop on Micro finance
and Gender Poverty and a one-day National level workshop on Micro Finance Management and Organisational
Development at Kochi.

e  Annual State Level Convention and Seminar on Credit flow to MSMEs at Bhubaneswar, Vidharba Industries
Association, Nagpur were also supported by the Bank.

*  National Industry Trade Fair - Bilaspur Mela 2010 organised by Chhatisgarah Avam Shayak Udyog Sangh, Bilaspur
was also supported by the Bank. Many leading as well as emerging MSME:s of the state as well as of the National
repute participated in the Seminar.

Technical Consultancy Organisations

*  TCOs are an important intermediary in the industrial sector especially for micro and small enterprises. Besides
providing start-up services to an entrepreneur, they provide industrial and technical consultancy services to the
new as well as existing units./ prospective entrepreneurs.

* Anagreement for transfer of shareholding of TCOs in favour of SIDBI was executed by SIDBI and IDBI during
the year. SIDBI is the major shareholder in 9 of the 17 TCOs, viz. (1) APITCO, (2) BITCO, (3) J&KITCO, (4)
KITCO, (5) NECON, (6) NEITCO, (7) ORITCO (8) UPICO and (9) WEBCON.
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Inauguration of Rural Industries Programme of SIDBI.

Outlook

The emphasis on strategic and policy initiatives during the ensuing year would be aimed at strengthening,
deepening and significantly upscaling the reach of Promotional and Developmental services to the unemployed
youth and budding MSME entrepreneurs.

While the developmental needs of the MSME sector are extremely heterogeneous, the Bank has continued to
play the supporting role effectively over the years so as to promote entrepreneurship and improve the overall
competitiveness of the sector. The Bank’s focus in this area would continue with enhanced support for rural
development, as also the development of North Eastern and other backward regions with special thrust on
minorities and backward categories. Simultaneously, the thrust on cluster-based developmental activities would
also continue. It is expected that the cumulative eftect of the Bank’s persistent efforts in this regard would create

a perceptible impact in addressing the multifarious problems and emerging needs of the sector, besides creating

employment opportunities in this productive sector of the economy.

SIDBI’s Support for North Eastern Region (NER)

O The Bank accords special and focused attention to the development of North Eastern Region (NER) in
terms of micro finance, rural Industrialisation, handicraft cluster development, entrepreneurship development,
marketing support etc. During the year, total assistance of Rs.75 lakh was extended under various programmes
for the North Eastern Region. 22 districts in NER are covered under RIP as on March 31, 2010.

U The Bank has supported 34 clusters under Cluster Development Programme in different States of NER
covering activities like bamboo mat weaving, carpet weaving, handicrafts, handloom weaving, etc. These
cluster development initiatives would benefit about 2,786 artisans.

O A Counselling Centre for Micro & Small Enterprises was setup jointly by SIDBI and United Bank of India
for providing counselling services to budding entrepreneurs. Till March 31, 2010, the Centre has rendered
service to about 745 prospective entrepreneurs.

U The Bank has supported various vocational training programmes, marketing activities, seminars, exhibitions
covering over 3,500 participants from MSME sector in the NER. Further, with regard to institution building,
the Bank had co-promoted North Eastern Development Finance Corporation Ltd. (NEDFi) at Guwahati
and as a founder member had extended corpus fund to Indian Institute of Entrepreneurship (IIE), Guwahati
for setting up the Institute.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Gurgaon, Haryana.

Astrong commitment to Good Corporate Governance Practices (GCGPs) is the underlying principle of
the working and functioning of SIDBI. The Bank’s GCGPs encompass an entire gamut of professional
management, compliance to various codes of conduct, adherence to ethical business practices, etc. Towards
this endeavor, the Bank has put in place its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and documented various
initiatives in its first CSR Report, 2010 released on April 02, 2010 through the hands of Hon’ble Union
Finance Minister on the occasion of the 20" Foundation Day of the Bank.

Board of Directors/ Committees of the Board

The Small Industries Development Bank of India (Amendment) Act, 2000 provides for a fifteen-member
Board of Directors. Out of these, eight Directors are appointed / nominated by the Central Government
comprising Chairman and Managing Director (CMD), two whole time Directors, two Government officials
and three experts (including one from State Financial Corporations) having special knowledge or professional
experience. Out of the remaining seven Directors, three are nominated by the three largest shareholding
institutions, banks and insurance companies owned or controlled by the Central Government, while four are
elected by the public shareholders or alternatively, can be co-opted by the Board until assumption of charge
by the elected Directors. The Board, as on May 7, 2010, comprised eleven Directors, including CMD and a
Whole Time Director.

In terms of Gol notification dated March 01, 2007, Shri A Prabhakara ceased to be a Director on SIDBI’s
Board with effect from March 01,2010 on completion of his tenure of appointment. The Board placed on
record its high sense of appreciation of the valuable contributions made by Shri Prabhakara.

With the objective of giving focussed attention to various important issues, the Board has constituted
five Committees, viz. Executive Committee (EC), Audit Committee (AC), Risk Management Committee
(RiIMC), Committee for Supervision of SFCs (CfS) and Special Committee for Monitoring of Large Value
Frauds (SCMLVEF). Sanctions relating to credit proposals above a threshold limit and other such operational
matters are considered by the EC. The AC, in addition to overseeing the functioning of the Audit Department
and reviewing its major observations, also provides guidance in matters relating to finalization of accounts of
the Bank and observations made in RBI Inspection. The RiMC lays down policy and strategy for Integrated
Risk Management of the Bank. The CfS guides the Bank in respect of all the policies / matters pertaining

99




arftter fae 2009-10

Board of Directors and Senior Executives during Annual General Meeting of SIDBI.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing food items A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing water
at Indore, Madhya Pradesh. pumps at Indore, Madhya Pradesh.

to State Financial Corporations. With a view to provide focused attention on monitoring of frauds
involving amounts of Rs. 1 crore and above, SCMLVF has been constituted in terms of the guidelines
of Reserve Bank of India. Minutes of the meetings of the Committees, containing decisions made, are
submitted to the Board.

The Board held five meetings during the year, while the committees of the Board, viz. the Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee, Committee for Supervision of SFCs and
Special Committee for Monitoring of7 Large Value Frauds held seven, six, two, two and four meetings,
respectively. Besides, SIDBI held its 12" Annual General Meeting on, June 30, 2010 at Lucknow.

Shareholding Pattern

The shares of SIDBI are held by thirty five institutions / public sector banks / insurance companies
owned or controlled by Central Government, with Industrial Development Bank of India Ltd., State
Bank of India and Life Insurance Corporation of India being the three largest shareholders. The share-

holding pattern of SIDBI remained unchanged during the year under review.

Asset Liability Management Committee

The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the Bank is headed by the Chairman and
Managing Director and comprises Dy. Managing Director, Executive Director and other senior executives
of the Bank heading Risk Management, Credit, Resources & Treasury and Information Technology
Departments as its members. ALCO, , reviews and monitors the liquidity risk and interest rate risk in
the Bank on regular basis. The ALM system in the Bank is guided by the extant RBI guidelines and the
ALM Policy of the Bank.The ALM Policy is reviewed from time to time to bring in necessary changes in
line with extant regulatory requirements and the changing asset liability profile of the Bank. The ALCO
meetings were held at periodic intervals or as and when the market conditions so warranted during FY
2009-10 as per the ALM Policy. The Committee held five meetings, besides deliberating on the agenda by
circulation on regular basis during FY 2009-10 and made various recommendations, such as, revision in
interest rates on Fixed Deposits, revision in PLR, hedging of foreign currency liabilities, fresh borrowings
and cost thereof, etc.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Gurgaon, Haryana.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of electrical stamping press at Faridabad, Haryana.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee of the Bank formulates strategies as well as recommends various investment
options with regard to the Bank’ investment portfolio within the sphere of the Investment Policy of the
Bank and relevant RBI guidelines issued from time to time. The Investment Committee was reconstituted
once during FY 2009-10 and held 28 meetings to, infer alia, deliberate upon various investment proposals,
fixing of floor price, etc.

Secondary Market Committee

The secondary equity market operations in Treasury were resumed during the FY 2010 with the reconstitution
of Secondary Market Committee in July 2009 with a maximum cap of exposure of Rs.50 crore. The Sub-
Committee regularly monitors the stock movements of the potential scrips and then recommends selected
scrips in difterent sectors for consideration. The Committee was reconstituted once and held 14 meetings
during FY 2009-10.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit of the Bank plays a pivotal role in strengthening Corporate Governance and complying with
Management objectives to strengthen internal control and improve Risk Management.

Internal Audit Department (IAD) has been carrying out Operational and Management Audit (MA) of
Branch Oftices (BOs) / Zonal Offices (ZOs) / Head Oftice (HO) Departments on a regular basis. During
FY 2009-10, it was decided that Operational Audit (OA) of BOs would be conducted once in 12 months.
The bi-monthly Transactions Audit (TA) of Resources Management Department (RMD) pertains to debt
instruments of the Bank. Besides the above, IAD reviews the monthly Concurrent Audit reports of RMD
and organizes the quarterly Limited Review Audit of select BOs as advised by Statutory Auditors. During
the year, OA of 7 Micro Finance Branches (MFBs) has been initiated. Rating of all BOs and MFBs, based
on audit observations, continued during the year under review.

During conduct of audit, compliance to KYC/AML guidelines, verification of end use of funds, creation of
assets, adherence to guidelines, systems & procedures, etc. are emphasized. In order to have a better focus,
the audit observations are now grouped under the broad heads, viz. ‘major’ and ‘others’, depending on
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of electrical stamping press at Faridabad, Haryana.

perception of risk involved. Further, submission of compliance and proper closure of audit reports within
the stipulated time frame are given utmost priority.

Zonal Offices and Head Oftice Departments are subjected to MA on an annual basis which covers the
managerial, supervisory and controlling functions as well as important operational aspects.

During the year, 118 audits comprising 84 OAs, 12 Concurrent Audits of RMD, 6 TAs of debt servicing
activities of RMD, one TA of Mumbai Bandra Kurla Complex Branch Oftice, MA of 5 ZOs and 10 HO
Departments were completed.

Credit Audit (CA) was introduced during FY 2010 primarily to identify and rectify any shortcomings in
loan / security documentation and compliance of terms of sanction before effecting any disbursement and
thereby mitigate the risk involved in lending. CA was started on a pilot basis, from September 2009 for
BOs in Northern Zone and has since been extended to other Zones from December 2009. Under CA,
high value sanctions, i.e. sanctions / exposure above Rs.5 crore is covered. 10% of the proposals involving
sanctions between Rs.3 crore and less than Rs.5 crore are covered on a sample basis. During FY 2010, CA
was conducted in respect of 61 cases.

During RBI inspection, IAD coordinates with RBI Coordination Cell (RBICC) for smooth conduct of
the inspection and supplements the activities of RBICC.

IAD,at the request of Corporate Accounts Department (CAD), follows up with BOs for complete compliance
of the observations in the Statutory Audit Report and forwards the status of compliance to CAD to enable
them to issue Closure Certificate.

IAD, as a monitoring measure, follows up with all ZOs/ BOs/ identified HO Departments for submission
of annual Offsite Monitoring Statement for the period ended June 30. Also it follows up with ZOs for
submission of Monthly Status Report on the status of compliance of audit observations and issuance of
Closure Certificates to BOs.

[AD submits various memoranda to Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) as a measure of good Corporate
Governance. During the year, ACB met six times to discuss the memoranda submitted as per Annual Calendar.
Under ESA project, uploading of OA / MA activities in Audit Software have been undertaken.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of garments at Ludhiana, Punjab.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of special purpose machines and other allied engineering products at
Balanagar, Andhra Pradesh.

Interface

Shri R M Malla, CMD represented the Bank at various national and international fora including
important meetings of Government of India, Reserve Bank of India and Industry Associations. CMD
is also representing the Bank in National Board for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (NBMSME)
constituted by Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MoMSME), Gol. CMD is also
permanent invitee of High Level Committee on Lead Bank Scheme set up by RBI to review the scheme

with a focus on financial inclusion and recent development in the banking sector.

Shri Malla, held discussions with Mr. Yaves Boudot, the Country Head-India of French Development
Agency (AFD) on June 17,2009 along with Mr. Jerome Adam for a Line of Credit for energy efficiency
in MSME Sector.

A senior team from Qatar Development Bank (QDB) called upon Mr. Malla on July 8, 2009 to share
their experiences and learn about the activities of SIDBI and initiatives, such as, credit appraisal modules,

risk techniques, rating tools, guarantees for collateral free lending, etc.

Shri Malla attended High Level Task Force constituted under the chairmanship of Principal Secretary
to the Hon'ble Prime Minister to address the issues of MSME sector. The Task force in its 1st meeting
on September 25, 2009 decided to constitute 7 Sub-groups on Credit, Marketing, Labour, Exit Policy,
Infrastructure/Tech/Skill Development, Taxation & Special Packages for NER and J&K.

Shri Malla attended the Asian Credit Supplementation Institution Confederation during November
09-13 2009 at Taipei, Taiwan. During the visit, discussions were held with ofticials of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council (HKTDC) in Hongkong.

Shri Malla delivered the Keynote address during the Annual Global Conference on Entrepreneurship and
Technology Innovation (AGCETI) organized by IIT, Kanpur in association with Rensselaer Polytechnic
Institute, New York and MacMaster University, Canada on 15th January, 2010. SIDBI has supported IIT,
Kanpur for setting up of SIDBI Innovation & Incubation Centre (SIIC).
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of CNC machined components, precision tools at Balanagar,
Andhra Pradesh

* Shri Malla addressed the convocation ceremony of Jagan Institute of Management Studies (JIMS) on

various opportunities for setting up new enterprises/ventures in India.

®» Shri Malla attended the inaugural function of the Management & Skill Development Institute at Jangipur in
Murshidabad District, West Bengal on January 31, 2010.The Institute, jointly promoted by SIDBI and Union
Bank of India, would facilitate in skill upgradation of existing and potential entrepreneurs as also encourage
new entrepreneurs to set up viable units. During the function, Hon’ble FM released SIDBIs book titled “A

decade of Empowerment of Women” as also Film on “10 years of Micro Credit activities” of SIDBI.

* Shri Malla attended the two-day meeting of Micro Finance Institutions Network (MFIN) at Hyderabad
on 2nd and 3rd March 2010 wherein he spoke on "What SIDBI can offer to MFIs and what it wants
from MFIs."

* Under ADB-assisted loan to SIDBI, a signing ceremony in connection with the aforesaid project
was held on March 19, 2010 in New Delhi. While Dr. Anup Pujari, JS, DEA signed the Guarantee
Agreement on behalf of the Gol and the Loan Agreement was executed by the Country Director,
ADB, New Delhi, Mr. Hun Kim. CMD-SIDBI signed the Agreement from SIDBI side. DMD also

attended the ceremony.

» Shri Keiji Katai, Project Formulation Officer, JICA, Indian Office visited SIDBI on April 21, 2010 to
held discussion on the new Line of Credit to SIDBI.

* Shri Rakesh Rewari, DMD participated in the Forum on Financial Assets & Liabilities and Risk
Management held by Asian Development Bank in Singapore during July 29-31, 2009.

» Shri Rewari attended FICCI-IBA’s Annual Conference on “Global Banking: Paradigm Shift” on 9th
September, 2009 at Mumbai and participated as a Panelist in the session on ‘Growing Credit amidst a

slowdown — maintaining a fine balance’
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of CNC machined components, precision tools at Balanagar,
Andhra Pradesh
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in textile processing at Faridabad, Haryana.

* India Global Summit on MSMEs was organized by CII, New Delhi during November 20-21, 2009. Shri
Rewari, DMD was invited to address on “Dealing with Economic Cycles: How to Adapt ?” in one of the
sessions. Shri Dinesh Rai, ILA.S., Secretary, Ministry of MSME, Government of India and Shri Arun Maira,
Member, Planning Commission also participated at the Summit.

* TiE,New Delhi had organized a seminar on November 28,2009 at New Delhi on "Envisioning the Wired
SME". Shri Rewari, DMD, delivered a session on “Propelling Growth for SMEs”.

*  Shri Rewari, DMD, participated in the National Microfinance Conference organized by Sa-Dhan during
March 17-18, 2010 to reflect collectively on various contemporary issues, share experiences & innovations,
develop collaborations and synergies for the development of MF sector. The theme of the conference was
“Financial Inclusion & Responsible Microfinance”. Shri Rewari delivered a lecture on “Challenges to
Microfinance”.

= Shri Rewari, DMD held discussions with senior officers from ADFIAP's member institutions. Enroute, Shri
Rewari also met the senior management of Vertex group (a subsidiary of Tamasek Holdings (I) Pte Ltd.) at
Singapore on October 26, 2009 to explore possibility of working jointly in areas of Venture Capital.

Human Resources — Overview

Apart from the continued focus of Human Resources function to give the necessary impetus for the growth in
business of the Bank by providing the requisite manpower, the initiatives during the year under review have been
directed towards building an information-led approach supported by technology, for managing and nurturing
the human capital of the Bank. The activities undertaken by the Bank for Human Resources Management and
Development are enumerated below.

Personnel

As on March 31, 2010, the Bank had on its rolls a total of 1040 active full time staft comprising 867 Ofticers,
98 Class III staft and 75 Subordinate staft. Of the total staff as on March 31,2010, 187 belonged to Scheduled
Castes (SCs), 71 to Scheduled Tribes (STs) and 127 to Other Backward Classes (OBC). The staft strength
included 12 employees in Ex-servicemen and 17 employees in Persons with disabilities (PwD) categories. The
strength of women employees has gone up to 229 from 205 as at the end of previous year, thereby strengthening
the Bank’s position as an equal opportunities employer.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of special purpose machines and other allied engineering products at
Balanagar, Andhra Pradesh.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of garments at Ludhiana, Punjab.

The Bank has also been providing suitable platform to its human resources to widen their horizons of knowledge
and experience by deputing its specialized manpower to various institutions. The Bank had during the year,
deputed ofticers to its various subsidiaries/ associates and also to outside organizations like Rashtriya Mahila Kosh
(RMK), United Nations Industrial Development Organization (UNIDO), etc.

Training & Career Development

Training of employees has always been a key feature for upgrading the quality of manpower and to cope with
the changing business environment and contribute effectively towards organizational goal. The focus of training
during the period was to build the skills and competencies of maximum number of employees of the Bank
across grades, departments, zones and branches. As in the past, the Bank continued to impart training by deputing
its employees to (i) in-house training programmes, (i) inland training programmes / workshops conducted /
organized by reputed national institutions within the country and (ii1) international programmes. The training
programmes organized during the year were on diverse topics like various Application Softwares, Direct Finance
(Project Appraisal, Monitoring and Follow-Up), Environment, Social and Procurement Frameworks, R eservation
Policy, Legal Matters & RTI Act, Use of Unicode for facilitating usage of Hindi, Familiarization Programme on
Microcredit, Soft Skills,and Skill Upgradation in Computers / Information Technology. Besides,induction trainings
for the newly recruited officers and training programmes for Class III/IV employees were also conducted.

During the year, Bank deputed 877 employees to attend various inland, in-house and international training
programmes organized by renowned training / academic institutions, out of which 165 were women employees,
244 employees belonging to reserved categories and 119 employees belonging to Class III / IV categories. A total
number of 709 employees attended various inhouse training programmes during FY 2009-10. In addition, the
Bank deputed 102 officers during the year to reputed institutions like IIM, Ahmedabad, Bombay Stock Exchange,
Sa-Dhan, NIBM, Microsave Pvt. Ltd., Foreign Exchange Dealers” Association of India, Indian Venture Capital
Association, XLRI, Jamshedpur, etc.

The Bank also deputed 66 officers overseas to familiarize them with the international practices in the areas of
Banking, Finance, Management, Microfinance, etc. The programmes covered under the International trainings
included Assessing & Capitalizing Distressed Loans, Credit Masterclass, Basic Management Programme, Operational
Risk Workshop, Loan Documentation: Mastering the Legal Issues, Study Tour Programme on SME Financing,
Retail Banking, Financial Institutions for Private Enterprise Development: Micro & SME Finance in Theory

113



arftter fae 2009-10

A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in textile processing at Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of components at Ludhiana, Punjab.

and Practice, Credit Analysis & Associated Financial Modeling, Workshop on transforming Human Resources
Management to Capital, etc.

Customer Service & Grievance Redressal

The Bank has put in place a Grievance Redressal Mechanism as a part of Fair Practices Code for Lenders
adopted by it. Accordingly, the In-charges of the Zonal offices of the Bank have been nominated as nodal
officers to attend to grievances of the borrowers / clients from their zones. In order to promote greater
interface with the general public, the Bank has also introduced a facility on its website whereby general
public can submit its grievances and complaints against the Bank and/or its constituents. Further, SIDBI has
also implemented Government of India’s Centralized Public Grievance Redressal and Monitoring System
(CPGRAMS) for prompt and effective online redressal of grievances of citizens of India. The details of such
grievances received and action taken thereon are being reported to the Board on half-yearly basis.

Staff Welfare Activities

During FY 2010, the Bank continued its commitment to staff welfare and pursued multifarious welfare
activities for the staff members and their families. Under the guidance of Central Welfare Committee, funds
were allocated to welfare associations of various offices of the Bank to organize welfare activities for the staft

and their families. Greater thrust was laid on organizing more welfare activities for family members of the
staff under the Fund.

New Initiatives

In keeping with the changing HR practices in the industry, Human Resources Development Department

during the year took the following initiatives to help develop a culture of participation and involvement in
the Bank.

Introduction of Performance linked Incentive scheme

A new scheme of Performance Linked Incentive Scheme was introduced by the Bank for its staff, so as to
develop a performance oriented culture in the Bank. The objective of the scheme was to recognize and
reward employee performance both at team and individual level.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in textile processing at Faridabad, Haryana.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of master batches and compounds at Noida, Uttar Pradesh.

* Mentorship Programme

Mentorship Programme was initiated in the Bank for all the officer trainees recruited during the year
2009-10.The objective of the programme was to quickly settle the new recruits and help them adapt to

the culture, norms and values of the Bank to achieve the desired performance and efficiency.

* S.E.A.R.C.H (Search Employees & Addresses by Reporting or Cadre Hierarchy)

As part of the technology based initiatives during the year, an in-house software- S.E.A.R.C.H was
developed to serve as on-line directory of officers. It uses the existing database of employees to display
contact details,addresses and other information for SIDBI employees at various locations in an hierarchical
order. The software helps locate employees based upon their name, office or reporting hierarchy in a
simple and quick manner and displays details like current post, oftice address, contact information,
office e-mail, etc. Additional facilities like provision of sending SMS through the portal and inclusion of
photographs of employees have added to its utility.

Activities of Vigilance Department

The vigilance set-up in SIDBI is headed by a full-time Chief Vigilance Officer [CVO] appointed by the
Ministry of Finance, Government of India. CVO is assisted by the In-charges of six Zones, in their ex-

officio capacity as Zonal Vigilance Officers of their respective Zones, besides the supporting staff.

During the year, several initiatives were taken by Vigilance Department towards strengthening preventive
vigilance and eftective implementation of such measures. The emphasis has mainly been on strengthening
the credit delivery & monitoring mechanism inter alia making the decision making process more transparent.
Importance of procurement of goods, works and contracts in the Bank in terms of the extant Central

Vigilance Commission [CVC] guidelines also continued to be a major focus area.

Preventive Vigilance Committees at the Branch Offices and the Vigilance Committee at Head Oftice have been
set up to review the preventive vigilance measures. Quarterly meetings are also being held between the CMD
and the CVO to review the Vigilance work/ activities. An Internal Advisory Committee on Vigilance (IACV)

has been set up at Lucknow which scrutinizes all the complaints or cases arising out of inspections, audit reports,

117




arftter fae 2009-10

A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of components at Ludhiana, Punjab.
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staff accountability reports, etc.Vigilance Department also acts as the Nodal department for reporting, monitoring
and follow-up of frauds perpetrated on the Bank by unscrupulous borrowers, outsiders, etc. It submits a report on
Vigilance Activities, status of cases of frauds and report on fresh cases of fraud to the Audit Committee / Board of

Directors/ Special Committee for Monitoring of Large Value Frauds at periodic Intervals.

The vigilance function in the Bank has been laying stress on the preventive aspect in order to make it more

effective so that the incidence of instances/ cases that call for punitive action can be effectively minimized.

Computerization

In order to leverage information technology for servicing the MSME sector as a whole, the Bank conceived
Enterprise System Architecture ‘ESA’ project. The major components of the project were completed during
the year. The Bank also implemented core banking solution ‘Flexcube’. While Flexcube accounting (GL)
module has been implemented at all offices, Flexcube loan module has been implemented at 36 oftices.
Flexcube provides a total integrated environment and process standardization across the Bank. Lending
Automation and Processing system ‘LAPS’ was another component implemented for automating the loan
origination process. LAPS will help in reducing the loan processing cycle. Further, Internet based Bills /
Invoice Discounting has been implemented during the year, which will improve and reduce bills / invoice

discounting process / service time to the customers.
Branch Expansion

In order to increase the Bank’s presence in important MSME clusters so as to deliver the services to the
MSME sector at their doorstep, the Bank opened 3 new branches during the year taking the total number of
branches to 103 as on March 31, 2010.The 103 branches of the Bank now cater to more than 600 MSME

clusters in the country.

Use of Hindi

The Bank continued to make elaborate efforts for enhancing the usage of Hindi in its day-to-day work. All
possible documents under section 3(3) of the Oftficial Language Act, 1963 were issued simultaneously in

Hindi and English, while all letters received in Hindi were replied in Hindi alone, so as to ensure compliance
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of Colour Sorting Machines for Food Processing Industry at Mangalore,
Karnataka.
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Launch of H|nd| Book - Vishwavyapee Aarthik Sankat aur \fkas Prakriya

of the Rule 5 of the Official Language Rules 1976. As far as Hindi correspondence is concerned, most of
the oftices located under regions "B" and "C" were ahead of their defined targets, while those under region
"A" consolidated their position. As many as 26 major oftices of the Bank have been notified in the gazette

of the Govt. of India. Appropriate action has been taken for notifying 5 more offices.

Ofticers/ employees lacking a working knowledge of Hindi were nominated in Prabodh, Praveen and
Pragya classes under Hindi Teaching Scheme of the Govt. of India. Hindi workshops were organized in all
major offices of the Bank, with a view to making Hindi an able mode of communication in transactions
and operations of the Bank. Hindi workshops were organized in 57 offices which were attended by 325 staff
members. The participants were imparted training on Hindi language and aspects of functional Hindi and
also trained to carry out their work in Hindi on computers. Besides, uni-code based training programmes
were also organized for the staft-members at Lucknow and at other major offices. Official Language
Implementation Committees have been constituted in all offices of the Bank. Quarterly meetings of these
committees were held regularly. The quarterly Hindi magazine "Sankalp" was published regularly from
the Head Office. The Bank also published a book titled "Vishwavyapee Aarthik Sankat aur Vikas Prakriya"
incorporating the selected prize winning essays from the Annual interbank Essay Competition organized by
the Bank. Budget was allocated for purchase of Hindi books in various oftices, including the Head Oftice
and the same was utilized to enrich the Hindi libraries.

During the year under review, various offices of the Bank, viz. Kochi, Bangaloru, Mumbai, New Delhi,
Jamshedpur, Hyderabad and Raipur received prizes from the local Official Language Implementation
Committees for excellent implementation of the Ofticial Language. Following the Government policy of
promoting and expanding Hindi through motivation and encouragement, the Bank has come out with
many motivational schemes, viz. SIDBI Rajbhasha Shield Competition, Sarvottam Rajbhasha Pratinidhi
Yojana and a cash prize scheme to the staft members carrying out their maximum work in Hindi during
the Hindi Fortnight. The Bank's bilingual website was updated on a regular basis during the year. The Bank
organized the Fifth Inter Bank Hindi Essay Competition which saw an overwhelming participation from
various banks across the country.

The Draft and Evidence Sub-Committee of the Parliamentary Committee on the Official Language held discussions
with Hyderabad and Raipur Branch Offices of the Bank. Regular representation of the Bank was ensured in the
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing precision components and moulds at Balanagar, Andhra Pradesh.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of components at Ludhiana, Punjab.

quarterly meetings of the Official Language Implementation Committee of the Economic Services Department,
Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India. Besides, Officials from the said Ministry visited the Head Office, Lucknow for
inspection of the Official Language Implementation and appreciated the efforts being put in by SIDBL.

Internal inspections with regard to official language implementation were carried out in a total of 27 oftices
including Mumbai oftice, Bhopal, Patna, Indore, Aligarh, Jamshedpur, Ranchi, Dhanbad, Alwar, Kishangarh,
Pune, Nagpur, Ludhiana, Jalandhar, Kolhapur, Ahmednagar, Bangaloru, Hyderabad, Panaji, Shillong, Itanagar,
Puduchery, Nellore, Balanagar, Peenya and Trichy.

All offices of the Bank held Hindi Day/ Week/ Fortnight Celebrations during September, 2009 and

organized various programmes aimed at motivating the staff members to carry out their work in Hindi.

The Bank bagged the coveted first prize in region C and a consolation prize in region A under Reserve
Bank Rajbhasha Shield Pratiyogita 2008-09, besides winning 4th prize under Hindi House Journals category

for the same period for its quarterly publication, Sankalp.

To further propel the Bank’s commitment to promote use of Hindi as Official language, the Bank introduced
the facility of filling the Performance Appraisal Reports (PAR) in Hindi in HRMS.

Implementation of RTI Act, 2005

The Bank is implementing the Right to Information Act,2005.Accordingly, the Bank has displayed in its website
functions and duties of the organization, norms set by the Bank for discharge of its functions, organization chart,
etc as envisaged under Section 4(1) (b) of the Act. The Bank has also appointed Central Public Information
Ofticer, Central Assistant Public Information Ofticers and Appellate Authority, the details of which are available
on the Bank's website. A standing Committee for Implementation of the RTI Act (CIRA) has been constituted
by the Bank which is fully empowered to take decisions as deemed fit by it for the eftective implementation
of the Act in the Bank. During the year, the Bank received 94 applications seeking information and all the
applications were disposed of as per the provisions of the Act within stipulated time.

During the year, 20 appeals were made to the Appellate Authority of the Bank, who disposed of the same
within stipulated time.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of components at Ludhiana, Punjab.
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Chief General Manager, SIDBI receiving Amity Corporate Excellence Award for Corporate Social Responsibility on behalf of
Chairman and Managing Director.

Awards to SIDBI

Association of Development Financing Institutions in Asia and the Pacific (ADFIAP) — with membership of
116 institutions from 42 countries, honoured SIDBI with two awards in FY 2009-10 for Merit Award on
“MSME Financing & Development Project” (MSMEFDP) and Special Award in the category of “Best in
Membership Recruitment”.

Amity University, Noida has also honoured CMD, SIDBI with the award of “Amity Corporate Excellence
Award for Corporate Social Responsibility” during the year under review.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Faridabad, Haryana.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing tools at Gurgaon, Haryana.

SUBSIDIARIES

SIDBI Venture Capital Limited

SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL) is an asset management company, established in September 1999
for managing venture capital funds. At present, it manages two SEBI registered venture capital funds, viz. the
National Venture Fund for Software and Information Technology Industry (NFSIT) and the SME Growth
Fund (SGE).

NESIT

NESIT was set up in August 1999, as close ended fund of 10 years, with a corpus of Rs.100 crore contributed
by SIDBI, Ministry of Communications and Information Technology (MCIT), Government of India and
IDBI Bank Limited. Original fund life of 10 years has been extended by two years, i.e. till August 2011. NFSIT,
with focus on software and IT industries, has created a portfolio of 31 companies. NFSIT has completed its
investment phase and is now fully committed.

Operations of NFSIT

The cumulative sanctions (net of cancellation) and disbursements as on March 31, 2010 aggregated Rs.84.40
crore (31 companies). After the investment phase, NFSIT is now nurturing the investments made and has, so
tar, made partial / full exits from 23 companies including 3 full exits during FY 2009-10. These exits, on the
whole, were profitable for the Fund. During FY 2009-10, NFSIT distributed Rs.7.72 crore to its contributors
and the aggregate distributions stood at Rs.85.60 crore.

SME Growth Fund

SME Growth Fund (SGF) is an eight-year close-ended Venture Capital Fund set up in 2004, with a corpus
of Rs.500 crore, contributed by SIDBI and 8 scheduled commercial banks. It is a general fund with focus on
the growth stage MSMEs in the areas of auto components, textiles, pharmaceuticals, renewable energy, light
engineering, information technology, services, etc.

Operation of SGF

The total commitments under the Fund amounted to Rs.465.92 crore. Cumulative disbursements stood at Rs.442.56
crore. The Fund has so far made exits from 4 companies including 2 partial exits in FY 2009-10. During FY 2009-
10, SGF distributed Rs.33.83 crore to its contributors and the aggregate distributions were at Rs.49.55 crore.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing tools at Gurgaon, Haryana.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Faridabad, Haryana.

Marketing Initiatives of SVCL

SVCL took various marketing initiatives to promote venture capital among MSMEs. It sponsored / co-
sponsored seven events during the year, viz. “TiEcon 2009, Delhi’ and ‘TiEcon 2009, Chennai’ conferences
held in September 2009 and November 2009, respectively, organised by Delhi and Chennai chapters of TiE;
‘6th National Conference VCFIN 2009’ an event organised jointly by RVCF and FICCI in October 2009 at
Jaipur; ‘Eureka 2009’ organised by II'T, Bombay in January 2010;‘Tie Entrepreneurial Summit 2009’ an event
organised by TiIE Mumbai in December 2009;‘AGCETI 2010’ an event organised by IIT Kanpur at Kanpur
in January 2010 and ‘Proto.in 2010’; an event organised by proto.in in January 2010 at IIT, Bombay.

Balance-Sheet of SVCL

The abridged Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010 and the Profit and Loss Account of SVCL for the year
ended March 31,2010 are given in the following tables:

Abridged Balance Sheet of SVCL (Rs. lakh)
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2010
(Audited) (Audited)

Liabilities

1,500.00  Paid up Capital 1,500.00

361.22  Reserves and Surplus 935.79

388.50 Current Liabilities & Provisions 343.05

2,249.72  Total 2,778.84

Assets

19.07  Net Fixed Assets 10.07

2,117.22 Current Assets, Loans & Advances 1,664.00

110.85 Investment 1,101.00

2.58 Deferred Tax Assets 3.77

2,249.72  Total 2,778.84
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An Extrusion Plant assisted by SIDBI at Erode, Tamil Nadu.
(Rs. lakh)
March 31, 2009 Abridged Profit & Loss Account of SVCL March 31, 2010
(Audited) (Audited)
Income
1,145.14 Management Fees 1,150.82
172.51 Interest on Fixed Deposits with Banks 82.75
43.11 Upfront Fee and Other Income 45.06
1,360.76 Total 1,278.63
Expenditure
394.48 Establishment & other expenses 413.27
966.28 Profit before Prior period Adjustments 865.36
2.17 Add: Prior period adjustments / excess provision for 8.02
income tax for earlier years
968.45 Profit before Tax 873.38
340.25 Less: Provision for Tax 300.00
(0.31) Write oft of Deferred Tax (1.19)
628.51 Profit after Tax 574.57
20 Dividend (%) 25

During the year under review, SVCL invested additional amount of Rs.990 lakh in equity share capital of
ISARC taking the total investment by SVCL in ISARC to Rs.1,100 lakh. SVCL also invested additional
amount of Rs.0.15 lakh in Unit B capital of SME Growth Fund.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of auto components at Chennai, Tamil Nadu.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of components at Ludhiana, Punjab.

SIDBI Trustee Company Limited

SIDBI Trustee Company Limited (STCL) was set up by SIDBI on July 19, 1999, to act as Trustee of
National Venture Fund for Software and Information Technology industry (NEFSIT). Now, it is also acting as
Trustee of SME Growth Fund. The company has appointed SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL) to act
as the Investment Manager to NFSIT and SGE

The abridged Balance Sheet as at March 31,2010 and Profit and Loss account for the year ended March 31,
2010 for STCL are as given below:-

Abridged Balance Sheet of STCL (Rs. lakh)
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2010
(Audited) (Audited)
Liabilities
5.00 Paid up Capital 5.00
178.02 Reserves and Surplus 224.75
1.01 Current Liabilities & Provisions 0.67
184.03 Total 230.42
Assets
184.03 Current Assets, Loans & Advances 230.42
184.03 Total 230.42
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A CBR unit assisted by SIDBI at Erode, Tamil Nadu.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of Packaging Material at Faridabad, Haryana.

Abridged Profit & Loss Account of STCL (Rs. lakh)
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2010
(Audited) (Audited)
Income
55.00 Trusteeship Fees 55.00
17.35 Interest on Fixed Deposits with Banks 16.02
72.35 Total 71.02
Expenditure
3.72 Establishment & other expenses 3.29
68.63 Profit before Tax 67.73
22.00 Less: Provision for Tax 21.00
46.63 Profit after Tax 46.73

Outlook

The GDP growth estimates of Indian economy for the fiscal FY2010-11 are being revised upwards on the
basis of optimistic economic outlook. As per RBI’s credit policy announcement in April 2010, the real GDP
growth for 2010-11 is projected at 8% with an upside bias. With global economic recovery being slow at
present, investors are looking for growth centres across the globe and India is the prominent choice among
Emerging Markets Economies (EMEs) because of the stronger sustainability of India’s growth on account of
lesser dependence on external demand, strong internal demand as well as various measures announced for
boosting domestic consumption and increased infrastructure spending by the government.

According to a survey by KPMG, India, the domestic and international private equity investors consider India as
the second most attractive destination after China, because of India’s robust economic growth, tax environment,
corporate governance and investment structuring. The survey projected 2010 to be the year of consolidation
with focus on portfolio nurturing.

SVCL is now uniquely positioned to invest in high growth MSMEs of the future. Going forward, it is in the
process of raising its third fund, viz. India Opportunities Fund (IOF), targeting a corpus of Rs.1000 crore which
would further catalyze entrepreneurship by providing capital and other strategic inputs to the MSME sector.
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Issue of one lakth guarantee of FY 2010 to Punjab National Bank.
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Felicitation meeting during the issue of one lakth guarantee of FY 2010 to Punjab National Bank.

ASSOCIATES
Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises

Credit Guarantee fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE) set up in July, 2000, by
Government of India and SIDBI operates the Credit Guarantee Scheme (CGS) for Micro and
Small Enterprises (MSEs) which guarantees credit facilities upto Rs.100 lakh extended by Member
Lending Institutions (MLIs) to those loans, which are not backed by collateral security and / or third
party guarantees. Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME), Government of India
and SIDBI contributed Rs.135.91 crore and Rs.30.50 crore, respectively, to the corpus of CGTMSE
during FY 2009-10, raising the corpus size to Rs.1906.56 crore, as against the targeted corpus of
Rs.2,500 crore.

Member Lending Institutions

During FY 2009-10, 30 new MLIs were registered with CGTMSE raising the total number of
registered MLIs to 111 as at March 31, 2010, comprising 27 Public Sector Banks, 16 Private Sector
Banks, 60 Regional Rural Banks (RRBs), 2 Foreign Banks and 6 other institutions, viz. National
Small Industries Corporation Ltd. (NSIC), North Eastern Development Finance Corporation
Ltd. (NEDFi), The Tamil Nadu Industrial Investment Corporation Ltd (TIIC), Delhi Financial
Corporation (DFC), Kerala Financial Corporation (KFC) and Small Industries Development Bank
of India (SIDBI). As at March 31,2010, there were 85 MLIs which were availing CGS cover.

Modification to CGS

During the year under review, several changes were made in the CGS with a view to enhancing
the scope and coverage under the Scheme and increasing the comfort level of the MLIs. The

noteworthy changes included coverage of credit facilities extended by more than one bank and / or
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Three lakth Guarantee issued to State Bank of India at the hands of Hon'ble Finance Minister.
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Plauge of Merit to Indian Banks' Association for their role played in maximizing the coverage of Credit Guarantee Scheme of
CGTMSE.

financial institution jointly and / or separately to eligible borrowers upto a maximum of Rs.100 lakh
per borrower, subject to ceiling amount of individual MLI or such amount as may be specified by
the Trust; modification in period of payment of one-time Guarantee Fee; payment of Annual Service
Fee (ASF) on pro-rata basis for the first and the last year and in full for the intervening years on the
credit facility sanctioned; modification in time limit for invocation of guarantee whereby MLIs have
to exercise the same within a maximum period of one year from the date of NPA, if NPA is after
lock-in period, or within one year of lock-in period, if NPA is within lock-in period; filing of claim

applications online and single payment of ASF for all the guaranteed accounts of the MLI.
Operations of Credit Guarantee Scheme

CGTMSE achieved two significant milestones during the FY 2009-10, i.e., over 1.50 lakh guarantee
approvals in any single financial year so far and 3 lakh guarantee approvals cumulatively as on March
31,2010. The operations under CGS continued to exhibit consistent growth since inception. From
only 9 active MLIs in FY 2000-01, the number of MLIs availing the guarantee cover has gone up to
85 in FY 2009-10. As against the revised target of 1,00,000 guarantee approvals set for FY 2009-10,
the Trust achieved 1,51,387 guarantee approvals amounting to Rs.6,875.11 crore during FY 2009-
10. Similarly, the number of credit approvals during FY 2009-10 had registered a growth of 182%
in terms of number of accounts covered and 213% in terms of amount guaranteed over the previous
financial year. Cumulatively, as at March 31, 2010, a total of 3,00,105 accounts have been accorded
guarantee approval for Rs.11,559.61 crore indicating that the coverage in FY 2009-10 of 1,51,387
accounts was higher than the cumulative coverage of 1,48,718 accounts during the first nine years
of operations under CGS. Similarly, the amount of guarantee approvals of Rs.6,875.11 crore in
FY 2009-10 exceeded the cumulative coverage of Rs.4,684.50 crore during the first nine years of
CGTMSE’s operations. The sharp growth in coverage under the Scheme is indicative of the fact that
the CGS is now finding greater acceptance with both the MLIs and the MSEs in the country.
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Three lakth one and three lakhth second guarantee issued to Canara Bank and Punjab National Bank respectively at the hands
of Hon'ble Finance Minister.
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Training and stall of CGTMSE at Chennai.

During FY 2009-10, the top five MLIs in terms of number of proposals covered under CGS
were Punjab National Bank (26,069 proposals for Rs.927.15 crore), State Bank of India (23,774
proposals for Rs.960.21 crore), Bank of India (20,952 proposals for Rs.1,310.78 crore), Allahabad
Bank (9,673 proposals for Rs.278.37 crore) and Canara Bank (8,263 proposals for Rs.334.91 crore
). Cumulatively, as on March 31, 2010, State Bank of India has the highest coverage of 55,042
proposals for Rs.1,769.47 crore, followed by Punjab National Bank (43,413 proposals for 1,250.69
crore), Canara Bank (37,608 proposals for Rs.947.88 crore), Bank of India (36,821 proposals for
Rs.2,000.53 crore) and Allahabad Bank (13,639 proposals for Rs.372.75 crore).

Among the states, Uttar Pradesh lodged the maximum number of applications (26,526 proposals for
Rs.816.75 crore) during FY 2009-10, followed by West Bengal (21,394 proposals for Rs.676.77 crore),
Rajasthan (11,712 proposals for Rs.301.99 crore), Kerala (11,032 proposals for Rs.304.17 crore) and
Karnataka (9,176 proposals for Rs.485.88 crore). The cumulative state-wise coverage under CGS as
at March 31,2010 indicates that Uttar Pradesh has the highest share of proposals approved at 43,074
proposals for Rs.1,117.57 crore, followed by Kerala (32,963 proposals for Rs.650.29 crore), West
Bengal (30,070 proposals for Rs.1,067.24 crore), Tamil Nadu (25,455 proposals for Rs.1,016.22
crore) and Karnataka (19,879 proposals for Rs.1,078.41 crore).

During FY 2009-10, the average size of loans covered under CGS increased to Rs.4.54 lakh compared
to Rs.4.10 lakh in the preceding financial year. However, it is important to note that the CGS
has facilitated greater flow of credit to micro enterprises as almost 98% of total enterprises under
CGS coverage was for loans upto Rs.25 lakh. Similarly, amount-wise, the coverage was 74% as

given in Table 6.1.
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A unit engaged in manufacturing of spices and food items Windmill assisted by SIDBI for captive consumption of a
under MSME Financing and Development Project of manufacturing unit
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Table 6.1 : Slab wise CGS coverage

(As on March 31, 2010)

Range No. of Proposals Amount (Rs. crore)

Upto Rs. 5 lakh 2,49,495 3,153.89
(83.14%) (27.28%)

Rs. 5 lakh upto Rs. 10 lakh 23,655 1,890.44
(7.88%) (16.35)

Rs. 10 lakh upto Rs. 25 lakh 20,434 3,481.63
(6.81%) (30.12%)

Rs. 25 lakh upto Rs. 50 lakh 5,133 1,974.15
(1.71%) (17.08%)

Rs. 50 lakh upto Rs. 100 lakh 1,388 1,059.50
(0.46%) (9.17%)

Total 3,00,105 11,559.61

Note: Figures in the parentheses represent percentage share

An analysis of the cumulative coverage under CGS as at March 31, 2010, indicates that 60,543 proposals
(20.17%) tor Rs.1,830.90 crore (15.84%) were in respect of Women Entrepreneurs; 16,016 proposals (5.34%)
for Rs.198.03 crore (1.71%) to Scheduled Castes; 4,030 proposals (1.34%) for Rs.89.37 crore (0.77%) to
Scheduled Tribes and 21,140 proposals (7.04%) for Rs.445.42 crore (3.85%) to the Minorities.

145




arftter fae 2009-10

L]
-"';'ii

I
ey TR 1 SeeTawd] TR SN, At 3 01 MRS Wt e vd oy Semr AR A 5
TR, 9T T &, S qlfefa 6.2 % Sey &

TATTTERT 6.2 : FHUT TR ST S THIT

-8 91 31 T, 2010
TRIE s 517 STuferd HefaT 69,196 F1S TT
RIS STl 5 Suferd 2,047 P TR
3TUferd TSTTR-GoT (ATt a0l Te) 17.56 G
I
ST cha TahTd

GSTACHTEE 3 S5, THOHTHE I GE, THOHTRS &3 3A1fE A0 a1 AT & aR 8 STl e & forg
TR o SR, SRrSTeret / ARY & ST 517, ool s / T TR & fafi= v oY SefeTd desA
B WfcrefiTeT SNfes & e & S-SR SR ST € | Y o R IS TgE 3 aRt FURTH S 3T
JeT e ST STNST 450 3o AR/ FRfemensh o g e S / SR e gt 5wy Swr o) A
THCHCHE & & oy 7 SN el o Saent § fawfire &, @i o M A & R H Sredh e
F ST G | GSTEHTEE & S ¥ Sl qeierdre/ s & W T 200 a9 G sad o
it | 397 R F -t o A Qe R, Tl G i S Tl T, A Sear § QU @ 3 A
F 91§ SREh 9 | Yo TR AR JEl § TS TS SR 9T § 3! 3T S S|

THITHSTTE I U sy

TR Hf5T TSI SRR Fhe oM (THITHaEY) TRl 1 ke <, e 35v e i @y
IR T IR Gearalt & AT GorT & SNSH-YaH, el X Fiien & SeH-Jar % 9T TfEs &
& 29 B At 7T Yo T ST 0T ST aw B T o ¢ | ¥ 2008 H Gefdenegs #
TG FReH & YU FEET ST T | S s, TEa A 9 F 13 TeY 2009 F AR e 229
TR Fer | ol gaT o, WTEeHTEE 3Ed 2010 H 20 & THCHEE T HRIET q91 T4aT
2011 7 2491 THCHSEE TG HUT: §9E 31T T 8 ST Fm |

146




Annual Report 2009-10

Seminar attended by CMD and CEO of CGTMSE at ACSIC, Taiwan

Overall Impact

CGTMSE’ operations have had a positive impact on the economy in terms of turnover, exports and

employment of credit guaranteed MSEs as given in the Table 6.2:
Table 6.2: Impact of CGS

Areas of Impact As on March 31, 2010
Expected turnover of guaranteed units Rs.69,196 crore
Expected exports by guaranteed units Rs.2,047 crore
Expected employment generation (No. of persons) 17.56 lakh*

* Estimated.

Awareness Creation

CGTMSE has adopted multi-channel approach for creating awareness of the CGS amongst banks, MSME
industry associations, MSME sector, etc. through print and press media, conducting workshops / seminars,
attending the programmes organized at various district / state / national fora,etc. During the year, CGTMSE
participated in more than 450 seminars / workshops organized by MLIs and Industry Associations, exhibitions
and meetings organized by RBI / Govt. / Industry Associations in connection with MSME sector, across
the country to create awareness about CGS. CGTMSE ofticials also held around 200 business development
meetings with bankers / consultants / experts. Sustained print media campaigns were carried out across
the country throughout the year to improve visibility and create awareness about the scheme. Information
dissemination campaigns were vigorously carried out and would be further upscaled in future.

ACSIC Training Programme

Asian Credit Supplementation Institution Confederation (ACSIC) 1s a confederation of institutions with the objective to
promote the sound development of the credit supplementation system for small business in the countries in Asian region
through exchange of information, discussions and interchange of personnel among small business credit supplementation
institutions in Asia. In 2008, CGTMSE was made a full member at the ACSIC Conference. As decided at the 22nd ACSIC
Conference held inTaipei, Taiwan during November 09-13,2009, CGTMSE will host the 20th ACSICTraining Programme
during August 2010 and the 24th ACSIC Conference during November 2011 in Mumbai and Goa, respectively.
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Energy efficient recuperative pot furnace under MSME Small scale power gasifier developed for village
Financing and Development Project of SIDBI, at Firozabad electrification under MSME Financing and Development
cluster, Uttar Pradesh. Project of SIDBI.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of components at Ahmedabad, Gujarat.

Report of RBI’'s Working Group on CGTMSE

With a view to increasing the credit flow to MSE sector, the Reserve Bank of India set up a working group
under the chairmanship of ShriV K Sharma, Executive Director, RBI. The Working Group submitted its
Report on March 02,2010.

The main recommendations of the Working Group are the limit of collateral-free loans to MSE sector be
increased from the present level of Rs.5 lakh to Rs.10 lakh and it be mandatory for banks, which can take
cover for collateral-free credit facilities under CGS; to create widespread awareness about the key features
and benefits of CGS among branch level functionaries of banks and making performance in availing CGS a
criterion in the evaluation of the field staft of banks; uniform Guarantee Fee; composite all-in Guarantee Fee
of 1% p.a. which is almost the same as the composite Annual Fee now being charged and appropriately realign
downwards the Guarantee Fees chargeable to women entrepreneurs, micro enterprises and units located in
North East Region including Sikkim; review each year the Guarantee Fee to be charged on the basis of the
model of dynamically evolving distribution of claims; Government to consider exempting both Guarantee Fee
and the income on investments of the Trust from Income Tax; Guarantee Fee for collateral-free loans upto
Rs.10 lakh to Micro Enterprises be borne / absorbed by the CGTMSE subject to the proviso that the Trust be
free to adjust Guarantee Fee both downwards and upwards based on the modeling of the dynamically evolving
distribution of claims; initiate action in developing a suitable statistical model for charging Guarantee Fee based
on the claims paid out every year; guarantee cover upto 85% of the amount in default be made applicable to
credit facilities to Micro Enterprises upto Rs.10 lakh; introduction of Whole Turnover guarantee after gaining
acceptability by banks and attains critical mass of traction and stabilize; Government of India may contribute
to the Corpus Fund as and when required; simplification in procedure for filing claims; MLIs may be allowed
to invoke guarantee within a period of two years from the date of classification of the account as NPA instead
of the present prescription of within one year; final claim be paid by the Trust to the MLIs after three years
of obtention of decree of recovery instead of the present procedure of releasing the final claim by the Trust
only after the decree of recovery becomes time barred; factoring services without recourse and coverage
of the credit facilities which are secured by primary collateral as well as secondary collateral which belongs
to the unit and are directly connected to the business activity of the unit. The recommendations of the
Working Group are under the consideration of the Board of Trustees of CGTMSE.
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Launch of Green Ratings to Ultimate Alloys Pvt. Ltd. at the hands of Hon'ble Finance Minister.
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Various events/seminars conducted by SMERA on empowering MSMES through Rating and relevance of Credit Rating.

SME Rating Agency of India Limited

In order to enhance credit flow to the MSME sector in the country, Small Industries Development Bank
of India (SIDBI), along with Dun & Bradstreet and 11 leading public, foreign and private banks in India
joined hands to set up SME Rating Agency of India Limited (SMERA) in September, 2005. It is India’s
first and only MSME-dedicated rating agency.

During the FY 2009-10, SMERA reported strong growth in fresh applications and rated 3,155 MSMEs
till March 31, 2010 showing a growth of 80.5% over the preceding year. The cumulative number of
ratings since inception till March 31, 2010 stood at 6,599. Further, SMER A has managed to maintain a
good balance of micro as well as small enterprise in its rating spread, i.e. 3,100 (46.98%) micro and 3,274

(49.61%) small enterprises ratings, respectively, as exhibited in the Table 6.3 below:.

Table 6.3: SMERA Ratings — Sector-wise

Sectors As on March 31,2010

Micro Enterprises 3,100 (46.98%)
Small Enterprises 3,274 (49.61%)
Medium Enterprises 225 (3.41%)
Total 6,599

Note: Figures in the parentheses represent percentage share

In terms of regional spread of SMER A Ratings, Southern Region was ahead with 2,326 ratings followed by
Western Region of 1,827 ratings and closely followed by the Northern Region at 1,816 ratings.
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Various events/seminars conducted by SMERA on empowering MSMES through Rating and relevance of Credit Rating.
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Various events/seminars conducted by SMERA on empowering MSMES through Rating and relevance of Credit Rating.

New Initiatives

* During the financial year 2009-10, SMERA embarked on diversification of its service ofterings to the
market.Accordingly, newer services, such as, Green Field & Brown Field Ratings, Micro Finance Institutions’
Ratings and Risk Model Mapping/Validation were introduced during the year. Since its introduction,
SMERA has managed to garner 30 rating mandates from the MFI sector; of which, 14 ratings have been
completed and others are at an advanced stage of completion.

* In order to promote external ratings SMERA has entered into 30 MoUs with banks, Financial Institutions,
State Financial Corporations and leading Industries Associations.

India SME Technology Services Limited

India SME Technology Services Limited (ISTSL), was established in November, 2005 to carry out various
technological development activities like technology matchmaking, technology transfer and clean development
mechanism for MSME:s in India.

Activities

In order to strengthen and accelerate the process of technological modernization in the MSME sector, ISTSL
has entered into partnership with various national and international organizations engaged in similar activities.
Some such agencies are Central Food Technological Research Institute (CFTRI), Mysore; India Institute
of Chemical Technology (IICT), Hyderabad; Council of Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR), New
Delhi, Central Pulp & Paper Research Institute (CPPRI), Saharanpur; Central Leather Research Institute
(CLRI) Chennai; Sardar Patel Renewable Energy Research Institute (SPRERI) Gujarat; Advanced Materials
and Processes Research Institute (AMPRI) Bhopal; Center for Sustainable Technologies Indian Institute of
Science (IISc) Bangalore and Industrial Research & Development Unit, IIT, Delhi, to have access to the latest
technologies developed by them. These technologies are being disseminated amongst the MSME:s.

ISTSL organized awareness campaigns in various industrial clusters during the year and also took up the

project for implementing Energy Efficient technologies in Stainless Steel Re-rolling Cluster of Jodhpur, in
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Various events/seminars conducted by SMERA on empowering MSMEs through Rating and relevance of Credit Rating.

39 5 URASHT & ST Sl cerdl ST o R o SRS W (e JuTet (HISeH) SR &l ST Tat
| MO T o S 3UA 9§ STl ST STl ST TR S &l Tl § oot o 197 TiSien 3 off 3ifefe i |

e 3 2009- 10 F SR SMECHITHTA = % STA S19- SR T3S 3R T2, TH-Telie T JiHieT
(TH- TEREA), fofFae iR wifersr (AM-3mEiid), Sek Blidicerss 3T i & 8 Tl & wdaq &
& 7 U GfemeT ard e i | T s TG A wH ARGTel Jetl-aer TrenfridRe b gl s
B R RE ek A

SR

fereier o 2009- 10 % S SMECHITHA 7 59,287 T 31 Fef 31 3l i, ot gRerer e 3w &
12 T 0, 3T 317 & 8.31 TR T T <11 % 311 & 38.82 TR T WA & |

WA IS 3N qAfwior o fer.

A THEHE N AR HT 7. (ST ) T T THEgeRE & & T e e W 9w &9
I Hisd H 5T, T FIo9Tees STt & STIRor SR 7ueit a1 Junferdt o e & S S H
% o 31, 2008 & &1 7€ | o & 2009- 10 F &R 59 S Weetf-idh &5 & 77 19 JTERH F 100
FS T I AT TG I YT S 1 q0f Gt Bt i | 3 Ve - e, e R, o o
T, IS S 3T 3 (ST), T & % 10 371 S, TR Sia ST (7 2% 4 TF-TSia
TS | 7% 15 373, 2009 F YT UR=Te | 37 TE |

fefier o 2009- 10 3 <X ST 3 20 S/ Forer el & 1,117 X FoqTees Tt ot geient o 3% 663
I ST % Hey 7 o sg-feforey e | s 3 4 9/ for el ¥ 6 2t 7 202 @t @
Ao {3, o oot Gt S 249 FIS T T |

e & 2009-10 3 S T 1 3 699.6 1 @ B0 &1 37 (aie] 1 278.39 g &9 L&l | 31 71 2010
B HT & el AR 102.07 TS TR |

154




Annual Report 2009-10

."

M/

Signing of asset takeover agreement by the members of Aunit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of textiles
ISARC. at Noida, Uttar Pradesh.

association with KfW, Germany. The project is now being taken up for implementing Clean Development
Mechanism (CDM) project by implementing Energy Efticiency measures, which are expected to generate

CDM revenues, besides reducing the cost of fuel being consumed by the units.

During the FY 2009-10, ISTSL oftered technology facilitation services in the field of many products like
Aluminium Powder and Paste, Agro Plant Growth Promoter (N —Triacontanol), Liquid Floor Polish (WAX
BASE), Solar Photovoltaic and Latex of the Green Papaya Fruit. Efforts have also been made to facilitate

energy efficient technologies leading to reduction in Green House Gases (GHG).
Income

During the financial year 2009-10, ISTSL earned total income of Rs. 59.28 Lakh comprising operational
income of Rs 12 Lakh, other income of Rs. 8.31 Lakh and interest income Rs. 38.82 Lakh.

India SME Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd.

India SME Asset R econstruction Company Ltd. (ISAR C) was set up in April 2008 as an Asset R econstruction
Company (ARC) to acquire non-performing assets (NPAs) and to resolve them through its innovative
mechanisms with a special focus on the NPAs of MSME sector. During FY 2009-10 year, the Company
successfully completed raising of its entire share capital of Rs.100 crore from 19 public sector shareholders,
i.e. SIDBI, SIDBI Venture, Bank of Baroda, United Bank of India (the sponsors), 10 other public sector
banks, LIC and 4 State-level institutions. It also became fully operational from April 15, 2009.

During FY 2009-10, ISARC evaluated 1,117 non-performing accounts of 20 banks/FIs and carried out
detailed due-diligence in respect of 663 NPAs. ISARC acquired 202 accounts from 4 banks/Fls in 6 lots

with an aggregate principal outstanding amount of Rs.249 crore.

The income of the Company during FY 2009-10 stood at Rs.699.61 lakh and the net profit at Rs.278.39
lakh. The networth of the company as on March 31,2010 was Rs.102.07 crore.
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SIDBI's Annual Business Meet held at Mumbai.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in Engineering and Heat A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of
Treatment Services at Peenya, Bangalore. precision auto components at Chinchwad, Pune.

he audited Balance Sheet, along with Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement of Small

Industries Development Bank of India, for the financial year 2009-10, are given in the Appendix — I.
The consolidated Balance Sheet, along with Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement of SIDBI with
its subsidiaries viz., SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL) and SIDBI Trustee Company Limited (STCL)
and associates viz. SME Rating Agency of India Limited (SMERA), Indian SME Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited (ISARC) and India SME Technology Services Limited (ISTSL) and others as given in
Appendix II. The salient features of annual accounts of SIDBI for the financial year 2009-10 are discussed
below:

The total income of the Bank during the year was higher at Rs. 3,206.96 crore, before necessary provisions,
from Rs. 2,651 .29 crore before necessary provisions, during the previous year mainly due to growth in
the overall portfolio and better pricing of loan products. The total expenditure during the corresponding
period was higher at Rs. 1674.87 crore as compared to Rs.1253.10 crore during the previous year. As a
result, the Profit Before Tax for the year has been Rs.864.94 crore, up from Rs.829.20 crore in the previous
year, registering an increase of 4.3%. The net Profit After Tax and Deferred Tax Adjustment for the year
was Rs.421.30 crore as against Rs.299.20 crore in the previous year. The Bank declared a dividend of 25%
on paid up equity capital of Rs.450 crore which worked out to Rs.131.19 crore, inclusive of dividend tax,
surcharge and cess payable thereon. During the year, appropriation of Rs.1 crore was made to Staft Welfare
Fund (SWF). A sum of Rs. 95 crore was transferred to Special Reserve created under Section 36(1)(viii)
of IT Act, 1961. After appropriation of profit to the Special Reserve, SWE Dividend and Dividend Tax
thereon, the balance of profit of Rs. 194.11 crore was transferred to the Reserve Fund.

Significant Accounting Policies
1. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Small Industries
Development Bank of India Act, 1989, prudential norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of India, applicable
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and practices prevailing in
the banking industry. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on
an accrual basis, unless otherwise stated. The accounting policies that are applied by the Bank, are consistent
with those used in the previous year.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in garment manufacturing at Tirupur, Tamil Nadu.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of components at Peenya, Bangalore.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual

results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised in accordance

with the requirements of the respective accounting standard.

2. Revenue Recognition

A) Income

1)

(i)

(iif)

Interest income is accounted for on accrual basis, except where interest and/or installment of
principal/ bills repayment is due for more than 90 days as on the date of Balance Sheet as per RBI
norms applicable to the term lending and Refinancing Institutions. Interest in respect of such loan
accounts and receivable / bills finance is taken credit on actual receipt basis. Penal interest and interest
on seed capital/soft loan assistance are being accounted for on actual receipt basis in view of significant
uncertainty about their realisability.

Income is shown in the Profit and Loss Account net of provisions / write ofts / write backs during
the year for bad and doubtful debts and also other necessary and expedient provisions.

Discount received in respect of bills discounted / rediscounted and on Certificate of Deposit is
apportioned over the period of usance of the instruments.

Commitment charges, service charges on seed capital / soft loan assistance and royalty income are
accounted for on accrual basis in respect of standard (performing) assets.

Dividend on shares held in industrial concerns and financial institutions is recognised as income when
realized.

Income from Venture Capital funds are accounted on realisation basis.

Recovery in non-performing assets (NPA) is appropriated in the following order:

a) overdue interest upto the date of NPA,
b) principal,

9) cost & charges,

d) Interest and

e) penal interest.
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SIDBI's support to National

Bamboo Splinter- used for making of splints for agarbatti Natural Water Cooler-Low cost, energy efficient, environment

incense sticks and bamboo mat boards. friendly water cooler, which cools water naturally based on
principle of heat exchange.
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Sanitary Napkin Machine-prepare low cost sanitary napkin Laxmi Asu Machine-A low cost, energy efficient tie and dye

with the same materials as conventional napkins. machine.

B) Expenditure

(i) All expenditures are accounted for on accrual basis except Development Expenditure which is
accounted for on cash bass.

(i)  Discount on Bonds and Commercial papers issued are amortized over the tenure of Bonds and Commercial
Paper. The expenses relating to issue of Bonds are amortized over the tenure of the Bonds.

3. Investments

(i) In terms of extant guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India, the entire investment portfolio is

categorized as “Held to Maturity”, “Available for Sale” and “Held for Trading”. Investments are
valued in accordance with RBI guidelines. The investments under each category are further classified
as 1) Government Securities, 1) Other approved securities, ii1) Shares, iv) Debentures & Bonds,

v)Subsidiaries/ joint ventures and vi) Others (Commercial Paper, Mutual Fund Units etc.)
(a) Held to Maturity:

Investments acquired with the intention to hold till maturity are categorized under Held to
Maturity. Such investments are carried at acquisition cost unless it is more than the face value, in
which case the premium is amortized over the period remaining to maturity. Dimunition, other
than temporary, in the value of investments in subsidiaries/joint ventures under this category is

provided for each investment individually.
(b) Held for Trading:

Investments acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of the short-term price/
interest rate movements are categorized under Held for Trading. The investments in this category
are revalued as a whole and net appreciation /depreciation is recognized in the profit & loss

account, with corresponding change in the book value of the individual scrips.
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Multi Crop Thresher-machine capable of thrashing all types of crops with minimum changes Used in reducing carbon
in the setting of mechanical parts, thus saves time and energy. particulates from the flue gas
and damping the sound as well
as temperature.
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(ii)  3TPT 3R o7 1 AT foa/ o SIS A Tl TR WRafciet el TR @ 1R o 3R 21 o & e
o A R g |
(i) TeT fereft s Seremett & foT fersett st 3t 2 e o T &, et i TR ST 3iaT &, 3 @l
gwﬂﬁﬁﬁmw%,ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ@nw%mﬁ/wﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂwﬁkmﬁﬂ@m
|
(iv) T YRR & Ge 7 9% TR Rod 95 & Renee & SIaR 9 (397 o o a0 S € |
5. wWSRARm

(i) SR, SFefe 20T T 3= T ST it 37 oRIcA! T oh SR T Heh, STewIes, ey 3 i s
& T i T T @ | SRt o fore el ety fare 26 517 S fereet W) & S fihe e &
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- : C

Design making machine- An attachment can be fitted into Stencil Cutter for imprinting the cloths with the desired
any handloom Jacquard machine for the insertion of weft design being made on the butter paper.
threads needed to make a variety of designs.

(i

(i)

(c) Available for Sale:
[nvestments which do not fall within the above two categories are categorized under Available for
Sale. The individual scrips under this category are revalued and net depreciation under any of the
classification mentioned above is recognized in the profit & loss account. Net appreciation under any
classification 1s ignored. The book value of individual scrips is not changed.
(d) Profit or loss in sale of investment:
Profit or loss on sale of investments in any category is taken to profit and loss account. However,
in case of profit on sale of investments under “Held to Maturity” category, an equivalent amount is
appropriated to Capital Reserve Account.
The debentures / bonds / shares deemed to be in the nature of advance, are subject to the usual prudential
norms applicable to loans & advances. Investments in inter-corporate deposits are classified as Investments —
Others.
In respect of unquoted investments in industrial concerns under Seed Capital Scheme, full provision has been
made.
Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the books of account in respective foreign currencies.Accounting
for transactions involving foreign exchange is done in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)-11 issued
by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Assets and Liabilities are translated at the closing rates notified by FEDAI at the year end.
Income and Expenses are translated at monthly intervals through actual sale/purchase and recognized in the
profit and loss account accordingly.
Where foreign currency liabilities are not matched with foreign currency assets, the notional difference on
revaluation 1s adjusted with the accounts maintained under the special arrangements entered with lenders/
Government for managing exchange risk.
The Bank follows hedge accounting in respect of derivative transactions as per RBI guidelines.
Loans and Advances
Assets representing loan and other assistance portfolios are classified based on record of recovery as Standard,
Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets. Provision is made for assets, as per the norms in accordance with the

prudential norms issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
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(ii) o T 3feaifiad SHim, TR-froueen anf & fore five 7T Jrawm ) sem € |
(iii) AR T 3 Ty 3 G el R e o o feenfea o STER e me g

(iv) R o S % ool & S A SNt 0% Q= WaT o Stfafier, eyt 39 & dR
S ST T o ST ST S AR STt o el o SHifRere Yo o Tar e, S asTaRe 3t
T T SATCH € | ST M o WA 5 SA7eifeh et SToeerer fore o SFeier ahf T ST o afey &
St /e & T SR |

6. U

(i) T G o1 B e 2 3R SR T, AT I & | S STRIeRE ohl TR SRR SR o STaR
SAPTRE TIRETRal ah1 37eT ol ST el G T R TE 2 |

(i) ST SAFHRT, T ol FEATT ST T GH 3 & HeT TAUH a9 o QAR SR aadt au &
TERATCRIT & Jead 3 FH1 Pl ST § | SR &% &1 70T o8 i R WX 3R oo 1 9 o
AT 37 29 & 3 ST BT oh SR R T |

(iii) ST X T Fact 3T G 7 (e 31 7 <, Fory T o 7 e fopay © o saferer ey
AT 3T T, 5Tk e S SATRefiTer o 3l o et & el ¢ |

(iv) TEad ot ot i ST SNt o1 3 GiH o T 37 Fufor fier T 2, 57 G o 7
T T & 3 afosr & w3t e, Forgeh it St areafirer e et bt o o el ¢ |

7. iR
<o Shfee T 7 e, Y 37X T A SN Tl B SRS o dufE § e wem
T 5T ST TR-¢ FHIOTEAT oh SR G § | 39 JoTE o Wil Goraer f-oer & &9 H afiehet
P ST € 31X Forer & 3299 & 3R TR 37T T STieh<0] AT = et/ okt o Sered & &9 §
o ST & | e Feuefier T Goge & il e, 77 T Jem et o Sifuife o we wdaan
| O G YO YoaRR Bl S SR A % U F ohgifehd A S |

8. 3N et shuf~at el fereitar aftaa st fareht
(i) TR Frourees Snfct T fshT ehe ST T 37era e fer TEie (THeiy) 7 farer e o i e ¢ |
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing of capacitors at Faridabad, Haryana.

Advances stated in the Balance Sheet are net of provisions made for Non performing assets.
General provision on Standard Assets is made as per RBI guidelines.

In addition to the General provisions on Standard Assets as per RBI guidelines, as a measure of prudence, the Bank
1s making additional provision in respect of certain Standard Assets which are in the Stressed Assets category, as per
an approved policy. The internal policy for Provisions for Stressed Assets is based on risk perception/ risk appetite
in respect of certain portfolio under Indirect Finance.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises both current tax and deferred taxes. Current income tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with Income Tax Act.

Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of the current year timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based
on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Unrecognized deferred assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognized to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be

realized.
Securitisation

The Bank purchases credit rated Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Asset pools from Banks / Non Banking
Finance Companies by way of pass- through certificates issued by the Special Purpose Vehicle. Such securitisation
transactions are classified as Investments and further categorized as Held for Trading / Available For Sale depending
upon investment objective. The Bank purchases credit rated pool of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises assets
under bilateral direct assignment. Such direct assignment transactions are accounted for as ‘advances’ by the Bank.

Sale of Financial Assets to Asset Reconstruction Companies (ARCs)

The sale of NPA’s is on cash basis or investment in Security Receipt (SR) basis.
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Faridabad, Haryana.

(i) THIAN MR G F5ahT & Ae H, ol Gfeithet 3797e 38 IV &l THai & ©F H Fasr G S e |

(iii) % FoshT e a8 ger (3ref 96 9o & F 41 e 2 W% W 5o ) & H T ST €, <
Pl 3T foreii Y & -2 ol & A R ST |

(iv) Af fot Fac 98 g T Stfeieh Jo T S &, i et S Wi ahr gfcaifcier i faan s e, e
SR ST 311 -y fereier enfeat & foeft @ Seq=1 /e i il o fore fan ST &

9, T T &g YTadH

&, WaTHg TgT |

(i) g ey S 57 s S 1w PR Srorr A © 373U e T Srore o o o o 7
T W IR A 2 |

(i) T=ar Seorel T Yo et PR e S € o 3 eiehifor: e o, S - affogfid
U, SaTgd GaTd fefecr @, P81 e Rard S1fc o1 Jeae O it Jeie &
3T TR T foreiie o o it 7 o STl @, ST 1A ST ST U TR TR i ¢ |

(iii) STHifeReh /I TTeehret -1 ofd 7 &t o STl & 311X e fiTet e fibe < |

(iv) T JaafT AT & Fd T T GTar &1 79 579 9 2T <, 34 v & a-a o 3 39
PRIECRERINE NI

W UaTH TR g (ATt

(1)  SFcurafes At T ST T Sl T -] 3R TR B & 31X 39 Qa7 a7afel & Ty o 2 8, o
PO FHART O 7T T TR I & |

10. TR snfiat st qeagm :

%) R it T & ¥ g S SR T T

g) T F T qeE i Wy i o T e

_ FeATER 3R e
i) S & e el St - 100 e

168




Annual Report 2009-10

M o -—n.-::'a -

A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing precision components and moulds at Balanagar, Andhra Pradesh

In case of sale on SR basis, the sale consideration or part thereof is treated as investment in the form
of SRs.

If the sale at a price below the net book value (NBV) (i.e. book value less provisions held), the shortfall
is debited to the Profit and loss A/c of that Financial Year.

If the sale is for a value higher than NBV, the excess provision held is not reversed but utilized to meet
the Shortfall/loss on account of sale of other non-performing financial assets.

Provisioning for Staff Benefits
Post retirement benefits:

Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme administered by the Bank and the contributions are
charged to the Profit & Loss Account of the year.

Gratuity liability and Pension liability are defined benefit obligations and other long term employee
benefits like compensated absences, post retirement medical benefits, leave fare concession etc. are
provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year based on the
projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the profit and loss account and are not deferred.

Payments made under the Voluntary Retirement Scheme are charged to the Profit & Loss account in
the year of expenses incurred.

Benefits (Short — term) while in service:

Liability on account of Short term benefits are determined on an undiscounted basis and recognized
over the period of service, which entitles the employees to such benefits.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

a) Fixed Assets are shown at cost less depreciation.

b) Depreciation for the full year is provided on :

- Furniture and Fixture

1) For assets owned by Bank @ 100 percent
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in Engineering works at A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in Engineering works at
Dharwad, Karnataka. Hubli, Karnataka.

ii) A h AT &l Srorestl o TS Tz GX < T8 3= A - Jeawed Jod Yad - 10 Hieerd
- R I HIT R - 100 Yfcrerd
- e - eeIad g U5fd - 5 gfeerd
- forgd g
i) 5 % AT el 3t - JeTd g TEfd - 50 Jferd
ii ) FHATRET o AT Tl FoTHoST & o Tz T & TS 31 ST - I Jed Ui - 20 Hfeerd
- AT R - Wt 3@ A - 50 Fier
T) W g T OReNe TS i ofafe v e s g |
11. 3MehfETch SAATE & T ST 3Teh e s
9 el 51 o Wolea ey 18 S Sl ST €, 7 0T H ATt ST e 3T 3 58 ToeH e
ST E | TR ¥ o P G TEd § 37 e B 0 3 e A ferere S e S S e | feie
et & oy SR i 7 < A1 B € 7 & Y | S Secsl o Yo el kAT ST 37X
ST Jh T % SR AT e |
12. 3TJqH U4 Afoust
TRHR T 31 TG J T S T TfGeT &1 G, F2I% 6l 91| o S el ST € |
QIEIRELE
S % o A 2009- 10 F TR & AT H. T, W TS e, T R, 5o A 3, for AR
T I foehr Sk S, 1989 (TARIDNE) FT €T 30 (1) F STHIR, Tifafees e w37 % fore
feie 26 S 2009 1 SAPAST e FHFT @ o IR (et ebef T o |
et RO g2 g, 178 991 210 R TR R |
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A unit assisted by SIDBI engaged in manufacturing auto components at Faridabad, Haryana.

11.

12.

ii) For other assets given on lease to employees for furnishing of residence @ 10 percent on WDV
basts.

- Computer and Computer Software @ 100 percent

- Building @ 5 per cent on WDV basis

- Electrical Installations

1) For assets owned by Bank @ 50 percent on WDV basis

ii) For other assets given on lease to employees for furnishing of residence @ 20 percent on WDV
basts.

- Motor Car - Straight Line Method - @ 50 percent.
¢) Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.
Provision for Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed
in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are not provided for and are disclosed by way of notes.

Grants and Subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the Government and other agencies are accounted as per the terms and
conditions of the agreement.

Auditors

The accounts of the Bank for the financial year 2009-10 were audited by M/s A.J. Shah & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai who were appointed in terms of Section 30(1) of the SIDBI Act, 1989 (as amended)
at the Annual General Meeting held on June 26,2009 for carrying out the statutory audit.

The reports of the Auditors are given on Page Nos. 178 & 210.
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31 WTd, 2009
March 31, 2009

QIATY
LIABILITIES

31 9", 2010
March 31, 2010

%. Rs.

750,00,00,000

250,00,00,000

1000,00,00,000

450,00,00,000

4129,20,73,725

148,10,87,203

24,94,22,674

55,19,63,645

792,00,00,000

5149,45,47,247

3525,40,50,000

7437,05,55,830

16561,91,53,077

172

AR Yl / SHARE CAPITAL

UTfergd / Authorised

10/~ . U0 IR & X | 75,00,00,000 SIS TR
75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

10/~ 3. U IR BT X H 25,00,00,000 TET ST 2R
25,00,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each

SIRY 3R g

Issued and paid-up

10/- %. Ui IR B & | 45,00,00,000 SfAIST TR
45,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

farfeat, faftrn siv sty (feweft & 1)
RESERVES, FUNDS AND SURPLUS (Note No. 1)
i) Rfefay A/ Reserve Fund
i) =g i/ Other Funds

@) WY i

a)  National Equity Fund

W) <% Hearr e

b) Staff Welfare Fund
iii) IRfAIfT / Reserves

%) fAaer aRfafa
a) Investment Reserve
@) IgaR ARFTIH, 1961 B GRT 36 (1) (viii)
@ =i ST gd gRfer faRy syt
b) Special Reserve created and maintained u/s
36 (1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
iv) ey /' Surplus

SUER, &M, T 3R argus ARy

GIFTS, GRANTS, DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS
i) WRHR F / From Government

i) =T Al / From other sources

qivs 3R fedar (feweft 4. 2)
BONDS AND DEBENTURES (Note No. 2)

gy (feweft 4. 3)
DEPOSITS (Note No. 3)

EBRIG]

Carried Forward

%. Rs.

750,00,00,000

250,00,00,000

%. Rs.

4323,31,73,555

167,44,64,973

24,25,71,858

55,19,63,645

887,00,00,000

1000,00,00,000

450,00,00,000

5457,21,74,031

5311,73,90,000

11586,95,57,212

22805,91,21,243
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Appendix - |
Annual Accounts

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010

31 914, 2009 anfaar 31 91, 2010
March 31, 2009 ASSETS March 31, 2010
%. Rs. %. Rs. %. Rs.
Aad) iR % srfaay
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
) BRI H Fhal IR IR Rord d& # srfoey
14,25,655 Cash in hand and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 7,08,355
i) 9Rd Rerd o dat # srferey
Balances with other Banks in India
®) e @I H
21,52,89,002 a) On Current Account 50,21,61,996
@) e |
120,69,75,000 b) On Deposit Account 156,49,00,000
i) YR & 9Te% = dpl H Irfarey
Balances with other Banks outside India
®) e @I H
36,03,835 a) On Current Account 33,57,756
@) ey e
679,57,67,145 b) On Deposit Account 968,13,36,106
822,30,60,637 1175,24,64,213
foder
INVESTMENTS
) D= AR ST WEHRI B ufengfot #
9,23,89,500 In securities of Central and State Governments 46,90,42,500
i) dof iR faxiio wxemil & IRRT #

329,07,85,973
482,49,32,811
78,99,04,056

869,76,49,526

1769,56,61,866

24298,95,66,068

5036,37,54,296
29335,33,20,364

31927,20,42,867

In shares of banks and financial institutions
i) o SR faxia wvermell & dfvel SR federl #
In bonds and debentures of banks and financial institutions

iv) SiEnfie ufieml & wie, Wi, dvel iR fed=ri

In stocks, shares, bonds and debentures of industrial concerns

v) 3
Others

0T 3 3fUT
LOANS AND ADVANCES

i) dof 3R 3 fa<iy wvermel &
To banks and other financial institutions
i) 3NeEnfire ufosHl &

To industrial concerns

EBRIG]

Carried Forward

308,25,54,064
288,75,58,795
364,76,20,569

754,66,26,661

28872,43,69,291

6845,70,73,494

1763,34,02,589

35718,14,42,785

38656,73,09,587
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ARAR oy ST faera 4@
31 97, 2010 BT Je—u=

31 A1, 2009 <IATY 31 9, 2010
March 31, 2009 LIABILITIES March 31, 2010
%. Rs. %. Rs. %. Rs.
16561,91,53,077 Brought Forward 22805,91,21,243
6. SHUR
BORROWINGS
i) R Rod 96

From Reserve Bank of India
D) id, FREl iR o =R ufnfodl o) ufengd
= a) Secured against stocks, funds and other trustee securities =
@) fafma fdt ar 9= o3t W) gfend
Secured against bills of exchange or promissory notes —
SieRfre o1 (St aReTe) AR @
Out of the National Industrial Credit -
(Long Term Operations) Fund

6269,00,00,000

(=)
= =

T

|
o

ii) TRT WRBR A
From Government of India
®)  ATT—Had FT
6,72,60,000 a) Interest-free loan 3,16,30,000
@) facel ST aReIRl & S a—oT
SR BIRATIRE YO (STTghT) Fe0T

654,13,33,238 b)  Against foreign lines of credit- Japan International 610,52,44,356
Cooperation Agency (JICA) Loans
M) I E

— c) Other loans =

iii) 3= drdl ¥ (fewol & 4)

3330,58,00,000 From Other sources (Note No. 4) 8990,82,42,127
iv) faceh gar # (fewoh 4. 5)
3844,51,89,890 In Foreign Currency (Note No. 5) 4414,55,35,006
14104,95,83,128 14019,06,51,489

7.  dre] <garg g yraane (fewoft 4. 6)
3938,74,51,102 CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS (Note No. 6) 5060,06,13,420

34605,61,87,307 41885,03,86,152

@ fewforat (SrgEer 1) / Notes to Accounts (Annexure )
wgayel d@n fifadi (@ 7) /- Significant Accounting Policies (Chapter 7)
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SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010

31 9rd, 2009 SRR 31 91, 2010
March 31, 2009 ASSETS March 31, 2010
%. Rs. %. Rs.

31927,20,42,867

1544,91,40,393

208,28,12,929

5,04,55,840

920,17,35,278

34605,61,87,307

Brought Forward

HATY Y AT Y=1: YA ¢ fatma 9 9 999 u=
BILLS OF EXCHANGE AND PROMISSORY NOTES
DISCOUNTED OR REDISCOUNTED

gRex (fewvft 4. 9)
GG RN R CEDY
PREMISES (Note No. 9)
(At cost less depreciation)

3 ReR R

(NI # & oI HeTa)
OTHER FIXED ASSETS
(At cost less depreciation)

3= 3t
OTHER ASSETS

38656,73,09,587

2242,95,66,094

203,39,27,399

4,24,82,828

777,71,00,244

41885,03,86,152

Annual Report 2009-10
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ARA oy T fas™ 9@
31 9714, 2010 BT T 9Y & foIv am—a1fy orar
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31 91, 2009
March 31, 2009

g
EXPENDITURE

31 9T, 2010
March 31, 2010

%. Rs.

1068,65,49,561
94,07,32,446
18,67,532
16,68,630
13,52,74,407
68,70,803
23,81,757
354,46,432
10,79,13,120
61,23,34,625

829,20,08,278
2082,30,47,591

829,20,08,278

350,00,00,000

479,20,08,278
180,00,00,000

299,20,08,278

10.

11.

e, SURT anfe R yex <ot 9 faxig =

Interest & Financial Charges paid on Deposits, Borrowings, etc.

YT g
Establishment Expenses

el iR AT & el @ B T Y

Directors' & Committee Members' Fees and Expenses
TAG—TRIETDT BT B

Auditors' Fees

Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Lighting, etc.

[EIEMCEIN
Law Charges

ST Y, IR 4 fehe
Postage, Telegrams & Stamps

g T, geor, e anfe

Stationery, Printing, Advertisement, etc.

U / AR

Depreciation / Amortisation

I g
Other Expenditure

q9 BT JLT AT

Profit for the year carried down

Y & forg o= gd o

Profit before Tax for the year

B b oy graer=
Provision for Tax

gdaddt a9 & R =g YeRifhd SrfriRad wraem=

Excess provision for Tax of earlier year written back

PR B GG AN
Profit after Tax

RN B ARSI (3MRA) / T
Deferred Tax Adjustment (Asset) / Liability

RPN ¥ 9§

Profit before appropriations

%. Rs.

1476,81,64,798

106,44,78,020

22,71,592

14,23,961

13,49,01,814

77,00,437

40,08,624

2,46,94,188

10,31,85,994

63,79,27,691

864,93,74,290

2539,81,31,409

864,93,74,290

449,00,00,000

1,35,73,978

417,29,48,268

(4,00,00,000)

421,29,48,268
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SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
Profit and Loss Account for the Year ended March 31, 2010

31 ATd, 2009
March 31, 2009

3
INCOME

@ & QAR STy Ud ST FEO & UTGRTHl TT ST IMAIH: d S UIIHT Bl TeTdhv)

(Less provisions made during the year for bad and doubtful debts and other

necessary and expedient provisions)

31 #rd, 2010
March 31, 2010

%. Rs.

1724,19,49,406

61,54,27,931

31,51,15,786

265,05,54,468

2082,30,47,591

ToT 3R deer anf

Interest and Discount etc.

(RENIREEI]

Income from Investments

HHITH, TefTell 3nfe

Commission, Brokerage, etc.

[RENIRCARCEIRGREEEAcIE]

(S srfarforat # ar fodt fafre fAfer a7 oy #

ST 21 far )

Net Profit on sale of investments

(not credited to reserves or any particular fund or account)

3= 3 (fewoft &, 12)
Other Income (Note No. 12)

%. Rs.

2318,64,29,552

69,52,81,339

73,92,01,212

77,72,19,306

2539,81,31,409

Annual Report 2009-10
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ARG g T b 9@
31 |19, 2010 BT A 9Y & Ty AT—aIf oi=aT

31 A, 2009 R 31 514, 2010
March 31, 2009 EXPENDITURE March 31, 2010
%. Rs. %. Rs.
faf=T / Appropriations
SrRferfer ey # sfaRa
129,22,92,028 Transferred to Reserve Fund 194,10,99,830
T Heamr fAfey # siaRa
1,00,00,000 Transferred to Staff Welfare Fund 1,00,00,000
JAMARR, ARTH, 1961 BT &_T 36 (1) (viii) B
o e B 3 aiah
90,00,00,000 Transferred to Special Reserve u/s 36 (1) (viii) of IT Act 1961 95,00,00,000
SRl ST W .
67,50,00,000 Dividend on Equity Shares 112,50,00,000
SfFTST IR B AT WR B
11,47,16,250 Tax on Dividend on Equity Shares 18,68,48,438
299,20,08,278 421,29,48,268
gfar IR e (%) fewoll €. 15; &S @1 sifvad &1 10 ©.
6.65 Earning per share (Rs.) Note No. 15; Face value of Rs. 10/- each 9.36

AE-rhEsl o Rurd

gfa ERERS,
A oy e few I

B AR SE e 96 @ 31 719, 2010 B G §Q 9§ & Joli—UF, AM—2IM o Ud 96 & SH ARG Pl GG §Y dY b ADal HaTs
faeRor @1 JEr—udEr @ 8, o & Hord ¥
I = faver §& @ ydee @1 SoReEE | < 3 facfr faRon @ era—diem & oMUR W AR Udhe aR T FAN gRT 1 T oiRa—Te ARd
ﬁWWWWWW%IWW?WWW?%@W*W&@WWW THR HN R 6 39 AR
# T wU W T gom off W 6 Suwdad faxiw feRer, Fedl vd wed @ 9 W%lé@uﬁmﬁﬁ?ﬁuﬁwwa%?m ydedl & U A
SO A DI TG0 ER W, ST AMAA © | oRa—9Re ¥, Jaerd grRI mmammmmwmqmwﬁaﬁqﬁ&ﬂ%wu—w
Wwﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁawﬁaﬁmgﬁmwﬂﬁwﬁa%|ﬁﬁﬁwé TN RIS AN YW P oY FIHT oTHR UeH bl |

]

BT B
i) —4, 99 R &I T3 wfrdi vd wewyel orar Rl |, —w%aﬁyﬂﬁzomﬁézﬁ%maaﬁﬂﬁﬁaﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁqﬁﬂﬁm%
‘igaqmii,zomﬁwzréa%fﬁnwmﬁﬁ'@WW@ f%tqﬁre%?ﬂ Sfornt Afed, 31 A/ 2010 B T 99 b fAU @ B SRR
P 98 Rafgy gerfar 2, sk
(iii) yarg faaRer 31 AE, 2010 @ GG 9§ & foU 9HQ) yarE @ ¥ vd el Rfa garr g
P Ol 3B TS B,

THIRU. 109476 W
IS, 31§, 2010 &R+ w e
Eﬁa? — TUH. ¥ 100052

Report of the Auditors'
To the Shareholders of
the Small Industries Development Bank of India.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of the Small Industries Development Bank of India (‘Bank') as at March 31, 2010 and also the Profit and Loss
Account and Cash Flow Statement of the Bank for the year ended on that date.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material mis-statements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We report that :
1. V\/pe have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and the same
have been satisfactory.
2. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account are properly drawn up in accordance with the requirements of the Regulation 14 of the Small Industries
Development Bank of India General Regulations, 2000.
3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
(i) The Balance Sheet read together with the notes thereon and Significant Accounting Policies, is a full and fair Balance Sheet so as to exhibit a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2010.
(ii) The Profit and Loss Account read together with the notes thereon and Significant Accounting Policies, shows a true balance of profit for the year ended March
31, 2010 and
(iii) The Cash Flow Statement gives a true and fair view of the cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2010.
For A.J. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 109476W
Mumbai, May 31, 2010 Hiren Shah
Partner - M. No. 100052
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SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
Profit and Loss Account for the Year ended March 31, 2010

31 91, 2009
March 31, 2009

3
INCOME

31 9T, 2010
March 31, 2010

(@ & SR ST Ud wfeTe Fol & UGl GAT I JMeId 9 U UIaRIHl bl HeTdhy)

(Less provisions made during the year for bad and doubtful debts and other

necessary and expedient provisions)

%. Rs.

299,20,08,278

299,20,08,278

|4 fastia @1 g Rl & 1gaR

As per our report of even date

Pl T, TATE YIS &,
HAL TIETHR

For A.J. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

TH3RUT / FRN. 109476W

IBERIE
TSGR

TH. = 100052
Hiren Shah
Partner
MNo.100052

S, 31 93, 2010

Mumbai, May 31, 2010

q9 BT JLT AT

Profit for the year brought down

). v, Wrels
EIRPIGEAR ST

V.S. Rathore
Executive Director

T, Q. ST
IREED
S.S. Chattopadhyay

Director

41, 7T
IRCHED

B. Manivannan
Director

MDY A

S y&e Qs
Rakesh Rewari

Deputy Managing Director

<. AR, gaferar
T. R. Bajalia
Director

@, AR
[BENED

K. Sitaramam
Director

%. Rs.

421,29,48,268

421,29,48,268

dIs @ IRUATTIAR
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

JMR.YH. Heell

JeTeT Td yey feera

R.M. Malla

Chairman & Managing Director

SIF®) doetd
IREHED
Janki Ballabh

Director
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3194 1/ Annexure |

NOTES :

31 ATd, 2010
March 31, 2010

%. Rs.

1. Rfarfer, it i siferey

Reserves, Funds and Surplus

(i)

(ii)

srfarfar fafer

Reserve Fund

A JAT—UA & AR 3Ty

Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Sifsy - faf=r fifdat & sfaRa

Add : Transferred from Various Funds
SISy : amM—g1f o & ofaRa

Add : Transferred from Profit and Loss Account

4129,20,73,725

4323,31,73,555
3= ffera
Other Funds

P) I gfaady ey
a) National Equity Fund

T JAT—TF B AR AR
Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Sfey: g HraeT

Add : Provisions written back

148,10,87,203

167,44,64,973
) SeM Yol ffer
b) Venture Capital Fund
T JAT—UF B AR AR
Balance as per last Balance Sheet

Sfey:  gRifehd wrawm

Add Provision written back _
HeI3T: aRferfar 9y 7 sfaRa
Less : Transferred to Reserve Fund

1) fauu fasra Aerar ey

c) Marketing Development Assistance Fund
A G5 & AR AT

Balance as per last Balance Sheet

SIfSu: gRIfhd U1

Add Provision written back _
HeI3T: Sferfer 9y 7 sfaRa

Less : Transferred to Reserve Fund

®) #fear faera e

d) Mahila Vikas Nidhi
A JIAT—UF & IR JAfLy
Balance as per last Balance Sheet
gerRy: RfEfa i # sfaRa

Less : Transferred to Reserve Fund

194,10,99,830

19,33,77,770

31 WTd, 2009
March 31, 2009

%. Rs.

3620,68,45,926

379,29,35,771

129,22,92,028

4129,20,73,725

144,53,76,320

3,57,10,883

148,10,87,203

178,35,37,258

96,65,00,000

275,00,37,258

58,25,00,000

7,75,00,000

66,00,00,000

17,49,58,160

17,49,58,160
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010

fewfory « (S)

NOTES : (Contd.)

(iii)

(iv)

) wfear S Al
(e) Mahila Udyam Nidhi

T JAT—TF B IR Afrey

Balance as per last Balance Sheet

SIfeu: eI ATaeT

Add : Provisions written back
EeTST: IRfErfa A § siafa

Less : Transferred to Reserve Fund

q) b Hedrvr e

(f) Staff Welfare Fund
T JoT—U & AR Jfferey
Balance as per last Balance Sheet

SIST: o1y nRaat ¥ affaa ST

Add Deposit classified in other Assets
gcigy: NCTH Dl N I
Less : Expenditure towards staff welfare
SIf$T: M-I oRd ¥ ofaRd
Add : Transferred from Profit and Loss Account
RINEIGDI]
Reserves
&) faer smxfarfa

a) Investment Reserve
T JoT—U o TR Ifferey
Balance as per last Balance Sheet
SfeY:  AM—gI oRd | faRd

Add - Transferred from Profit and Loss Account

@) DR AFAFTIH, 1961 B &R 36 (1) (viii) S 3r=avia Giora
Td grfera faeiy srfarfa
b) Special Reserve created and maintained u/s 36 (1)(viii)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961
T JAT—TF B IR AfTLT
Balance as per last Balance Sheet
SSY: A8 o ¥ SR

Add Transferred from Profit and Loss Account

SRy
Surplus

2. dive AR fedax

Bonds and Debentures

D)

a)
)
)
Bl
c)

(=)

VR IRGR BT SN Risdl d1vs
SIDBI Bonds issued to Gol

CIS]
Unsecured Bonds

YT il dfvs
Capital Gain Bonds

31 ATd, 2010

March 31, 2010

%. Rs.

24,94,22,674

1,68,50,816

1,00,00,000
24,25,71,858

55,19,63,645

55,19,63,645

792,00,00,000

95,00,00,000

887,00,00,000

5457,21,74,031

2172,80,00,000

3121,60,00,000

17,33,90,000

5311,73,90,000

31 WTd, 2009
March 31, 2009

%. Rs.

9,86,00,000
10,94,00,000

20,80,00,000

23,41,91,837
2,00,08,163
1,47,77,326

1,00,00,000
24,94,22,674

55,19,63,645

55,19,63,645

702,00,00,000

90,00,00,000

792,00,00,000

5149,45,47,247

2172,80,00,000

1321,60,00,000

31,00,50,000

3525,40,50,000
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fewfort ; (Sm)
NOTES : (Contd.)
3. STHT
Deposits
®) ST o T ATafer STET
a) Fixed Deposit from Public
@) faeel ud fof e @ del |
b)  From Foreign & Private Sector Banks
M ged, g 9 FeIE S (qAfda) M faxi af 2008—09
c) Under MSME (Refinance) Fund FY 2008-09
) STHT YHT0T 9o
d) Certificate of Deposit
T) geH, g 9 779 S (SIReH goll) [ & siefa
e)  Under MSME (Risk Capital) Fund
) ged, g 9 7 Sed (gAfd) e ki af 200010 @ ofafa
f) Under MSME (Refinance) Fund FY 2009-10

4. I gl ¥ SuUR
Borrowings From Other Sources

D)

a)
Q)

ed &8 ad g

Jot / o< Gvermell & areurafey ot
Short Term Loan from Banks / Financial Institutions

el ga1 S @ & ufd do |

From Bank against Foreign Currency Deposit A/c

STRY aTforge 97 aran

Commercial Paper Issued Account
9% @ I IER

Borrowings from Bank Account

I IHR—b SuR (Arafey i, Hdiversn, For waven)
Other Inter-Bank Borrowings (Term Money, CBLO, Line of Credit)

5. faceh ga1 ¥ SuR

Borrowings in Foreign Currency

3))
d

BUBSKY, STHA A

From KfW, Germany

ST SRS DI Tolvdl (STga) o
From Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)

JATSUHTS], I A

From IFAD, Rome
oS dd — FOT awe
World Bank Line of Credit

6.  dIe s # AefeRad Ff—w e €

Current Liabilities include the following Fund Balances

D)
a)
Q)
)

)
)

=)

(@]

Rrsdl sremar Arar Ffe
SIDBI Disability Assistance Fund

Rrsd) wied warea Ao
SIDBI Voluntary Health Scheme

faeeh ga1 SaR—=eE

Foreign Currency Fluctuation Fund

31 9Td, 2010
March 31, 2010

%. Rs.

2220,25,20,212
1031,13,37,000
3325,57,00,000

510,00,00,000

500,00,00,000

4000,00,00,000

11586,95,57,212

300,00,00,000

731,84,51,586

2275,00,00,000

5600,00,00,000

83,97,90,541

8990,82,42,127

761,20,89,566

2322,71,49,759

109,46,75,618

1221,16,20,063

4414,55,35,006

1,80,04,633

7,82,38,254

1377,29,01,297

31 ATd, 2009
March 31, 2009

%. Rs.

1246,63,81,830
2284,84,74,000

3325,57,00,000
330,00,00,000

250,00,00,000

7437,05,55,830

1550,00,00,000

580,58,00,000

1200,00,00,000
3330,58,00,000

593,89,36,828

2518,44,09,079

123,54,43,983

608,64,00,000

3844,51,89,890

1,63,64,671

5,30,87,234

1235,42,31,536
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010

fewfort : (o)
NOTES : (Contd.) 31 =T, 2010 31 5rd, 2009
March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

7. BRSPS IATY ®. Rs. 3. Rs.
Contingent Liabilities
) db W I TG R T A& HET T 8
a)  Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 124,49,90,953 112,06,21,632
W) TR /ARG @ HeldHy
b) On account of Guarantees / Letters of Credit 186,55,60,908 156,07,90,904
M) AT AR & heRdwy
c)  On account of Forward Contracts 123,82,623 34,98,93,799
) SiIRed SRR Ifaganel & Hevaey
d) On account of underwriting commitments _ _
)  fif¥re WU W ued IWRI, O anfe W T ARl T IR & werawy
e) On account of uncalled monies on partly paid shares, debentures, etc. _ _
9 g IREN 9 @ forg % a1 eeee I ®
f) Other monies for which the Bank is contingently liable 1186,60,00,000 1313,70,00,000

1498,89,34,484 1616,83,06,336

8. Yol @ R fAwfed g S & forg 2 wfdamsii @ srgarfa i,
forres forg uraem 21 fasam T (< 1w @1 gera)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
Capital Account not provided for (net of advance paid) 94,46,40,767 17,30,70,008

9. URWR # IRWR IRUET | wefda i IR/ 89,92,453 $0 (ISl a9 - 42,13,253 TUY) T UFHariE gofra &1 & H&fed
1,59,43,524 0 (Bl a9 - 25,05,815 BUY) A & |
Premises include advance towards acquisition of Premises Rs. 89,92,453 (Previous Year - Rs. 42,13,253) and Capital Work in
Progress Rs. 1,59,43,524 (Previous Year - Rs. 25,05,815).

10. ST SEALE HISTIREE Toikil (STgan) (RFTRY Ugel STUT 9 3iTth SexMel BRITIR — SRS & T | ST ST 21) ¥ o
AT V S Sl urat 30 fafera S 39 @ facel gu1 SuR & Hdy # R PR S AR WeHd 6l b fgER g &)
IAR—=ed 13 (S3RTHUS) o $1 T © Ua S [l 9a1 Sar—dem siRfdfa (e # enfie fan a2 1 fash ga1 3 SaR—<em
% PR JeTT W ¥ 31T 382,05,82,458 FUI & R (fUwel a¥ - 492,70,76,828 TUY) BT IRA AXBR Bl JFANT & Agwyd A
R SAR—aera [l # o fhar 71 € | Afe Sl g, A1 51d 1 SftRT &7 fehee g o fhar S 8, 79 (i @t 3 Saries
fopar SeEm | afe (Y 3 IRy STuafe & &, A1 $HdT &A1 IR ARBR 3 BT SR |
In respect of foreign currency borrowings of JPY 30 billion, under line V from Japan International Co-operation Agency (JICA),
(previously known as Japan Bank of International Cooperation-JBIC). Exchange Rate Fluctuation Fund (ERFF) has been created
as per terms agreed with Government of India and included in Foreign Currency Fluctuation Reserve Fund. The difference on
account of exchange fluctuation arising on principal account amounting to Rs 382,05,82,458 (Previous year - Rs. 492,70,76,828)
has been netted off against ERFF as permitted by the Government of India. Adjustment to the Fund account, if necessary, will be
made as and when the differences are crystallised. If the balance in the Fund is insufficient, the claim will be on Government of
India.

11, SIERISH 0T [V & 3fifd MR WRGR F U 6,10,52,44,356 U &1 F0T Jold—03 ¥ 30 VIEIS S Jod # R foar T

2 RIfd HIR B AT RIS BT oo HRIT DT ST 39 F 0T 3R 9 F0T S (ol I MY SARUGTH & AT & INT  AH
B B UL e B SR § | $9 HUT B 7 T SARVBYG § 31 A, 2010 BT AY 4,88,27,51,545 0 & |

The borrowing of Rs. 6,10,52,44,356 from Govt. of India under the JBIC IV loan is carried forward in the balance sheet at its
historic rupee value since SIDBI's liability towards principal repayment under the agreement, is not expected to exceed the
aggregate of the rupee borrowings and the balance in the ERFF maintained for this loan. The balance as on March 31, 2010 in
ERFF maintained for this loan is Rs. 4,88,27,51,545.
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fewfort : (oY)
NOTES : (Contd.)

12.  gdadi 99 § 9% 7 D UG S 9 K & Gay H Al g & Sar—Tee | s9E & foy e ) faes e @ e @
%) BT (AT fhar 2| o7 IR S Uk & YE—@1d 1d d8 &) faar a7 7, aiifes faeeh fafvwa Sikew &1 refafd W & 9erg o=
foram 1 2 | JegER, R 9 & <RI 8,96,24,622 %. (fUSel I — 236,48,93,308 T.) & (TS R S UG &I SfcIRad IR DI Geifehd
foam T & T ! 37 Ty ¥ wnfae o T 2
The Bank, in earlier years, has created Interest Rate Differential funds (IRDF) in respect of borrowings from Kfw to cover foreign
exchange fluctuation in connection with these loans. The maintenance of IRDF has been discontinued since the foreign exchange
risk has been covered through long term swaps. Accordingly, during the financial year the excess amount of IRDF of Rs.
8,96,24,622 (Previous Year-Rs. 236,48,93,308) is written back and same is included in other income.

13. 9@ 7 'GYEIH MR W IR SIaT—H FaaR & oIy MSHISHIeTE drare vRd $RAING SUl 9 9RIGRT @1 2 | 98 & IR §&
T TIATT ¥ 447,464 T (sl ¥ 576,222 $UY) B 3T §S |

The Bank has partnered with ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company to undertake non-life insurance business on 'Referral
Basis'. The income from bancassurance business during the year is Rs. 4,47,464 (Previous Year - Rs. 5,76,222).

14.  Adfea urfdar aF g=h
List of Related Parties :

(®) wErs Heg
(A) Subsidiaries
1 Rrsdl R dftea ifics (TadRied)
SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL)
2 foed o= puAl fafics (TdRige)
SIDBI Trustee Company Limited (STCL)

(@) wearh "o
(B) Associates
1 WRAY Y T w9 Sed ARG gAAT dul fAfics (e gavsR)
India SME Asset Reconstruction Company (ISARC)
2 TRIUHE T oRl aitw SR . (@R
SME Rating Agency of India Ltd. (SMERA)
3 RGO oY Ud "M SEM UEifiel a1 fafics (revadivayd)
India SME Technology Services Ltd. (ISTSL)
@M 9% @ e y§y s
(C) Key Managerial Personnel of the Bank :
1 S AR.TA. Heall, AeeT UG Y fawd
Shri R.M. Malla, Chairman & Managing Director
2 A0 B AR, IU geE e
Shri Rakesh Rewari, Deputy Managing Director
3 50 99d Us, SU UaY fed (31 SR 2009 )
Shri Basant Seth, Deputy Managing Director (Upto August 31, 2009)
ST Gl § IRGR R Sem e 78 € w®ife J §iege oift a1ds yarsced 3ifh $far g1 SNy okl A
— 18 & 3TJ<Ys 9 §RT B UK & |
The above list does not include State Controlled Enterprises since the same are exempted vide para 9 of Accounting
Standard - 18 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010

fewfory : (Sm)

NOTES

: (Contd.)

(&) W95 g&El & dAad 9 Hfd fIavor &1 yBHRon

(D) Disclosures of details pertaining to related party transactions :

@)

a)

2gcoc4cgd

Y & ARM 9P B

IRARRIT A wfe g, F=aa B :

T DT Ua<l el I,

o

The gross salary including perquisites paid to the Key Managerial

Personnel of the Bank during the year is as under :

(i) =7 IR.UHA. Foa, 3feuel Ud e
Shri R.M. Malla, Chairman & Managing Director

(i) & B ANy, SU Y&

Shri Rakesh Rewari, Deputy Managing Director
(01 37iteT 2009 ¥ 31 TR 2009)

(i) N ST o, I y§e

Shri Basant Seth, Deputy Managing Director
(From April 01, 2009 to August 31, 2009)
&l A @ 31 2010 & IHAT NIRRT

SRR

Outstanding balances of loans as on March 31,2010 in respect of above persons

URg YegH Al o fad av 2009—10 & IR AR fhy MU K0l W &1

Interest on loans granted to Key Managerial Personnel during FY 2009-10

2009-2010

%. Rs.

25,99,566
23,83,822
15,07,214

Nil

Nil

2008-2009
%. Rs.

11,24,749
9,97,347
9,33,017

Nil

Nil

ddg el /Related Party

He—I$® A< / Subsidiaries

Al |3+ / Associates

faazvr / Particulars

vadiRfiver / SVCL

vaddya / STCL

T / SMERA

JASTHTIRYT / ISARC

AFTHITHT / ISTSL

Rl # fdwr
Investment in Shares
99 & IR AHITER

Transactions during the year

2,48,75,030
(1,38,75,000)

13,50,00,600 -
(1,49,99,400) -

g H gHrm
Outstanding at end of the year

1,00,00,000
(1,00,00,000)

5,00,000
(5,00,000)

4,97,50,000
(2,48,74,970)

15,00,00,000
(1,49,99,400)

1,00,00,000
(1,00,00,000)

9T« 3149/ Income received
I gRT U afdy
Amount received by Bank

3,61,64,414
(2,61,20,598)

80,000
(90,000)

34,31,863
(74,740)

75,32,635

quI=q ® yr XIRRIT

Receivables at end of the year

14,82,258

<t a1 gfagfd
Reimbursement of expenses
d® gr

Amount claimed by Bank

60,89,170
(10,27,392)

60,394
(5,22,482)

38,16,259
(46,18,845)

13,93,719
(12,49,376)

quI=T ® ur XIRRIT

Receivables at end of the year

13,69,617

(4,60,697)

21,00,786
(22,36,798)

11,73,262
(13,94,899)

Il BT I
Payment of ex
[ &RT yad
Amount paid by Bank
e / FHRI / Fees / Commission
& / Interest

enses

quI H QI

Payable at end of the year
e / FHRM / Fees / Commission
19 / Interest

12,67,326

11,10,416

57,69,318

38,31,127

8,61,993

1,51,703

STHT / Deposits
I§ & SR U
Received during the year

i<t # FHrm
Qutstanding at end of the year

2,75,00,000

2,75,00,000

2,14,46,000

2,14,46,000

ST @1 fasma / Sale of Advances
9§ & IRM FATER

Transactions during the year

g H gHrT
Outstanding at end of the year

28,90,35,000** =

e T o TR oS A

/ (Figures in brackets are for previous year)

G 1957,11,750 B. I PG AR 93323250 T. P IRI-MfERI 2nfAiet 1,/ **includes cash of Rs. 19,57,11,750 and Security receipts of Rs. 9,33,23,250
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NOTES : (Contd.)

15. Y% AR UX SUTSH / Earning Per Share (EPS)

31 9Td, 2010
March 31, 2010

31 94, 2009
March 31, 2009

TP IR TR UL YR$BT & fore Had o (3)

Net Profit considered for EPS calculation (Rs.)

10 %. 3ifdhd Iou & Sfaac) R o dwn

Number of equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each

TAd IR W SUTSH (%) / Earning per share (Rs.)

421,29,48,268

45,00,00,000
9.36

299,20,08,278

45,00,00,000
6.65

16. oG AF® 22 — 37T W PR o @I DI LRI & AR, 96 7 JRANTT IR FI / Tad I FHIET Bl 7, AR 31 AT, 2010 DI T a9 B

fore  am—=1 oI # 4,00,00,000 FUY IMRAMT PR MR (Bl I§ MRAMTT B GTAT 180,00,00,000 T 2fY) BT A MRANT Bx MR
A T | AT 31 ATE 2010, IRARTT HR R/ (QTT) & ST "ed FfaRed § -

As per the Accounting Standard 22, Accounting for Taxes on Income, the Bank has reviewed the Deferred Tax Expenditure/Saving and
recognised an amount of Rs. 4,00,00,000 as Deferred Tax Asset (Previous Year Deferred Tax Liability was Rs. 180,00,00,000) in the Profit and

Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2010. The Break up of Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) as on March 31, 2010 is as follows :

T TR
Timing Difference

a4 31, 2010 @I
SRAFTT TR
i / (<) (%))
As at March 31, 2010
Deferred Tax
Asset/(Liability) Rs.

a1 31, 2009 @I
SRAFTT TR
i / (<) (%))
As at March 31, 2009
Deferred Tax
Asset/(Liability) Rs.

)

TIEN & oy uraeT

Provision for Depreciation

SRR IR, 1961 BT €IRT 36(1)(viii) & 3fca A9y sxfafy
Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
R AT e Foll T TR

Provisions for Bad & Doubtful Debts

HRA WRPR & §ivsi WX NHATH b1 qRered

Amortisation of Premium on GOI Bonds
Gl &1 YRIAAT B JTaET

Provision for Restructuring of Accounts
I

Others

fraer smerfira & snf¥a / (Qran)

Net deferred tax Asset/(Liability)

e P e NN
>decgegoIecde

45,00,000

(232,84,00,000)

49,72,00,000

(26,36,00,000)

14,44,00,000

43,07,00,000

2,10,00,000

(208,28,00,000)

47,32,00,000

(28,56,00,000)

21,80,00,000

10,10,00,000

(151,52,00,000)

(155,52,00,000)

17. MHRAG <Al 6. 117,58,99,966 (Td a9 %. 99,89,89,571) Bl &, RTAH MIHR Ud HaThx &l Tl IMAA 2 | 96 399 HeHd 8l & 3M”

ARIg=i @Y R @ MR UR, UTEIT SMaeddh &l |HeI AT 2 | $9H 58,66,00,000 TUF I IR A &, S IR fI9RT gRT §6 & faog qma”
il ¥ HefS 8 | SMIBR TAAT BT A SRIPR HEDBINAT BT HR 3T AT & 3R I o1 MRAT & e § I 1 5 |

Contingent liabilities of Rs. 117,58,99,966 (Previous Year Rs. 99,89,89,571) representing income tax and service tax liability. This is being
disputed by the Bank and based on experts’ opinion, the provision is not considered necessary. It includes an amount of Rs. 58,66,00,000
pertaining to appeals filed by Income Tax Department against the bank. The liability pertaining to Income Tax is paid to Income Tax
Authorities and grouped under Other Assets.

18. §% o | . 37,33,92,500 (T I B. 38,47,34,072) B MR WHR I UHfOAT I HUREIGT SUR Ud 0T gl (Hgasil) 2g

186

FAINIT DIANIA 3 SMSAT fel. & TRT RRAT @1 | A &, §F 7 ARSHIRNE §b & A1 HRITIA Yoil Favell & fcid AU uRemerl &
foq EEIdens 9% & U wrafy S IR /b E

The Bank has pledged Gol securities held aggregating to Rs. 37,33,92,500 (book value Rs. 38,47,34,072) with Clearing Corporation of
India Ltd. for Collataralised Borrowings and Lending Obligations (CBLO). Further, the Bank has placed Fixed Deposit with IDBI Bank to
cover its operations under Working Capital arrangement with IDBI Bank.




aifier g 2009—10

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010

fewfort : (Gh)
NOTES : (Contd.)

19, SIEIdd HMS 17 B UETIAR T Rufdm & o 7 yeger A<, sweger foxt qon oiaply &1 sio 19 RUIfT @ #91 & | Scral ok Aarell
B B SR SR UhTgel, WSS ardl AR d& @1 AaRe RUfET R AR o= & yza 39 @i & gga™ & 718 g | 96 4 FJaarg
TS B UG WS B BU Y be AT 8| G d% B URAeR AR ¥ 8, o $IE N RuUE B ang e & 6 8| e 9
fipSl BT YAHe Qd YAdUiaRoT fbar wn 8, difd 9 a9 a¥ $1 ggfd @ w8l 6 |
As required under Accounting Standard 17, 'Segment Reporting' the Bank has identified Direct Finance, Indirect Finance and Treasury as its three
reporting segments. These segments have been identified after considering the nature and risk profile of the products and services, the organization
structure and the internal reporting system of the Bank. The Bank has disclosed business segment as the Primary Segment. Since the Bank operates
in India, there are no reportable geographical segments. Previous years figures have been regrouped and reclassified to conform to the current year's
methodology.

FqdT™I E'$ / Business Segments (PXS 2. / Rs. Crore)

fqaxor / Particulars faxirr o 2009-10/FY 2009-10 fa=N= a¥ 2008-09/FY 2008-09
XISI¥d S / Segment Revenue
el <1/ Direct Finance 815 634
el fa<T / Indirect Finance 1,557 1,038
RISTDIY / Treasury 159 174
JMEERY 93 / Exceptional Items* 9 236
T / Total 2,540 2,082
IRYH &S / Segment Results
ycuer fa<i / Direct Finance 469 372
3g<ger fa<i / Indirect Finance 365 167
RTSTIY / Treasury 81 109
MR 73 / Exceptional Items* 9 236
T / Total 924 884
AT @< / Unallocable Expenses 59 55
YRATA-IIA &9 / Operating profit 865 829
IMIFR (TRIHT & d18) Income Tax (Net of write back) 444 530
faer @™ / Net Profit 421 299

3= {YA-IY / Other information
ITRA &S / Segment Assets

ggel fa<T / Direct Finance 9,060 6,539
3rg¥el fa<T / Indirect Finance 29,214 24,771
ITSTDIY / Treasury 3,026 2,696
AT / Total 41,300 34,006
arfafser=iid mRAT / Unallocated Assets 585 600
AT / Total 41,885 34,606
QYAT @€ /Segment Liabilities
el fa<T / Direct Finance 6,974 4,863
el fa<i / Indirect Finance 25,992 21,604
W/Treasury 2,400 2,094
T / Total 35,366 28,561
AT <IaTe / Unallocated Liabilities 612 368
T / Total 35,978 28,929
Yofl / 3IRITAT / Capital/ Reserves
el fa<T / Direct Finance 2,080 1,726
amtel fa<T / Indirect Finance 3,205 3,312
TSTHIT Treasury 622 639
11 / Total 5,907 5,677
Fl *IATY / Total Liabilities 41,885 34,606

* [qavTr @ [y FUIAT [CWHf 12 @&/ Please refer to note 12 for details.
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NOTES :
20.

(Contd.)
MY FAUET =1 19 BRI 2010 BT EF—aq 3meer SN far 8 ol faciia a9 dia & 91 fer | $9fe 46,82,30,254 %. 1 IR, Gord Ul
H AR F U’ & wU H @ TS 2 IR SH 9 Al & i WHfRd fhaT AT 2 | aF—aTdHl 22,94,72,711 5. & TSl Bl ATH—BI
G H I A B WY H Wi A waw 2
The Income Tax Department has issued a refund order dated February 19, 2010, which was received after the end of the financial year.
Hence the amount of Rs. 46,82,30,254 is shown as Receiveable from Income Tax and grouped under 'Other Assets' in the Balance Sheet.
The interest on refund of Rs. 22,94,72,711 is included as 'Other Income' in Profit & Loss Account.

21. =TT @ 2009—10 &1 T 3MT # 38,65,92,962 %. (25,52,56,024 . HT TR HCIHR) dI gddc) fafd BHI 3MT AMAA 2 |
Interest income for FY 2009-10 includes Prior Period Income of Rs. 38,65,92,962 (Net of tax — Rs. 25,52,56,024)

22. 99 @ IRM d& uRATET 9 d@ied & foy 78 ulkare ufhar srffad @) <81 2 | g el § T8 yoTell STRY &) & TS ©, Safd 2y

TS A€ YOMeN 31 A1 2010 B 971G N 8 & | $99 SR GO AT IAAT BT FHE F ST R | febeg] TeE Bl R & fob arey fareha
Y & I fIaRer W) SAHT DI "eayqol ga1g T ueT 2 |
During the year, the bank is in the process of implementing new operating system for operations and accounting. The new system has been
rolled out at certain branches, while in the remaining branches the system has been rolled out after March 31, 2010. Due to this certain
balances are under reconciliation. However, the management is of the view that there is no material impact of the same in the financial
statement for the current financial year.

23. BRI RoFf & R & wu § 9% 1 A= eor—agarensti & il smeRa faaeh gar el & arforsy del H @1 8 3R 3
et & wftr TRAI B H Fo1 / SAravsIe JAHr off & | 39 SURI & Jfcq 31 ﬂﬁi 2010 DT IHIAT AR 731,84,54,586 %. 1 | 7 Fewdi
W AT T A <admell )R 39 e | Al @ 2
As a part of hedging strategy, the Bank has placed foreign currency funds drawn under various lines of credit with scheduled commercial
banks and have availed loan / overdraft facility in Indian Rupees against these deposits. Outstanding under these borrowings aggregated
Rs. 731,84,54,586 as on March 31, 2010. The interest receivable on these deposits match with the interest payable on underlying liabilities.

24, YAYA @ I H, oRIIHT AFD 28 - MMRTAT DI B B AARY W, dF DI 37 MRTAT B big Aifad w1 TR gE T
In the opinion of the management, there is no material impairment of the fixed assets of the Bank in terms of Accounting Standard
28 - Impairment of Assets.

25.()  d% I GURMT M W Td ISt Ao 2, T T g¥e @ SIRY faar ST § | UR iR ISl B UUH 15 @ SiaRd Hehed e
The Bank is having defined benefit Pension Plans and Gratuity Scheme which are managed by the Trust. The disclosures under Accounting
Standard 15 for Pension and Gratuity are as under : @RS %) (Rs. crore)

Y / Pension TN / Gratuity
fa<ia af 2009-10 fa<ia af 2008-00  fa<fig @ 2000-10  fa<fra o 2008-09
FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09
1. gafgar

Assumptions
gIg X, fweh
Discount Rate Previous 7.50% 8.00% 7.50% 8.00%
RIS SReral R ufdte @ &%, ol
Rate of Return on Plan Assets Previous 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
dIT—derN, fUsel
Salary Escalation Previous 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
g $ ¥, daH -/ Discount Rate Current 8.25% 7.50% 8.25% 7.50%
RS SNl W) Afihe @1 &% acHT
Rate of Return on Plan Assets Current 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
ERECHBNACHEIS]
Salary Escalation Current 5.50% 5.00% 5.50% 5.00%

2. o™ <gar 4 gRad= geria arelt arferst

Table showing change in Benefit Obligation
¥ & AR H AT
Liability at the beginning of the year 59.16 46.48 11.67 11.67
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(@ %) (Rs. crore)

99 / Pension ‘T?{Rﬁ/ Gratuity
fa<frar a<f 2009-10 fa<frr 9o 2008-00  fa<i@r 9o 2009-10  fa<iiw T 2008-09
FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09

&S] AT / Interest Cost 4.58 4.00 0.99 1.00
oI WAl AR d / Current Service Cost 2.20 1.30 1.83 1.19
fUwell Jar ara (AR AT )

Past Service Cost (Non Vested Benefit)

ol Jar arma (—fa @)

Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit)

AT 3FARVT 3TH / Liability Transfer in
(Garar faxvr f71) / (Liability Transfer out)
(et ™) / (Benefit Paid) (0.64) (0.18) (0.63) (0.44)
<arel W fHifed (am) /g1

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 24.45 7.56 3.78 3.48
Y & 3 H <IGT/ Liability at the end of the year 89.75 59.16 17.64 16.90

e sniRaal & Sfaa Jea wqeh aifas iy

Table of Fair value of Plan Assets

Y & R H FAIRTT aRaat o1 S g

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 43.70 36.57 12.90 11.67

[RRUSNECIISRIERCRIECIPIREC]
Expected Return on Plan Assets 3.65 3.29 1.04 0.96

3fereT / Contributions 2.25 4.61 0.38 0.55
3 U W 3R/ Transfer from other company
(a1 BIAT Bl JcNTT) / (Transfer to other company)
Y& oM / Benefit Paid (0.64) (0.18) (0.63) (0.44)
Frafsra st w §iifdses i / (816)

Actuarial gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets 0.83 (0.59) 0.17 0.16
I8 & 3iq # T snieal &1 Sfud Jeu

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 49.79 43.70 13.86 12.90
WA # fordam S dTel G Siifdhd @/ (8119)

Total Actuarial Gain/(Loss) to be recognised (23.62) (8.15) (3.61) (3.32)

3raddf Sgar &1 fHeiver

Recognition of Transitional Liability
9y & R™T ¥ IR sfaddl <gar
Unrecognised Transition Liability at the beginning of the year _

Y & SR IR icddi <o

Transition Liability Recognised during the year
a§ & g H SRR i e

Unrecognised Transition Liability at the end of the year
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(@ %) (Rs. crore)

99 / Pension
fa<frar a<f 2009-10

FY 2009-10

fa<frr o 2008-09
FY 2008-09

TN / Gratuity
fa<frr asf 2009-10  fa<i@ asf 2008-09
FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09

ISR AMRTAT W adfad vl

Actual Return on Plan Assets

GISTANTT SMRAT TR e Hfhet

Expected Return on Plan Assets

ST MRl IR dHifdd a4 / (8TF)
Actuarial gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets

(N - ON o\
TSI 3RTAT I qedidd Ufcthel
Actual Return on Plan Assets

3.65

0.83

4.48

3.29

(0.59)

2.70

1.04 0.96

1.21 1.12

ot uF § WaR 31 =) iy

Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Y & 3fd H <IdT/ Liability at the end of the year
Y & 37T H ARG MRTAT BT I Jou

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
3fcR / Difference

¥ @& 3fd # AfiRT fUsel Jar o

Unrecognised Past Service Cost at the end of the year

9y & 3 § MR sfcedl <gar/

Unrecognised Transition Liability at the end of the year

gas u3 ° fraifRa afdn

Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet

(89.75)

49.79
(39.96)

(39.96)

(59.16)

43.70
(15.46)

(15.46)

(17.64) (16.90)

13.86
(3.78)

12.90
(4.00)

(3.78) (4.00)

3 faavol ¥ feiRa <

Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement
e WAl @RI/ Current Service Cost

&I oA / Interest Cost

(AT SR IR HHIfad ufihen)

(Expected Return on Plan Assets)

feriRor % o 7S favra [ar g (R—fARka @)
Past Service Cost (Non Vested Benefit) Recognised
Frefeor # & 7€ e Wt e (R )

Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit) Recognised
ERERIRCURIRCIREE I

Recognition of Transition Liability during the year
dwifdseds (™) 31T BT / Acturial (Gain) or Loss
¥ 3R B @ A Freier 7 ferg 1w @™

Expense Recognised in P & L

2.20
4.58

(3.65)

23.62

26.75

1.30
4.00

(3.29)

8.15

10.16

1.83 1.19
0.99 1.00

(1.04) (0.96)

3.61 3.32

5.39 4.55
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(@ %) (Rs. crore)

U9 / Pension ‘iﬂ?ﬁ/ Gratuity
facfra af 2009-10  faxfa avf 2008-09  faxfia af 2009-10  fa<fa a¥ 2008-09
FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09
8. ToAT—Ua AT
Balance Sheet Reconciliation
IR ae <A1/ Opening Net Liability 15.46 9.91 (1.23) _
TR @ / Expense as above 26.75 10.16 5.39 4.55
TRl bl 39T -/ Employers Contribution (2.25) (4.61) (0.38) (0.55)
ge—u= A feifRa
Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet 39.96 15.46 3.78 4.00
9. 3= fqaxur/ Other Details
HUHI DI AT D AR R I FoRR) W AR fbar SIrr &, St eHenRal &1 gar-f,
HAT T MUt & Aeer H SET H yaferd WUkl & SIgHY BT 2 |
Salary escalation is considered as advised by the company which is in line with the
industry practice considering promotion, demand and supply of the employees
3rTel g8t & forg srgwifea sfere™ (12 7€)
Estimated Contribution for next year (12 months) 7.55 5.94 2.14 1.44
10. IMRTAT @Y vl / Category of Assets
ARG WROR A ?&"‘IEIW/ Government of India Assets _ _ . _
SRIER] EI\'TUC%'/Cor}:)orate Bonds _ _ _
a1y ST AT/ Special Deposits Scheme _ _ _ _
SAIeg Bl & St IR / Equity Shares of Listed Companies _ _ _ i
[THRT / Property _ _ _ _
TRt gRT e Rt (TR e i fm)
Insurer Managed Funds (LIC of India) 49.78 43.70 13.85 12.90
31 / Other 0.01 _ 0.01 _
17 / Total 49.79 43.70 13.86 12.90

25(ii). T SHiHT gRT U diHifhds Hedihe UR SRR 31 Sraiafd o Arsriail | Faferd IRl S aM—a1f+ @rd H y=iRd &1 =71, $9 UdhR

T

The following are the amounts charged to Profit & Loss Account relating to other long term benefits plan based on the acturial valuation

provided by independent actuary.

(@RS B.) (Rs. crore)

ﬂf. faaxor / Particulars 31 9 2010/ 31 A1 2009/

As on March 31, 2010 As on March 31, 2009
1. AR BT ADHaIbRU / Ordinary Leave Encashment _ _
2 EgE‘@f formam RAICT/ Leave Fare Concession (LFC) 0.03 1.27
3 AR g / Sick Leave 0.66 4.46
4. g;ra’m Y/ Resettlement Expenses _ 0.36
5 wWftgd @RI AT / Voluntary Health Scheme (VHS)* 2.21 2.26

AT el Tl @ 2% G BT SIAM AT AT 7/ *Domiciliary claim has been assumed to go up by 2%.
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26. IMHRADG IARIT & UG & FaeT H HRATT F<) EIHR AR QIMSHITS) §RT SRl J@MMG—29 & 3Tiid Ydhe

Disclosures under Accounting Standard - 29 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) for provisions in contingencies.

faa=oT / Particulars

URf¥& Y Opening Balance
ST/ Additions
SYANT/ Utilisations

W / Write Back
3ifdM 29 / Closing Balance

IHIET 904 (%.) / Wage Arrears (Rs.) | 34 YT@EE (%.) / Other Provisions (Rs.)
11,00,00,000 4,95,57,098
10,80,00,000 2,09,00,663
21,80,00,000 7,04,57,761

3 UTETE # 9 S WS & S [ faftre Amel ok Ui ongufie <adiil 9 et § e folt % STRER © SR Sl a9 31 A

ufshar # 9% & g TR foy oima 2

Other Provision represents claims filed against the bank in the normal course of business relating to various legal cases and other claims for which

bank is contigently liable.

27. db F IH—8IfT WA & INY H S, SR 3N IR Uad ATol bl dacfdy "SI, SUR Ife R Ya< &1l 9 fa<iig g9R” & fear 8, dife Sad
R Tl Si— TRET Yo 3R AAT—dgell Bl ART BT LA fbaT 511 b | TegER, fed a8 & sridsl @I 1 g avfiga fHar 71 2 |

The bank has modified the nomenclature of the "Interest paid on Deposit's Borrowings, etc." to "Interest & financial charges paid on Deposits.

Borrowings, etc." in the format of the Profit & Loss A/c. to include the financial costs viz. guarantee fees and swap cost and accordingly the
previous year's figures have also been reclassified.

28. T8l Pel IMAeIDBAT US! &, fUsel a¥ & sfids! Pl YRHe Ud JAdTHR0T fhdTl T &, A1fs I8 acidd ay & 3fidbsl | el A a1 S

[P |

Previous year's figures have been re-grouped and re-classified wherever necessary to make them comparable with the current year's

figures.

|4 fastia @1 g Rl & 1gaR

As per our report of even date

P QN UAE YOS B.
For A.J. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

TH3RUT / FRN. 109476W

IBERIE
TSGR

TH. = 100052
Hiren Shah
Partner
MNo.100052

S, 31 93, 2010

Mumbai, May 31, 2010

). v, Wrels
EIRPIGEAR ST

V.S. Rathore
Executive Director

MDY A

S y&e Qs
Rakesh Rewari

Deputy Managing Director

T¥. TH. IS . R, Jurferar
S.S. Chattopadhyay T. R. Bajalia
Director Director

). afdraT= @, AR

B. Manivannan K. Sitaramam
Director Director

dIs @ IRUATTIAR
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

JMR.YH. Heell
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R.M. Malla

Chairman & Managing Director

SIF®) doetd
IREHED
Janki Ballabh

Director
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AR Rad 96 @ feenfrden @ sgar sifaRe@ yawdiazor (@3S %)
Additional disclosures as per RBI guidelines (Rs. Crore)
P. goft fa<fr asf 2009-10 fa<fzr af 2008-09
A. CAPITAL FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09
@) SIRgH IRTAT & TRT Yol U (FNSTRYSR)
a. Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) 30.08% 34.24%
qJ= JAIRTRUSTR / Core CRAR 28.98% 33.16%
RS IRUSMR / Supplementary CRAR 1.09% 1.09%
@ e Y A 0 B AR P RR-1 Tl & w9 H gomrr Ay
b.  The amount of subordinated debt raised and outstanding as Tier Il Capital Nil Nil
M SR MR STRAT—Jor -3 ¥ FHIfRd iR SH SR Hal v PIF—RIh
c.  Risk weighted assets-separately for on and off-balance sheet items
el —ux # /On Balance sheet 23,537.65 19,410.72
el —ux % 37eTTaT / Off Balance sheet 314.69 315.28
") go-ud @l I e TR emRar @1 wW@wy IR B HEan IRR eRar &1 yfrerd
d)  The shareholding pattern as on the date of the Balance Sheet No. of shares Percentage of shareholding
fa<iig eIy / Financial Institutions 2,39,00,000 5.31
M1 Hufrai / Insurance Companies 9,64,50,000 21.43
AdS® & & SUHH §b / PSU Banks 32,96,50,000 73.26
Qﬁ‘T/ Total 45,00,00,000 100.00
. SRE o $fiR O dpwr fair & 2009-10 farefr @ 2008-09
B. Asset quality and credit concentration FY 2009-10 EY 2008-09
o) Faer Foi iR AR @ U Faer IR—Feres 1Rl @ e
a) Percentage of net NPAs to net loans and advances 0.18 0.08
@) iR s1Ra avfieor SfoRl o siarid, et IR—Feres anfadr o
IR 3R faet Ifi &1 e | S ufcrerd
b)  Amount and percentage of net NPAs to net advances under
the prescribed asset classification categories
goft / Category fa<fa a / Fy 2009-10 fa<fr a5t / Fy 2008-09
313 / Amount | Yf3Td / Percentage 13 / Amount | Yfa3Td / Percentage
3[g—HFdh AMRTAT / Sub-standard assets 67.48* 0.17 22.96 0.07
wiewg MRl / Doubtful assets 1.61 0.01 3.11 0.01
2ﬁ"T/Tot&ﬂ 69.09 0.18 26.07 0.08
AR AT R @ WU ¥ il JRiRid @l ¥ Hefd SRR uraem
*Adjusted provision in respect of restructured accounts classified as NPA
M) R T 200010 TG TG BT AT
c) Provision Coverage Ratio for FY 2009-10 94%
") ¥ @ <R, A MR, IR—Fwes snRada, fawt @ o
UHfa A gar 1a91) 3R o a3 & forg &g 1¢ yraem=t o Aafn
d)  Amount of provisions made during the year towards Standard assets, NPAs,
Investments (other than those in the nature of an advance) and Income Tax
faazor fa<fia asf 200910 fa<fzr asf 2008—09
Particulars FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09
HFdh 3MRAAT / Standard Assets* 626.41 495.14
IR—fwre® SRt / NPAs 57.33 36.08
I3 / Investments 5.90 3.27
@Al & gAARET / Restructuring of Accounts** _ _ - 34.50
JIFR (THAIS, STRANTT R AT ARG UGl & GoRIp afe)
Income-Tax (including FBT, Deferred tax and write back of excess provisions) 445.00 530.00

* JTRANRME @ faem MRl & SrgaR w9 SRl & e # fHy T % 3073 aRI (Oet 9§ ©. 16.84 IRIS) BT AN TR SEH AT B |

* Includes general provision of Rs. 30.73 crore (previous year Rs. 16.84 crore) held in respect of Standard Assets as per RBI guidelines.

e faig 99 & QIRTH, YRR @Ml 2 2249 BRI v & aer e e geRifed fhe g |

** During the current FY, net excess provisions of Rs. 22.49 crore for restructured accounts were written back.
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)
e)

)
)

B)
g)

o)
h)

fa<ia a¥f 2009-10

RFrsgTes anRaat § aRad= FY 2009-10
Movement of Non Performing Assets (NPAs)
fRig af & ™ W AFa IRMAES MRTAT / Gross NPA at the begining of the financial year 31.73
SIS : 9¥ & QIRT URae
Add : Additions during the year 114.18
SU WIS (@) /Sub Total (A) 145.91
*aasﬁ / Less :
i) S=1g9 / Upgradations 11.40
i) agferdt (ST @rdl ¥ agferdl B BIEIR) /

Recoveries (excluding recoveries from upgraded accounts) 4.17
i) §€C WA / Write-off 53.24
SY Sl () /Sub Total (B) 68.81
fo<ha adf @)1 ot w G@a A% fsures nfkaat (e—a)
Gross NPA at the end of the financial year (A-B) 77.10

Axfreares Al @ gyraem § uRade (\AFe Raa) w fHA T grgEml &1 sisaH)

Movement of provisions for NPAs (Excluding provisions on standard assets)

JRf™& ¥ / Opening Balance at the beginning of the financial year 5.66
SR : A & IRM fbd T yraE

Add : Provisions made during the year 57.33
sy : 98¢ Wi Slel T/ GoRifdd ffaRad graerm=

Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions 55.06
fa<ia asf @1 wwiRa ux 3fA@iy / Closing balance at the end of the financial year 7.93

foraa X fAwres sl o uRad=
Movement in Net NPAs

fa<iir a9 & 39 # @12RI¥ / Opening Balance at the beginning of the financial year 26.07
9Y & IR YRS / Addition during the year 56.85
9¥ & IRM FHI/Reductions during the year 13.75
Hergd : IR e o & wu H aipd gaeiRied @l & St 9ed d fRmEe &g waw=

Less : Provision for dimunition of fair value of restructured accounts classified as NPA 0.08
fo<ira aff &1 @wfta X = / Closing balance at the end of the financial year 69.09

< yraerEl § aRadT

Movement of Floating Provisions

(@) 2Ry

(@) Opening Balance L
(@) a9 & TR By 7Y graem

(b) Provisions made during the year -

(1) ¥ & SR MERT RT BT T3 HH BT I AR AR

(c) Purpose and amount of draw down made during the year -

(=) i

(d) Closing balance -

=

(@RTs %.)/ (Rs. Crore)

fa<hrar o 2008-09
FY 2008-09

299.43

40.48
339.91

130.43

177.75
308.18

31.73

250.37
36.08

280.79
5.66

49.06
4.4

27.39

26.07
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T T oREE
C.  Credit Exposure
a) frafafEea @ IR & g AfET ik ga sniaa @ ufa o1 &1 ufoea

Credit exposure as percentage to capital funds and as percentage to total Assets, in respect of :

fa<ir o Fy 2009-10 fa<i=r o Fy 2008-09

B/ . Fol ARaAr goft Ay | @ et goft fafr
SNo. B Atatclle & uf wRew | @k wRe | @GR aRee | @ R gk
As % to As % to As % to As % to
Total Assets Capital Fund Total Assets Capital Fund
1 9 dT Udel Gﬂﬂ"ﬂﬁl’f/The largest single borrower 6.72 34.83 5.05 22.51
|94 9T SURSDA W8 IfF I8 SURSGA & U § UrIfie o H6ReIy, IS
faerd 91S anf & o1 SURGA! WHg B AR AL, & 2 |
The largest borrower group As large borrowers are Primary lending Institutions, State Electricity
Boards etc. the concept of borrower group is not applicable.
2 | 10 Q% 93 UHA YRSl / The 10 largest single borrower 40.99 212.55 31.83 141.88
10 999 93 SURGAl 99E T I3 SURSGAT & HU ¥ UrRIfe FoRE Ry, T
faga 9IS onfe 2, 31 SUR®AT AHg & ARV AN &1 2 |
The 10 largest borrower group As large borrowers are Primary lending Institutions, State Electricity

Boards etc. the concept of borrower group is not applicable.

b) &d FoT RTAT & YR & wU A dig 994 I Iitenfia a=a @fe ang ) a1 yaa x=or
Credit exposure to the five largest industrial sectors (if applicable) as percentage to total loan assets* (@)1 %.)/ (Rs. Crore)

fa<fia s 2000-10 / FY 2009-10 | fa<ia as 2008-09 / FY 2008-09
e BT <19/ Name of Industry serar R/ ged & ARkaat | sern o/ ge For aiRkaat
Amount @ ufa ufaera/ Amount @ ufa ufoera/
Outstanding % to total loan assets | Outstanding o 15 total loan assets
fag]d IUE®d / Electricity Generation 1,466.58 16.12 1,210.13 18.37
qRaE JUSHRTT/ Transport Equipment 1,366.64 15.02 853.84 12.96
3ifer 9 sifel "€ / Auto and Auto Components 1,317.00 14.48 821.42 12.47
fEfoT / Construction = = 730.71 11.09
T / RIIRITg a1 3R BIon /
Textile/Readymade Garments & Hosiery 961.61 10.57 709.28 10.77
iTeT 3R ¥EIel /Iron & Steel 757.81 8.33 - -
FOT SIReH yeel fad & sfafa weran & et 2
*Exposure pertains to Assistance under Direct Finance
. oA, AR 9 o1 SiReH vd v &1 A aur fa<ia o« 2009—10 /
D) Concentration of Deposits, Advances and Exposures & NPAs FY 2009-10
a) STHT ﬁEW/Concentration of Deposits
20 A I THIGARI BT el ST (RIS H)
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors (in Crores) 1,877.92
9% @ Bl S B URT 20 FIH IS STATBATA @ STAT BT U
Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the bank 84.58
b) RH BT FH ST/ Concentration of Advances
20 I I SURGARI B ot AH (@RS H)
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers (in Crores) 22,943.70
9% & FHof AH & UfT 20 FeH 99 SURGARI & MH HT Ul
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the bank 60.13

c) FOT SIRIT BT ﬂ'?f}'"c{UT/ Concentration of Exposures
20 O IS SURGASI / ATEDT H Gel 0T SHRaH

Total Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers (in Crores) 24,127.71

SUREATS / TTEDh! § 96 & ol 0T SRGH & U 20 FI9 ¢ SURGARI / TTEDH! H F0T SReH HT ufaera

Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total exposures

of the bank on borrowers / customers 53.93
d) AR Foes saal o1 @esor—facha adf 2010 2g i ar g @@l 7 ga #&or e (@3S H)
Concentration of NPAs — Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts for FY 2010 (in crores) 18.29
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e)

f)

g)

E)
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AFaR TI9IY

Sector wise NPAs

faa=v1 / Particulars

9 83 3 ga A 7 gAY &1 ufaea
% of NPAs to Total Advance in that Sector

P 3R Feait TR/ Agriculture & Allied Activities

HAT¢ / Services
fdaTd T/ Personal Loans

ST ({ed, ofg, 799 31X a3) /Industry (Micro, small, medium and large)

0.20
0.22

faden ¥ sRaat, T g Xrera

Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue

faa=v1 / Particulars

fa<iar as 2009-10 / FY 2009-10

fa<frar o 2008-09 / FY 2008-09

Gl MR / Total Assets

B TAUIT / Total NPAs
Bl IS / Total Revenue

qord U3 9 gax yrafora gadid
(52 erRaieT M@ & AR |H{GA (BT ST 8)
Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

R,/ Domestic

(which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)

fSrd2r / Investments

(@) The Investments have been classified as under, as required by RBI guidelines:

yrafora gadidl &1 A
Name of the SPV sponsored

fad=ft / Overseas
Nil Nil

(@) wreia Reyd 9o @ - @1 s sgar Faw &1 Frergar affaa fear T )

(@1s_%9A) / (Rs. crore

faaroT / Particulars fa<ia asf 2009-10 / FY 2009-10 fa<fra as 2008-09 / FY 2008-09
®) URUFIT Bq &R

a) Held to Maturity 574.43 547.89
Q) fag 2g Suae

b) Available for sale 1,278.06 1,384.27
) AR =g emRa

c) Held for Trading = —
) 31

d) Others 75.00 —
AT / Total 1,927.49 1,932.16
(@) faet o Jere™ @ fav fee v gaem=
(b) Provisions for depreciation in Investments fa<iir @ 2009-10 fa<iiar @ 2008-09

. FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09

R 99 & UR™T 3 Rf™& o
Opening balance as at the beginning of the financial year 162.60 168.28
SITSY : g9 & SRM BT TV YT
Add : Provisions made during the year 5.90 3.27
SITSY : fraer SaR—=ga R o & fafs=m, afe aig &
Add : Appropriations, if any, from Investment Fluctuation Reserve account - _
eI : 9¥ & SR dec @I # Sleil T8 W17
Less : Write off during the year 4.35 8.95
HeTsy : 9w SAR—<emd IREIR o # sfdRor afs aig &1
Less : Transfer, if any, to Investment Fluctuation Reserve account - —
forf 9 &1 |\ w sfa 9w
Closing balance at the end of the financial year 164.15 162.60
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7. fov v a9 © deg ¥ weal AT

c) Issuer Categories in respect of Investment made: (aﬂig a)/(Rs. crore)
iR/ FfafRaa a1 fdn/
Amount Amount of

forohl gegfa & @ik fraer ds 4 e T iR yAag

SINI@dt / Issuer fou v foder/ @1 gferpfert / arefl gfergfert /
investment made below Investment gfergfert / unlisted securities
through private Grade Securities unrated securities
placement held held

AT &4 & SUHH /
PSUs 297.47 3.00 - - -
v e /
Fls 288.33 268.35 - - 241.35
&5/
Banks 190.08 182.53 - - -
INSIERIEEIVA
Private Corporate 395.66 309.24 - 10.00 117.92
HERID XA / AGerT SUHH
Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures 1.05 1.05 = = 1.05
Iy
Others 706.82 349.29 - - 349.29
SU—WIIS / Sub-Total 1,879.41 1,113.46 - 10.00 709.61
I B9 & fd enRa yraem
Provision held towards (162.98) - - - -
depreciation
I / Total ,716.43 1,113.46 - 10.00 709.61

d) WY fasures TRAAT / Non-performing Inverstments

faavor / Particulars fa<far ast 2009-10 fa<frr asf 2008-09
FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09

o= ad & oy # sfereiy

Opening balance as at the begining of the financial year 2.11 1.88

1 3 | 99 B SR YRaET

Additions during the year since 1st April 0.75 0.35

e pafer 7 BAr

Reductions during the above period 0.45 0.12

forfa o @ w=flq R sfoey

Closing balance at the end of the financial year 2.41 2.11

SR e ST
Total Provisions held 2.41 2.11
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F. ga€fad @K /Re-structured Accounts (®}Is %./Rs. Crore)
fa<fr asf 2009-10/FY 2009-10 fa<fr asf 2008-09/FY 2008-09
8 / Particul i weor | THTHS g o | TEUES

ELUTSILEE QR | T I |gRRe dm| o I
CDR E:R:ha:n Others CDR Wﬂq‘[ Others

Mechanism | g\if Debt Mechanism | g \if Debt
Restructuring Restructuring

YTRI=IT A T SEREGART DI AT
Standard Advances restructured | No. of borrowers 2 Nil 145 Nil Nil 587

IHIAT AR
Amount outstanding 3.53 - 208.62 - - | 745.06

BN (S qoa & o)
Sacrifice (diminution in 0.18 = 10.33 = = 64.14
the fair value)

YTRIRF JTa—HAHS R SERGARN BT A=
Sub-Standard Advances restructured| No. of borrowers Nil Nil 2 Nil Nil 4
IHIET AR
Amount outstanding - - 1.53 - - 9.59
BN (ST Toa & @)
Sacrifice (diminution in = = 0.08 = = 0.48
the fair value)

Doubtful Advances restructured | No. of borrowers Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
IHIAT AT
Amount outstanding - = = = - _
B (Sferd Toa & o)
Sacrifice (diminution in - _ _ - _ -
the fair value)

SURGAT @ He=T
T / Total No. of borrowers 2 Nil 147 Nil Nil 591

THRT 3
Amount outstanding 3.53 — 210.15 - — | 754.65
B (ST qoa & o)
Sacrifice (diminution in 0.18 = 10.41 = = 64.62
the fair value)

B. &) gfadiexer sut / gAfiaior i 1 996 1% anfiaan

G. a) Assets sold to Securitisation Company / Reconstruction Company

#/SNo|  fyaor / Particulars faxfia @ FY 2009-10 faxfia adf Fy 2008-09

(i) Tl bl T

Number of Accounts* 170 Nil
(ii) GRRITERT BUHT / YARFHIOT B Pl 99 1Y WMl $T Kol 4ed (I & d13)

Aggregate Value (net of provisions) of Accounts sold to SC / RC 0.55 -
(i) Bl Ufhel

Aggregate Consideration 29.37 =
(iv) qd g8t # IR @ral & Heer # SifcrRad ufihar

Additional Consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - -
(v) ae 981 49 R B @™ /71

Aggregate Gain / Loss over net Book Value 20.59 -

i a9 2008—09 H AT AT Yh @l W 2, RO a1e] fa ad # feram wam 2|

*Includes one account sold in financial year 2008-09, accounted in current financial year.
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@) fwrfya ser gadean
b)  Corporate Debt Restructuring (@) ¥uA)/ (Rs. crore)
®/SNo| fqaxor / Particulars fa<fir as Fy 2009-10 fa<itr ad FY 2008-09
(i) HRIRR & 3fva Gesivasr & e o1 MRt & el i
Total Amount of Loan Assets subjected to Restructuring under CDR 3.81 -
(i) HRIRR & FefF AS MR @l ot iy
Total Amount of Standard Assets subject to CDR 3.81 -
(iii) HIEIRR & 3MefH aAS AR Dl Gt M
Total Amount of Sub-Standard Assets subject to CDR - -
o) dRedr
H. Liquidity
®) SuAm 3R fageh gar snfkaal qom Saaren &1 yRugadr w@wy
a.) Maturity pattern of rupee and foreign currency assets and liabilities (@Rrs ¥9A) / (Rs. crore)
qS 1 B4 |1a8 A 3AR® | 3 af q e |5 af d aferd | 7 ad @
Items AT 9D ¥IeX | AR 3a qdb | AR s5af @ | SR 7 af d& | b T
Less than or More than 1 More than 3 More than 5 More than Total
equal to 1 year | year upto 3 years | years upto 5 years | years upto 7 years 7 years
BT 3MRTATT / Rupee Assets 23,501 14,547 3,492 1,166 2,728 | 45,434
A 1 e (g )
Foreign Currency Assets (Rupee Equivalent)
IR / Dollar 134 347 353 102 626 1,562
IR/ Euro 52 134 165 157 352 860
I9/ Yen 4 7 750 103 356 1,220
gl ATRAAT / Total Assets 23,691 15,035 4,760 1,528 4,062 | 49,076
U < U/ Rupee Liabilities 10,058 15,621 3,701 3,395 13,725 46,500
faceh ga1 <gan (Faded W)
Foreign Currency Liabilities (Rupee Equivalent)
SielR / Dollar 68 130 354 124 724 1,400
IRV / Euro 41 120 156 152 362 831
?}FT/Yen 4 7 178 234 807 1,230
el QYATY / Total Liabilities 10,171 15,878 4,389 3,905 15,618 49,961
3)  OREred aRomm
I Operating results
facfia a9 (FY) 2009-10 | fa<fia af (Fy) 2008-09
%) 3Nud Rl (Y & uftea & wu F @t ey
a) Interest income as a percentage to average working funds 8.35 8.84
w@)  d BRI WS & ufiea & wu H IR—aaret 8y
b)  Non-interest income as a percentage to average working funds 0.41 1.11
M) T HRYS [ © ufowa @ wu 7 aRarad ar
c)  Operating profit as a percentage to average working funds 4.19 5.25
H) i SRl TR ufiwa
d) Return on average assets 2.36 3.11
T) ufa AR Fad aM (BR1S B
e) Net Profit per employee (Rs. Crore) 0.41 0.31
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3) 9IS &} HRR AR 4ol <R fafma
J. Forward Rate Agreements & Interest Rate Swaps

B8, | fyawor / Particulars fa<ira adf 2009-10 fax<ira adf 2008-09
Sr. No. FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09
i) BT o9 <A1 @I X7/ No. of transactions outstanding NIL NIL

ii) B HIAT AT AT (AR 2.) /
Total outstanding notional principal (Rs. Crore)

iii) fafmat & ufd / Nature of swaps

iv) ?ﬁ/Terms

V) Eihd T/ Accounting Policy

vi) TRIE R A IT—UedRI & fahet I8 R 8F arell 81 (63rs %.) /

Loss which would be incurred in case counterparties fail to fulfill their
obligations (Rs. Crore)

vii) fafr &v & forg emifer wuiRde WM/ Collateral required upon entering into swaps

viii) | Tofv R & S skor SIRew &1 Hhavr /
Concentration of credit risk arising from swaps

ix) fafg 98 @1 Sfod qeu (@RI$ %) / Fair value of swaps book (Rs. Crore)

d) O R gl 9 Gefea faavor

K. Details in respect of Interest Rate Derivatives :

fqa=or / Particulars

(@}Ts BUA)/ (Rs. crore)

fa<ha asf Fy
2009-10

foxfr a¥ Fy
2008-09

9§ & IR oY 1Y TR TS8 &Tel &% =1 Bl ATGATD ol 1T

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives undertaken during the year

JAT 31 AT DI THRIT TaHol S8 &Tol & ed=i1 Bl AFATD Hef My

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding as on March 31

FHTIT 3R AT YA el Lol g€ &Tol & a1 @l MFATS et i

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"

Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"

o) XUIW & Iavia 99 M8 gfeyfadt v Red Yuie @ siavia wa @1 18 gfofoat

L.  Securities sold under Repos and Securities purchased under Reverse Repos

faavor

Particulars

¥ & SR

YAdH dhrAT
Minimum outstanding
during the year

a9 & <INHE
SIfrHad IHrT

Maximum outstanding
during the year

T & <R
<fre sita e

Daily Average
outstanding
during the year

fa<hra adf
FY 2009-10

fa<ha af
FY 2008-09

RIS & I Il T3 Hieryferat

Securities sold under repos

Rt XAt & IRIa s a1 T4 fergforat

Securities purchased under reverse repos

3) =l H SRew &1 gHdIaRor

M. Disclosure of risk exposure in derivatives
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UITHD YHTIHROT

Qualitative Disclosures

ﬁzﬁsrqtﬁaﬂ%ﬂﬁ@éwaﬁﬁW?Hﬁ@wwawﬁmﬁmﬁw—mm@ﬁwmm PRAT

2| 9% I BT AR TE BT o |

The Bank uses Derivatives for hedging of interest rate and exchange risk arising out of mismatch in the assets and liabilities.

The Bank does not undertake trading in Derivatives.
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(i) SrdR® Rz feem—fder qerm eraie ol 9 g1 MuiRT vd SrgAifed o STl & | Sgedwii &1 JANT SR <3 yder affd |

A I B & 1S &1 fhal i & | Seaii o IR faavon @l SHaRY SRk <dm yde |fdfcr/ are &7 4 & ol 2
Internal control guidelines and accounting policies are framed and approved by the Board. The derivative structures are undertaken
only after the approval of ALCO. The particulars of derivative deals undertaken are also reported to ALCO /Board.

(iii)
UET & MTHAR BT ¢ |

%ﬁwﬁﬁﬁ;aﬁmﬁﬁm?ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁ%ﬁmwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ?—éﬁmmw

The Bank has put systems in place for mitigating the risk arising out of derivative deals. The Bank follows the accrual method

for accounting the transastions arising out of derivative deals.

Y @ ARG IR TH S UH B, Ife dis 8, & ford uraens fdhar Sirem 2|

(iv)

Provisions are made for Mark to Market (MTM) losses, if any, at the year end.

(a7 %)
E. HHEAHD JHSIHROT /b, Quantitative Disclosures (Rs. Crore)
_ faxfia adf 2009-10/FY 2009-10 | fa<iia @ 2008-09/FY 2008-09
Sr. ﬁﬂ’\"’T AT YU~ | TSl <R YA | HoT Fu—~ | «rol qR i~
No. Particulars Currency | Interest rate Currency | Interest rate
Derivatives| Derivatives Derivatives | Derivatives
1. I~ (JATFATS HeAeH) / Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
()| s=ma @& o/ For hedging 1,186.60 - 1,313.70 !
()] @UR B %I'Q/For trading = = = =
2. ok Refd & fow fifed / Marked to Market Positions [1]
(i) | SR (+)/Asset (+) - - 20.00 -
(i)| <arg (-)/Liability (-) (83.00) — — —
3. FEOT SRIHA / Credit Exposure [2] 68.00 _ 102.70 _
4. ol &3 # U URIRId deerd | 8 arelm g9a (100* ¥idt 01)
Likely impact of one percentage change in interest rate (100* PVO1)
(i) [ &= FA~ U/ On hedging derivatives 0.26 - 0.22 -
(ii)] AR FI~ TR/ On trading derivatives = = = =
5. | 9§ & SRM uReferd sif¥rraw vd <gaw 100* G 01
Maximum and Minimum of 100* PVO1 observed during the year
()| s@@ WR/On hedging 0.17/0.33 - 0.20/0.30 -
(i)] @MYR W/ On trading = = - -

o) SR THAGR (7S . @ (1) T °] B SHhia ool 9§ & s wiAer 7 by 0§ F®ifd A w1 iy af & & arfvard gy E

N. Previous year figures has not been incorporated under additional disclosures [Point No. B(c) & D] since the same has become mandatory

from current financial year.

9 faid 31 89K RUIE & FFAR

As per our report of even date

Fd TS W8 UUS &. . v¥. Wets
AT SRATDBIR EIREIEARENCY
For A.J. Shah & Co. V.S. Rathore

Chartered Accountants Executive Director

THIRTT / FRN. 109476W

¥ we T, T, ISR
WEER [RENED
TH. T 100052 S.S. Chattopadhyay
Hiren Shah Director
Partner
MNo.100052 1. 9PraT=

[RERED
‘J,W—SS. 31 98, 2010 B. Manivannan
Mumbai, May 31, 2010 Director

RTDIT AN

SY Y&y ferd

Rakesh Rewari

Deputy Managing Director

&Y. IR, IoTferar
IBESED

T. R. Bajalia
Director

B, HaRMEH
(RENED

K. Sitaramam
Director

IS @ ARATTAR

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

3R.TH. Hoell

Jegey vg yee e

R.M. Malla

Chairman & Managing Director

SIH®! deel®
Janki Ballabh

Director
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31 91, 2009 faaRor
March 31, 2009 PARTICULARS

31 HATd, 2010
March 31, 2010

31 9719, 2010 & ¥ 99 B oIy A6 yars
Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2010

(®./Rs.)

829,20,08,278

10,79,13,120
(236,48,93,308)
3,26,80,835
565,71,44,658
(31,51,15,786)
(10,03,91,023)

(89,00,00,000)

1041,93,46,774

152,39,75,593
(269,06,29,539)
(651,09,27,069)
(10253,03,28,712)
5678,08,86,143

4512,07,12,828
(830,63,10,756)

211,30,36,018

(380,58,19,553)

(169,27,83,535)
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uReare afafaffral @ 95 yare

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
M-I W & IR HR yd ae o
Net Profit before tax as per P & L Account
HHATATST

Adjustments for :

Depreciation

JAMERIRSNE ¥ rRifha

Write back out of IRDF

fraet # faer g @ fog e
Provision for net depreciation in investments
Y U grae

Provisions made

e faar & a9 (Fae)

Profit on sale of Investment (net)
e W U e

Dividend Received on Investments

EIELIGE
Provisions written back

R A suiffa Tod)

Cash generated from operations
(aRares MRkl vd <aareii  uRads 9 Ud)
(Prior to changes in operating Assets and Liabilities)

aer aRadq & forv /=1 &1 SRS -
Adjustments for net changes in :
Current assets
A TG
Current liabilities

fafra faa

Bills of Exchange
FoT ud ABH
Loans & Advances

9708} g ZRUTOAT qT T SUTRAT & faer mitqar

Net Proceeds of Bonds and Debentures & other borrowings

PISSES LI
Deposits received

a')—l- ﬂ
Payment of Income Tax

gRare—fafafera @ ffae T yare

Net Cash flow from operating Activities

10,31,85,994
(8,96,24,622)
5,90,17,577
661,24,84,305
(73,92,01,212)

(17,19,55,950)

(%./Rs.)

864,93,74,290

577,39,06,092

120,31,71,565
461,00,69,422
(698,04,25,701)
(6384,94,22,518)

1700,44,08,361

4149,90,01,382

(450,76,12,120)

1442,32,80,382

(651,31,97,489)

791,00,82,893

(450,76,12,120)

340,24,70,773
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Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2010

31 HTd, 2009
March 31, 2009

31 WTd, 2010
March 31, 2010

(%./Rs.)

(39,04,12,435)
(514,89,93,633)

10,03,91,023

(543,90,15,045)

(78,54,51,464)

(78,54,51,464)
(791,72,50,044)
1614,03,10,681

822,30,60,637

e wfafafern @ o<t yare

Cash flow from Investing Activities

Rer anRaal & (sa) / fasmg @ faa fn

Net (Purchase)/Sale of fixed assets

foaert @ () / faspa / 2 @7 g afdr
Net (Purchase)/Sale/Redemption of Investments
e R U AT
Dividend Received on Investments
¥ wyaa faa THd)

Net cash used in Investing Activities

ferrateror wfafaferr § To<) yare

Cash flow from Financing Activities

SfFTdT SRR W AT TG oIS TR Y
Dividend on Equity Shares & tax on Dividend
faxfrae wfafaftray & ygaa faa Tod

Net cash used in Financing Activities

THdl Td THdl GAged ¥ frad gl /(aH)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

A & IR § THd) Ud IS4l g

Cash and cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period

Jafer @1 GAIT WR TPl Ud Adhal G

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period

(%./Rs.)

(4,63,27,453)

78,59,22,362

17,19,55,950
91,15,50,859

(78,46,18,056)
(78,46,18,056)
352,94,03,576

822,30,60,637

1175,24,64,213

feuol : gRIeye oI e THISSeH 3Tt SfSAT (JMSNTIMS) gRT TR o A1+ — 3 (FIRI) Tehd) yare fIaRvr & TR el fafdy grr

) Yarg faaRer QR fHar AT 2|

Note : Cash Flow statement has been prepared as per the Indirect Method prescribed in AS-3 (Revised) 'Cash Flow Statement' issued by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

o fewfordt (srgde 1)

Notes to Accounts (Annexure I)

HEayel orar AfRt (@rara 7)

Significant accounting Policies (Chapter 7)

9 faid 31 89K RUIE & FFAR

As per our report of even date

IS @ ARATTAR
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

I Q.. 38 S &.

d1. g, Yets

REIRCIN

3R.TH. Heoll
G AATHR HRIUTAD Heh SU ydy fe9rh Jege vg yee e
For A.J. Shah & Co. V.S. Rathore Rakesh Rewari R.M. Malla

Chartered Accountants

THIRTT / FRN. 109476W

Executive Director

Deputy Managing Director

Chairman & Managing Director

ISSRUH T, O, Iy ). AR, goriferar ST deotq
WEER [BENED BENED [RENED
TH. T 100052 S.S. Chattopadhyay T. R. Bajalia Janki Ballabh
Hiren Shah Director Director Director
Partner
MNa100052 4. wfraT= . daRm™y

[RERED IBCHIED
‘J,W—-‘z;. 31 58, 2010 B. Manivannan K. Sitaramam
Mumbai, May 31, 2010 Director Director
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31 |1, 2009
March 31, 2009

COGI
LIABILITIES

31 9Td, 2010
March 31, 2010

%. Rs.

750,00,00,000

250,00,00,000
1000,00,00,000

450,00,00,000

4152,85,81,603

148,10,87,203

24,94,22,674

55,19,63,645

792,00,00,000
8,04,38,773

5181,14,93,898

3525,40,50,000
7437,05,55,830

16593,60,99,728

204

IR YSfl / SHARE CAPITAL

uTfergd / Authorised

10/-%. Ufd R @1 & F 75,00,00,000 AT IR
75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each

10/- %. 9fd AR BT <X ¥ 25,00,00,000 T ARHN IR
25,00,00,000 Redeemable Preference Share of Rs. 10/-each

ST 3TR gl

Issued and Paid-up

10/-%. 9T ¥RR &1 <= A 45,00,00,000 Sfaael IR
45,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

RESERVES, FUNDS AND SURPLUS
i) MRf&d AR / Reserve Fund
iy s fAfrai / Other Funds

®) iy Sfaadt M

a) National Equity Fund
) WIH BT+
b) Staff Welfare Fund
i) SIRfEIfIAT / Reserves
ED) forder emfarfa
a) Investment Reserve
Q) MY AAFTIH, 1961 B &RT 36 (1) (viii) B ATAR
ffifa vd gfera faery smfarfor
b) Special Reserve created and maintained u/s 36 (1) (viii)

of the income Tax Act, 1961

iv)  arferery / Surplus

3. SUSR, 3&H, T 3R IAJUE AR
GIFTS, GRANTS, DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS

i) NDR 15[/ From Government
i) =g Adi ¥/ From other sources

qivs 3R fedax
BONDS AND DEBENTURES

fga
DEPOSITS

IR

Carried forward

%. Rs.

750,00,00,000

250,00,00,000

4358,39,62,868

167,44,64,973

2425,71,858

55,19,63,645

887,00,00,000

%. Rs.

1000,00,00,000

450,00,00,000

5492,29,63,344

5311,73,90,000

11582,06,11,212

22836,09,64,556
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Appendix - Il
SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010

31 @4, 2009 R 31 91, 2010
March 31, 2009 ASSETS March 31, 2010
%. Rs. %. Rs. %. Rs.

1. T®al AR & afaer
CASH AND BANK BALANCES

i) BT § el 3R 9RAT Rord 9 # arfoy

14,31,089 Cash in hand and balances with Reserve Bank of India 7,12,554
ii) ARa Rerd g dof # arfcrery
Balance with other Banks in India
®) A W o
21,53,90,547 a) On Current Account 50,23,96,389
w) e d
142,20,69,046 b) On Deposit Account 166,04,89,000
iii) HRA & qrex g dal # arfarey
Balances with other Banks outside India
®) A W H
36,03,835 a) On Current Account 33,57,756
@ ey g
679,57,67,145 b) On Deposit Account 968,13,36,106
843,82,61,662 11,84,82,91,805
2. faaw
INVESTMENTS
i) B SR WY WBRT B ufrferdi #
9,23,89,500 In securities of Central and State Governments 46,90,42,500
ii) dl o faxiig wwemeil & IRRT #
338,43,08,904 In shares of banks and financial institutions 317,30,17,897
iii) dol oiR faxira dvermsil & dfvel @ik feda=l #
482,49,32,811 In bonds and debentures of banks and financial institution 288,75,58,795
iv) Jrenfires gfasm il & wid, IRRI, dfvel iR fedwrl #
78,99,04,056 In stocks, shares, bonds and debentures of industrial concerns 364,76,20,569
V) 3
869,77,34,526 Others 765,67,26,661
1778,92,69,797 1783,39,66,422

3. k9T X AFH
LOANS AND ADVANCES

i) dopt @R 3y fa<iiar <wermati &l
24298,95,66,068 To banks and other financial institutions 28872,43,69,291
ii) 3irenfire fssl o
5036,37,54,296 To industrial concerns 6845,70,73,494
29335,33,20,364 35718,14,42,785
— T KDEIR] e SR
31958,08,51,823 Carried forward 38686,37,01,012
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ARG g T fas™ 9@
31 #7E, 2010 T FHbT Foi—u]

31 H, 2009 ERGIIY 31 9Td, 2010
March 31, 2009 LIABILITIES March 31, 2010
%. Rs. %. Rs. %. Rs.
16593,60,99,728 Brought Forward 22836,09,64,556
6. SUR
BORROWINGS
i) aRdg Rord 96 9

From Reserve Bank of India

®) e, MR iR o =Rl ufnyferat W ufenga

- a) Secured against stocks, funds and other trustee securities -
@) fatmg f9dl a1 999 v w® afng
6269,00,00,000 b Secured against bills of exchange or promissory notes -

)
M I 3 o (el aRereE) AR 9
= c) Out of the National Industrial Credit =
(Long Term Operations) Fund
ii) AR TRER A
From Government of India
®)  A—Fd KT
6,72,60,000 a) Interest-free loan 3,16,30,000
@) facel T Rl & ST Ta—SITaTT SeRAT
HIRITONE Yoi¥l (STSdT) ol

b) Against foreign lines of credit-Japan
International Cooperation
654,13,33,238 Agency (JICA) Loans 610,52,44,356
M I R
— c) Other Loans —
i) o Al |
3330,58,00,000 From Other sources 8990,82,42,127
iv)  foeh gard
3844,51,89,890 In Foreign Currency 4414,55,35,006
14104,95,83,128 14019,06,51,489
7. AT, *FATE T YTIET
3939,64,02,089 CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 5060,77,22,790
34638,20,84,945 41915,93,38,835
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SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2010

31 9, 2009 TR 31 #rd, 2010
March 31, 2009 ASSETS March 31, 2010
%. Rs. %. Rs.
31958,08,51,823 Brought Forward 38686,37,01,012

1544,91,40,393

208,28,12,929

5,23,62,779

921,69,17,021

34638,20,84,945

HATY Y AT Y: YA1¢ 1Y fAfr f9a g 997 u=
BILLS OF EXCHANGE AND PROMISSORY NOTES
DISCOUNTED OR REDISCOUNTED

IRER

(ANTT & | HeIg™ ucan)
PREMISES

(At cost less depreciation)

3 Rer anfxaat

(AT # ¥ eI HcaR)
OTHER FIXED ASSETS
(At cost less depreciation)

3= IRt
OTHER ASSETS

Significant accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Annexure )

At o A v o R (e )

2242,95,66,094

203,39,27,399

434,89,916

778,86,54,414

41915,93,38,835
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31 HTd, 2009
March 31, 2009

qYg
EXPENDITURE

31 9Td, 2010
March 31, 2010

%. Rs.

1068,65,49,561

96,39,48,758
25,02,532
17,36,630
14,34,31,657
82,38,063
24,33,479
3,73,18,386
10,85,63,314
61,55,74,928

837,07,17,281
2094,10,14,589
837,07,17,281
353,62,25,000
179,99,69,336

(1,03,98,888)

302,41,24,057

10.

STAT, SETRAT enfe U 3reT fham T =rer den Ay uw R

Interest & Financial charges paid on Deposits, Borrowings, etc.

NMYAT g
Establishment Expenses

feerel iR | © dal @ B T T

Directors' & Committee Members' Fees and Expenses

TGT—UETDl B B

Auditors' Fees

HRTAT, B, ST, TehTIT RIa=AT 3TfE

Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Lighting, etc.

fafer gwR
Law Charges

ST Y, TR 9 fedhe
Postage, Telegrams & Stamps

Stationery, Printing, Advertisement, etc.

qeuer / uRenes

Depreciation/Amortisation

SR
Other Expenditure

qy BT ST AT

Profit for the year carried down

99 & fog &= gqd @™

Profit before Tax for the year

B P foIU grge
Provision for Tax

R HR AT (3MTRA) / <
Deferred Tax adjustment (Asset)/Liability

wEarfl dreHl | sl / (81) @t ofer

Share of Earning/(loss) in associates

ol auf & ox =g foy 7O 9= graETE S gARied
Excess Provision for Tax of earlier years written back
fafam & qd o

Profit before appropriations

%. Rs.

1476,57,87,056

108,59,95,141

25,96,592

14,91,961

14,10,23,735

89,54,863

40,08,624

264,67,652

10,36,16,636

64,18,62,935

871,26,70,023

2549,44,75,218

871,26,70,023

452,21,00,000

(4,01,18,801)

91,33,986

(143,89,494)

425,42,12,304
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SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the Year ended March 31, 2010

31 HTd, 2009
March 31, 2009

3T
INCOME
(@ & SR srEIET Td e ol =g fhd T UTRE! 9T o7 JAT%Id d Sferd Wl bl HeTdy)
(Less provisions made during the year for bad and doubtful debts and other
necessary and expedient provision)

31 91, 2010
March 31, 2010

%. Rs.

1738,46,84,409

59,04,27,931

31,51,15,786

265,07,86,463

2094,10,14,589

1. ST 3R g7 AT

Interest and Discount, etc.

2. faen 9 ama

Income from Investments

3. HHII, STl e

Commission, Brokerage, etc.

4. fraert & fae & faea am
(ST eTRferfet # w7 foody fafdre ffer i oy # St =16t fobar o)
Net Profit on sale of investments
(not credited to reserves or any particular fund or account)

5. 3 3T
Other Income

%. Rs.

2331,87,11,506

66,52,81,339

73,92,01,212

77,12,81,161

2549,44,75,218

Annual Report 2009-10
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ARG oY S fae™ &
31 919, 2010 BT G ¥ & foly FHfBA Am—aT oran

31 9Td, 2009 EIp| 31 51d, 2010
March 31, 2009 EXPENDITURE March 31, 2010
R fafs=iT / Appropriations ®. Rs.
SRferT ey # efaRa
129,22,92,028 Transferred to Reserve Fund 205,65,74,350
TH FHeaml [ # ofaRa
1,00,00,000 Transferred to Staff Welfare Fund 1,00,00,000
MDY R, 1961 BT &RT 36 (1)(viii) & =Ta A9y SrRfefT # <faRa
90,00,00,000 Transferred to Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of IT Act, 1961 95,00,00,000
N .
67,50,00,000 Dividend on Equity Shares 112,50,00,000
IR} B AT TR B
11,98,14,750 Tax on Dividend on equity shares 19,30,76,727
g?ﬂtﬁ[ H e
8,04,38,773 alance carried to balance sheet -
307,75,45,551 433,46,51,077
gfereiaR arel= (3), fewsht €. 11, 9% &1 ifva =1 ©. 10/—
6.72 Earning per share (Rs.) Note No. 11 Face value of Rs. 10/- each 9.45

Hecaol SrEmfaal R oiRar Hael fewfrIt (agee 1) / Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Annexure 1)
aa-wiEasl 31 Ruie

yfa fRee dsa

ARAT S fera 9@

Eﬂﬁqﬁéaagﬁ%%m?ﬂnaqwﬁﬁwmﬁa? ([{) g1 wfth ot faver ReTeye oifth a1eS yrarerew 3ifth SR¥Ar gRI §INY eRalhel A (JU¥) 21 “Fifehel farfie faavor”
AT U 23 “HEARN HISHl H (<2 BT b RN ¥ erRgiR” B SEa B TR 3R I Ffpd AT ARt F wnfiel SHe WErd GRel Ud HEan wareHt
% g% foxfg fAaRol & omR R TR 5 ™ §)

Y i faarer S & yeeH o1 STReERicd € | 89T SR g9 ORI faaRoll &1 oRkar U & 3R IR faR Uebe oxAm 8 | 89 30T oikal URIeT YR H ATk Widd ol GeT Jehl
% SRR T 1 | S AT & SRR TE e § [ &9 ol TRE HT 0 TR Y PRI SR FIaiad o 6 78 TR ofear el 9o & Sued faeia aRor il et
naﬂmﬁﬁﬁgaﬁ§|mﬁmﬁwﬁﬁﬁqﬁawﬁaﬁm@ma%waﬁuﬁmmwmwﬁa%é@qﬁma‘am TR gIRT WA orm Rygra qerm
TP gRT bl T AEeaqel e BT Jeaid iR foer favelt @ W wRgfy &1 Jeate A e 2| e favar € 5 s orardien g 9 @ fo Wi SR U Rel © |

T b BT HeAT EReIRlT dren Riedl g B forfics 9 Risdt dar sl forfies & it faawon &1 uRieror & b 2 | 3 SRl & oi@roRIfei oRkam bl § @ oiar # wHfhd fa
TR R, 3R SP fAaRr 7 31, 201oﬁao—vr2? 27,09,25,327 / — @ MR, 31 A 2010 BT FHA I§ W$134965965/ BT IS AT (3. 70427432/ —) & e qHT varE g9
21 3 Rl RaRoT Qo oFT A SR B o e S ol TREeT g1 @ S 8, R & IR B TS & IR EARI 1 QI 31 oRdT T bl RIS R NG & |

& TS THHRY MR WEIHN & MR TR 3R 95 & oiar wifdyd i fexon don Sue gated were el vd geart wreal —Riedl gt o=t folo v Risdt der dfiea
%IO%E%WWWWWW@WMWW%%

F) DA JATIH RGN Y SEN [P {6 T THS qee U FeAnil el Bl 0] 31 A€, 2010 B Gl eI @1 T iR wgr Rerfy awimr €
Q) vﬁﬁﬁgﬁgﬁé@mﬁn@ﬁwﬁm%aww@a T Qd FEARfl WS @ T 31 A, 2010@%@‘%@%@%@%@%@#@@?

M) ?ﬂ?m;ﬂﬁﬁa’ma—cﬁaﬁ%@m‘cﬁu@WW%HWWW@WW%W#W%@WWW@WW@
$d T, AT TS &.
AN TEHR

TUWHITRYA 109476 W
s, 31 %, 2010 R @me
VTSGR — YA, 7 : 100052

To the Board of Directors of Report of the Auditors'

the Small Industries Development Bank of India

We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Small Industries Development Bank of India (‘Bank') in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21, “Consolidated Financial Statements” and AS 23, “Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the basis of the separate financial statements of the Bank and its Subsidiaries and
Associates included in the consolidated financial statements.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material mis-statements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiaries, viz. SIDBI Trustee Company Ltd. and SIDBI Venture Capital Ltd. The autited accounts of these subsidiaries
are consolidated and their financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 27,09,25,327 as at 31st March, 2010, the total revenue of Rs. 13,49,65,965 and net cash flows
amounting to (Rs. 7,04,27,432/-) for the year ended March 31, 2010. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us and on the consideration of the financial statements of Bank audited by us and separate audited financial statements
of SIDBI Trustee Company Ltd. and SIDBI Venture Capital Ltd., its aforesaid subsidiaries, and its associates we are of the opinion that :

a) The Consolidated Balance Sheet gives a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs of Small Industries Development Bank of India, its
subsidiaries and its associate as at March 31, 2010.

b) The Consolidated Profit & Loss Account gives a true and fair view of the consolidated results of operations of Small Industries Development Bank of India,
its subsidiaries and its associates for the year ended on March 31, 2010. and

c) The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement gives a true and fair view of the consolidated cash flow for the year covered by the statement of Small Industries

Development Bank of India & its subsidiaries.
For A.J. SHAH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 109476 W
Mumbai, May 31, 2010 Hiren Shah
Partner - M. No.: 100052
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SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the Year ended March 31, 2010

31 HTd, 2009
March 31, 2009

3T
INCOME

31 #rd, 20010
March 31, 2010

@9 & SRM 3R Ta Afere ol &g 56U T e T 3 MaRdS 9 S UIaeTsi $I Teras)

(Less provisions made during the year for bad and doubtful debts and other

necessary and expedient provision)

%. Rs.

302,41,24,057

5,34,21,494

307,75,45,551

q9 BT LT T

Profit for the year brought down

WM — B @1 ST A I

Balance of profit and loss brought forward

%. Rs.

425,42,12,304

804,38,773

433,46,51,077

9 faid 31 89K RUIE & FFAR

As per our report of even date

I Q.. 38 S &.
G AATHR

For A.J. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

THIRTT / FRN. 109476W

2+ we
TEER

TH. = 100052
Hiren Shah
Partner
MNo.100052

s, 31 5, 2010

Mumbai, May 31, 2010

d1. g, Yets
HRIUTAD Heh

V.S. Rathore
Executive Director

T, . ASIUTEAT
(BENGT
S.S. Chattopadhyay
Director

91, "I
e

B. Manivannan
Director

RTDIT AN

SY Y&y ferd
Rakesh Rewari

Deputy Managing Director

&Y. IR, IoTferar
IBESED

T. R. Bajalia
Director

B, HaRMEH
(RENED

K. Sitaramam
Director

IS @ ARATTAR
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

3IIR.UH. Heell

3e&T TG Y& fevie

R.M. Malla

Chairman & Managing Director

SIH®! deel®
Janki Ballabh

Director
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AR g SElv fder 96
31 A€, 2010 BT FAG 9 & [l FHbT ATH— I oRkdT

ifpd o @ fag sfaRed fewfrf

Additional Notes to Consolidated Accounts

Igae | — AEayel o ifaat

Annexure | — Significant Accounting Policies

1. T iR faeRvT SR S # srervT—etenT faxia faawell & srear 7 # SfeaiRad w¥i Aecayel oraie1 iRl &1t srgaRer fasar 1 2 |

All the significant accounting policies as mentioned in Chapter 7 to the standalone financial statements have also been followed in the
preparation of consolidated financial statements.

2. 9% SR 3T TS Ul & oI fJavoi @1 dfad &% dfad MR W dgad fBar 1 © | 599 fofg oRa, <3, 3 9o <19 &l Udh
SR A&l & 981 oI DI SIS AT 7T B | VAT SfART TR AW AR FoIT JfR—HHg oAl @ Yot fIeles & qre fhar T 8, S g 21
g faxi fIaReT” & IR © | WEART WISH! BT YUH 23 “HEdRfl WAl # a9 &7 ordie # FeiRa $fdadt ugfy o1 wan e
8U fexamg ¥ foram w1 €
The financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line to line basis by adding together the book
values of like items of Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses after fully eliminating intra group balances and inter group transactions
in accordance with AS-21" Consolidated Financial Statements". The Associates are accounted for using the equity method as prescribed
by AS-23 "Accounting for Investments in Associates in consolidated financial statement".

3. T faxi faaven & wnfiel Were SRl & faavor :

Details of Subsidaries included in consolidated financial statements are as follows :

HHTD TES GeAT BT ATH QY BT A AT BT AR 4 (8T1+)
Sr.No. Name of the subsidiary Country of Proportion of ownership| Profit/(Loss)
Incorporation . Rs.
1. | =@ d=R dfed 1. /SIDBI Venture Capital Ltd. AR / India 100% 574,56,729
2. | fgsdt g1 ®u fol. / SIDBI Trustee Company Ltd. AR/ India 100% 46,73,321
AT/ Total 621,30,050

TERIh Axemel & faxiy faavor orar 9Rifgd € |

Financial statements of the subsidaries are audited.

4.A.  gafed faxia faarer § e & 78 Aagarf Rl & fqaxoT 39 yar ®

Details of Associates included in consolidated financial statements are as follows :

PTG | aEARi | T (%) Rygeor faer o / (BTfr) o faean|smfard &1 fae
Sr. Name °_f the Holding Dntion Investment |Share of Profit/(Loss) | Share in reserves*
No. Associate (%) p ®. Rs. %. Rs. % Rs.

1. TR TAUAS DI 0T ST goidl

SMERA 33.45 Credit Rating Agency for SME's 497,50,000 19,03,873 (277,34,704)
2 METHSTATA TAUHS BT Wenfra agrdr

ISTSL 22.73 Technology Support to SME's 99,96,800 327,310 893,815
3. | emSuHTeRH SR gAfToT Bt

ISARC 26.00** | Asset Reconstruction Company 2,60,00,000 69,52,438 (18,48,383)
4. TUHY oy o

AFC 24.14 State Financial Corporation 2,22,08,750 52,98,189 (95,98,703)
5. SIUHH = fo<fa foem

DFC 24.15 State Financial Corporation 3,13,87,500 (114,63,492) 11,78,21,035
6. STRUGHT o faxi

RFC 25.87 State Financial Corporation 11,19,05,000 61,15,668 1,22,96,787

T/ Total 25,12,48,050 91,33,986 918,29,847

* T JTua B 7S W& 2()) BT . 4358,39,62,868 / — D MRTAIfT (e H FfFAfera
* Included in Reserve Fund of Rs. 4358,39,62,868/- in Item 2(i) of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

o THARITA (RISEl @1 100% AERIEG W) §RT eMRd 1% gaH nfid 2|
** Includes 11% holding by SVCL (100% subsidiary of SIDBI)
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4.B.

4.C.

THfhd gorud ¥ f=foRad wearft |vemsii & aRems wfe =12 € qenfy, foxfa faaren & a1 @ ey ?q qob uraem= far = 2
The results of the following associates are not included in the consolidated financial statements. However, full provision has been
made in the financial statements for share of the losses.

. Fearfl g BT (%) T N— SCH o™ (@ﬁ) ﬁ s
Sr. Name of the Holdin A Investment Share of Profit/(Loss)
No. Associate (%) & Description %./Rs. %. /Rs.

1. CILNESIYeoRe] o foci A

BSFC 48.43 State Financial Corporation 18,84,88,500 (18,84,88,500)
2. SHUAUHN o faxi e

GSFC 28.41 State Financial Corporation 12,66,00,000 (12,66,00,000)
3, STHTATHHT* I foi

JKSFC* 32.39 State Financial Corporation 10,46,20,000 (10,46,20,000)
4, TATHAUHHT = fo<i fmm

MSFC 39.99 State Financial Corporation 12,52,41,750 (12,52,41,750)
5, Lyl = fo<ia foem

PFC 25.92 State Financial Corporation 5,23,51,850 (5,23,51,850)
6. | gUrgHTHHAI* Iy facia feme

UPSFC* 24.18 State Financial Corporation 21,67,59,000 (21,67,59,000)

T/ Total 81,40,61,100 (81,40,61,100)

5y foxia AT o1 Bred o weart) et & fa<ia faaver 31 @1, 2010 & forv srodifera € | wrog fa<ia el & s 31 574,
2009 & oGl TR i@l U SmeniRd € |

Financial statements of the associates other than State Financial Corporation's (SFC) are unaudited for the year ended March 31,
2010. The figures for SFC's are based on audited results for the year ended March 31, 2009.

* grfer gRomd Suerer g |

* Provisional results are available.

ferforRad wRermsil & ey # T=Ift e & URT 20 URerd 3 31l AT iR € Tenft Sv Uy 23 “Hediil TeHr # e B wHihd faxim
fAaRUT % oRgip’ B ST ASARN GTSHT | HIer 8T 791 T ' Riifh S8 VAT AR Hae T8 9 AT B, BT GHe asid 8 |

In case of following entities, though the bank holds more than 20% of voting power, they are not treated as investments in associate
under AS 23 'Accounting for Investment is Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements', because they are not considered as
material investments requiring consolidation.

PHHD SERIEIISS e (%) e [RER
Sr. Name of the Holding L Investment
No. Associate (%) Description =

1. TR IR dh-Td] RIS TS
APITCO 41.29 | Technical Consultancy Organisation 54,70,975
2. | S&@ 3iENfre SR da-ar wel e oo Teian] URTET TS+
J&K Industrial and Technical 48.65 | Technical Consultancy Organisation 1
Consultancy Organisation Ltd.
3 | wemSdRien GERICI RN
KITCO 49.77 | Technical Consultancy Organisation 24,95,296
4 | SR—Yd oienfire wEEit foo qhTehl URTHET TS
North Eastern Industrial Consultants Ltd. 20.78 | Technical Consultancy Organisation 13,474
5 | STR—Yd sl ol d@iat uRrel Hie fefo GERIERENUN UG
North Eastern Industrial and Technical 46.37 | Technical Consultancy Organisation 1
Consultancy Organisation Ltd.
6. ST 3MEfIe SR Th-ild! URHe |Ire fofo qh=Td! URTHRf e
Orissa Industrial and Technical 49.42 | Technical Consultancy Organisation 1
Consultancy Organisation Ltd.
7. | IO s Rl feo GERICI R NN ISECE
U.P. Industrial Consultancy Ltd. 48.99 | Technical Consultancy Organisation 15,33,472
8 | w e wmEt Hwes oo GERICIRNERIGRIE!
W.Bengal Consultancy Organisation Ltd. 26.00 | Technical Consultancy Organisation 4,86,783
AT/ Total 100,00,003
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ARAR &g ST faera 9@
31 |19, 2010 B FAI a9 & 1Y THIbT AW—eI= oran

Fifed @l &1 sfaRad feafraf

Additional Notes to Consolidated Accounts

5. Hearh el | deayul offed FETgaR § ¢

Details of significant transactions with associates are as under:

i | SEdndl e faaor . wfaaRoT gl
sr.No. Name of the Particulars Disbursements Repayments
Associate %. Rs. %. Rs.
1. SIHHT & g gAfdT wErmEr
DFC Refinance assistance provided 629,75,000 12,54,09,970
2 SIRYBRIT & TS gAfdT e
RFC Refinance assistance provided 125,72,16,000 142,99,32,752

6. =g a9 200010 & <R ARMEE [ § gRads
Movement in Reserve Fund during FY 2009-10

I 31 \rd 2010 31 \rd 2009
Particulars 31 March 2010 31 March 2009
%. Rs. %. Rs.

o goid 03 & ST9R SfR
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 4152,85,81,603 3632,87,80,979
Shifey : faft=r ffe & siaRa
Add : Transferred from Various Funds - 379,29,35,771
ST : oM 3R BT ofar & sfaRd
Add : Transferred from Profit and Loss A/c. 205,65,74,350 129,22,92,028
ST : Hearh Ui & aRfie Rord # uRad= # fRwm
Add : Share in movement of opening reserve of associate concerns (11,93,085) 11,45,72,825
gir / Total 4358,39,62,868 4152,85,81,603

7. IR oY ST e 96 @1 Jeusrd A d Al Y@ ugh / Joueid 9ed vsfd IR g FeiRd &= o= Rl o
HIEI b1 ST 8, Siafd Wee Ud WedRll GReMsll gRT Hedsr™ &l Sral Sl MM 1956 &1 LA XIV &
AR JeIBIRIT o Ugfd W= fBar 11 8 | g9fely |Hfdhd gerius # SMfie 5. 10,36,16,636 & AW Hodel™ ¥ 0.42%
RIRT BT TR 1956 & IIAR U 1Y HeABRI W SR ¢ |
As against depreciation policy of SIDBI whereby assets are depreciated on SLM / WDV at pre-determined rates, the
subsidiaries and associates claim depreciation on WDV basis as per Schedule XIV of The Companies Act, 1956. Thus
out of the total depreciation of Rs.10,36,16,636/- included in Consolidated Financial Statements, 0.42% of the amount
is determined based on depreciation provided as per The Companies Act, 1956.

8. i Aed ARl & T IR YIS AT AU ®U ¥ RSl & WIHE H ©, A AU IWRERD! b fod b
e H ST W PIE UPeT el fHAT W B |
As all shares of the subsidiaries are owned by SIDBI directly or indirectly, no separate disclosure relating to minority
interest is reflected.

9. frsdl der dfied fofics @& Yofwifoe feee o1 5. 12,55279 &1 G RS foar T 2| (e af 9,34,147 %)
Aggregate remuneration paid to whole time director of SVCL is Rs. 12,55,279. Previous year (Rs. 9,34,147)

10. 99 & SRF Udh Ge-d G¥T THIRNTS o HldIge / elihid SUBRY & Hael H of@idd i § gRadg fhar 8 ik s
HI—aqY H ARG W W GAIRT fHar 77 2 | 39 uRITH & Horawy a¥ &1 o= Yd a4 9. 2,55445 /— $F 2 |

During the year SVCL, one of the subsidiary has changed its accounting policy in respect of mobile / telephone
instrument, whereby the same have been charged to revenue account in the year of purchase. Pursuant to this
change profit before tax for the year is less by an amount of Rs. 2,55,445/-.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

9fd TR et
Earning Per Share (EPS)

fqa=or

Particulars

31 HTE 2010
31 March 2010

%. Rs.

31 AT 2009
31 March 2009

%. Rs.

ST o ®q form wran fraer @ (3)

Net Profit considered for EPS calculation (Rs.)

10 %. & 3ifhd eI & sfaacl WWRI @I 4.

425,42,12,304

302,41,24,057

Number of equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each 45,00,00,000 45,00,00,000
Ui IR i (%))
Earning per share (Rs.) 9.45 6.72
IMHRAD YA
Contingent Liabilities
BT f9woT / Particulars 31 ATd 2010 31 ATd 2009
Sr.No. 31 March 2010 31 March 2009
(Rs.) (Rs.)
@) |5 w9 <9 R o 7L A7Er T @
(a) Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 124,74,90,954 112,06,21,632
(@) | 9 TR/ ARg—uE & Wekawy
(b) On account of Guarantees/Letters of Credit 186,55,60,908 156,07,90,904
() | areT AfEmel & werawy
(c) On account of Forward Contracts 1,23,82,623 34,98,93,799
@) | iR ufiagansil & wovawy
(d) On account of underwriting commitments = =
®©) | iR wu A gaar RRI, FoH! e w T A T AR & herawy
(e) | On account of uncalled monies on partly paid shares, Debentures etc. - -
@) | e IRET M & forw 9@ & enefRAd I §
(f) Other monies for which the Bank is contingently liable 1186,60,00,000 1313,70,00,000
i / Total 1499,14,34,485 1616,83,06,335

TR M &R & Ui THdRive &1 faareasd <gar 8, RSraer afdr FuilRa 98 @ 5 aad |

SVCL has disputed liability towards municipal taxes, the amount of which cannot be determined.

ol Td WIS UG & s faciyg faavelt # sifaRed wifafte gamm & R udenl o wifed o favel @ |81 ik |=r Refa
W BIE YT &I 8 DT T IR ARyl AT W G SRR BT Yhed AR Fdl EhR I §RT SN TSGR & R

Tufepd faxia faavon & =& fear =m 2|

Additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial statements of the parent and the subsidiaries having no bearing on the
true and fair view of the Consolidated Financial Statments and also the information pertaining to the items which are not material has
not been disclosed in the consolidated financial statements in view of the general clarification issued by The Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.(ICAl)

TRl FEl LIS TSl 7, sl 9 & SAfdmsl HT T Td YdiiaRvr fBar M1 B, i 9% adHe 9Y & sfidet ¥ el A SR S

[P |

Previous years figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable with current year's
figures.
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ARAR &g ST e 9@
31 |9, 2010 PI FHG Y B b Tbal JdTs

31 ATd, 2009
March 31, 2009

faaor
PARTICULARS

31 ®Td, 2010
March 31, 2010

(®./Rs.)

837,07,17,281

10,85,63,314
(189,85,812)
(236,48,93,308)
3,26,80,835
565,71,44,658
(31,51,15,786)
(89,00,00,000)

(7,53,91,023)

1050,47,20,159

152,59,02,308
(269,67,64,944)
(651,09,27,069)

(10253,03,28,712)

5678,08,86,143

4512,07,12,828
(831,05,19,446)
219,42,00,713

(383,86,25,354)

(164,44,24,641)
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gRarer afafaftr) @ Tad) yare
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
FAM—8I o & AR IR Jd fad o

Net Profit before tax as per Consolidated P&L Account
Adjustmeﬁts for :

Depreciation

Jpi & Arafy s w A &t/

Interest earned on FD with scheduled banks

3IMSIAREITH I GoRi
Writeback out of IRDF
et # fad geae & forg uraem
Provision for net depreciation in investments
BIECIEE
Provisions
e @1 e o @ ([Fae)
Profit on sale of investments (net)

UTTETT
Provision written back
[RERUIE SIS IEIN
Dividend Received on Investments
aRErel & Suifsfa /et
(aRETERa SMRTAT Td el § uRad= & )

Cash generated from operations
(Prior to changes in operating Assets and Liabilities)

fr=fofea & faa aReds & fon w@Re -
Adjustments for net changes in :

A SR

Current Asssets

ERIBRCORIY

Current Liabilities

fafma e

Bills of Exchange

T TG I7RH

Loans and Advances

91Ug AT KUY UG 31 SURT 9 fad I

Net Proceeds of Bonds and Debentures &
other borrowings

ur e

Deposits received

MR DT

Payment of Income Tax
yRETa—fafatral @ frad & yare
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities

(®./Rs.)

871,26,70,023

10,38,88,321

(98,77,608)

(896,24,622)

590,17,577

661,24,84,305

(73,92,01,212)

(17,19,55,950) 576,47,30,811

1447,74,00,834

120,50,21,414
461,14,04,008
(698,04,25,701)

(6384,94,22,518)

1700,44,08,361

4145,00,55,382

(655,89,59,054)
791,84,41,780

(454,01,32,086)

337,83,09,694
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31 91, 2009
March 31, 2009

fqazor
PARTICULARS

31 91, 2010
March 31, 2010

(. /Rs.)

(39,07,93,116)

(516,00,13,633)

9,55,80,926

(545,52,25,823)

(78,97,00,214)

(78,97,00,214)

(788,93,50,678)

1632,76,12,340

843,82,61,662

frraer wfafaferat @ 9o gare

Cash flow from Investing Activities

Rer anRadl & (3) /g o fraa Il

Net (Purchase)/Sale of fixed assets

[RERUEAN (N VAT EIVAICE IEANECE IR
Net (Purchase)/sale/redemption of Investments
IRERIR RIS RSNV S

Dividend/Interest Received on Investments
frraer wfafafery & ygaa faa Tad

Net cash used in Investing Activities

farataor wfafaferay @ Fod) gare

Cash flow from Financing Activities

SfdRE] IR AT SR AT TR PR
Dividend on Equity Shares & tax on Dividend
facfrerm wfafafery # ggaa faa Tad

Net cash used in Financing Activities

B4 Ud AHdl waqed A Fraa gfE/ (@)

Net Increase / (Decrease)in cash and cash equivalents

A & IR ¥ dPHal U AHd GAged

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period

A BT AT WR THdl ¢d Tdhal G A

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period

(4,61,29,929)

68,69,07,362

18,06,59,573

(78,97,16,557)

(%. /Rs.)

82,14,37,006

(78,97,16,557)

341,00,30,143

843,82,61,662

1184,82,91,805

fewoft : WW%{%@ aﬁT%alcs' UHTSCCH (JMSATRAE) §RT SINT ol HHH — 3 (FeNfEd) Aahdl varg faaxor # fuilRa smreer

fafer & ergarR

BRI

Note :  Cash Flow statement has been prepared as per the Indirect Method prescribed in AS-3 (Revised) 'Cash Flow Statement' issued by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

FEeaql o AR Td o R (g 1)

Significant accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Annexure I)

9 faid 31 89K RUIE & FFAR

As per our report of even date

I Q.. 38 S &.
G AATHR

For A.J. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

THIRTT / FRN. 109476W

2+ we
TEER

TH. = 100052
Hiren Shah
Partner
MNo.100052

s, 31 5, 2010

Mumbai, May 31, 2010

d1. g, Yets
HRIUTAD Heh

V.S. Rathore
Executive Director

T, . ASIUTEAT
(BENGT
S.S. Chattopadhyay
Director

91, "I
e

B. Manivannan
Director

RTDIT AN

SY Y&y ferd

Rakesh Rewari

Deputy Managing Director

&Y. IR, IoTferar
IBESED

T. R. Bajalia
Director

B, HaRMEH
(RENED

K. Sitaramam
Director

IS @ ARATTAR

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

3MR.UH. Heell
3e&T TG Y& fevie
R.M. Malla

Chairman & Managing Director

SIH®! deel®
Janki Ballabh

Director
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fRredl sI@n Aea® / SIDBIBRANCH NETWORK
qRf, @S —226001, SR YS9, YRd
: 0522-2288546-50 B ; 0522-2288455-59 AR :

Head Office : SIDBI Tower, 15, Ashok Marg, Lucknow-226001, Uttar Pradesh, India

Tel.: 0522-2288546-50 Fax : 0522-2288455-59 Telegram : LAGHUVIKAS

qd 3/Fe @) WA / Eastern Zone Branches

PIIRIT 1Y AT IRAT PIABI gel Kolkata-Micro Fin. Br. Kolkata
TNEH STHATYR NGy Gangtok Jamshedpur
RERECK Nl EEEIG Bhubaneswar Ranchi
'ﬂaﬁ?a? ey I eI ERIIRN TSR Bhubaneswar-Micro Fin. Br.  Durgapur
IR 3 B M@/ Northern Zone Branches
BERELSI TS e New Delhi Chandigarh
B el HRIGTES Noida Baddi
i ARG UISHIE Jammu Okhla
% 3fcTaR SilECN Jaipur Alwar
3 SIERIEH SRR Kundli Ludhiana
SEREN BTG Janakpuri Udaipur
DA % Z@ DI CI Greator Noida Ghaziabad
=fur 3@ @1 WA / Southern Zone Branches
] Pifed % Chennai Kochi
RRISAY gger Bengaluru Puducherry
ENEI IESN gecl Hyderabad Ambattur
IGEUECEEME BRIR EEICAS] Visakhapatnam Hosur
foogR [ESEEIS] AR Tirupur Vijayawada
DIIFR R EYIN Coimbatore Belgaum
TR BEAZ = Mangalore Nellore
TERTeTE 31y ot 5 H@ Hyderabad-Micro Fin. Br. Rajamundry
IS 3Ted fa et gg% g g o IRR Bengaluru-Micro Fin. Br. Chennai-Micro Fin.Br
uf$9¥ 3=ael &1 IMETd / Western Zone Branches
THT dfge qUISiT S IUIEIE Nariman Point Panaji
TT—Rel DI SIRMEIEIE SlINES Bandra-Kurla Complex ~ Ahmedabad
aﬁ[&%ﬁ m%lﬂa S WQOG!EEE Andheri Chinchwad
Thane Kolhapur
qor ESIE| il Pune Baroda
2; %? SITHAIR Nagpur Surat
SEHTTR IS Ankleshwar Ahmednagar
qcd Vatva
[ 3Ael P MW@ / Central Zone Branches
BIGR RIOTAT R Kanpur Varanasi
TGS, 3Ted fad oman KEERE) GRE Lucknow-Micro Fin. Br. Lucknow
CENE Bl FoR Dehradun Roorkee
Hare feremagR YR Bhopal Bilaspur
NIk 3reiiTe Rudrapur Aligarh
IR Yd 3rda Bt TN / North-Eastern Zone Branches
SR RCIEE SR Agartala Guwahati
IR ShIc] SR Aizwal Imphal
Tarere] e fa< T AR Guwahati-Micro Fin. Br. Dimapur

SIDBI

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA

Call Toll Free No. : 1800 22 6753 or visit www.sidbi.in

Patna
Rourkela
Dhanbad
Kharagpur

Shimla
Faridabad
Gurgaon
Jalandhar
Jodhpur
Kishangarh

Erode
Trichy
Hubli
Kozhikode
Balanagar
Bellary
Peenya
Madurai
Mysore

Aurangabad
Nashik
Rajkot
Gandhidham
Vapi
Jamnagar
Waluj

Agra
Bareilly
Indore
Raipur

Iltanagar
Shillong
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